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12 31 12 31
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
142,705 132,939 110,386 92,018 94,365
(2,445,964)  (2,278,574)  (1,892,016)  (1,577,189)  (1,617,416)
37,905 37,441 33,721 31,611 30,388
(649,692) (641,739) (577,978) (541,813) (520,850)
37,824 37,354 33,659 31,545 30,329
(648,303) (640,248) (576,915) (540,681) (519,839)
453,449 384,982 321,488 304,760 250,455
(7,772,116)  (6,598,591)  (5,510,304)  (5,223,586)  (4,292,799)
54,032 52,489 52,489 52,489 46,679
(926,108) (899,661) (899,661) (899,661) (800,078)
5,368,110 4,733,431 4,357,332 4,088,243 4,020,042
(92,009,405)  (81,131,007)  (74,684,670) (70,072,485) (68,903,520)
®¢ 6.45 6.10 5.55 5.24 4.72
)
(110.55) (104.55) (95.13) (89.81) (80.90)
X NG 0.68 0.68 0.61 0.64 0.63
(11.66) (11.66) (10.46) (10.97) (10.80)
OF , 0.61 0.62 0.55 0.59 0.63
(10.46) (10.63) (9.43) (10.11) (10.80)
117,157 65,100 19,514 -142,721 349,679
(2,008,071)  (1,115,814) (334,470)  (-2,446,238)  (5,993,498)
-173,560 -74,423 55,765 12,318 -423,325
(-2,974,818)  (-1,275,610) (955,812) (211,181)  (-7,255,791)
86,758 -61,453 -37,444 39,284 191,134
(1,487,032)  (-1,053,304) (-641,790) (673,328)  (3,276,037)
145,076 117,499 187,680 147,923 241,507
(2,486,603)  (2,013,933)  (3,216,835)  (2,535,400)  (4,139,430)
0.75 0.82 0.80 0.78 0.85
(ROAR)
10.71 11.77 11.55 12.75 13.80
(RoAE) P

33/429



Tier 9.02
Tier 11.75
13.90

2020

2.21866

9.20

11.08

13.47

34/429

9.15

10.09

13.01

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

oOoOooodn
9.56 8.21
10.61 9.34
13.49 10.80



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

oOoOooodn
PBOC 1992
1992 29 PBOC
18 SAMR 1,500
1997 2010 18
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70.88%
2015 14
2015 15 CSRC 2015 19
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2016 100
2017 17 30
2017 12 22 4.2 1.61
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CBIRC
CovID-19
59,633 6,358 11.93
41.79 104,200 15.35 782,900
325,100 82,100 33.79
€y
2,631,729
353,785 15.53 500,766
29.11 1,657,277 167,244
11.22
@
E-SBU
45,810
29.48 201,206
3,570 376,100 90
4.96 0.71
®
521,816
75.18 27 21,680
12,043

Q)
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38.11 16,492
1.48 51.53
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132 63.37
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12.42 1,917,642
@
805,493
98,412 13.92
©))
40.30

E-SBU

37/429



65.59 6,367

23.56

Q)

219.52

Al

1.86
16.99

®

®

TikTok
10

21.19 12,668,500

200

8.3771

45,382

Q)

Al

437,176

17.34

5.0

E-SBU
40

38/429

66.28

50.07

7,905 24.54

837,345

65

TCM Qihuang

PaaS

EDINETOO OO
0000000000000(E25668)
0oooood

111.92

40,112

63,487

8.5
2,215,300
E-SBU

IT

Robotic Process Automation RPA

2.46 2,724,137

447,086

0.51



COVID-19

CFCA
0.21
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28,900

7.04 11.21

®
10,040
575
38,766,900 335.56
11,373,000 1,105.05
509
1,865 13.37
COVID-19
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63.16
5,900 90
5,000 100
1,000 60
2,600 100
20 100
150 70
100 70
150 70
19
46,316 1,355
5,921 12.78
32,958 71.16
7,437 16.06 9,680
20.90
18,600 40.16 8,978
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58,678 41.12
950,000
123 22.57 40,000
24.54 AUM 12.42 1.92
52 15.35 782,900
2020 24,323 4.98
17.04
54.66
9.18
10,000 39.39
NAV
11.2
71,000
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Anxinxi 1,354 28,000
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)
5,368,110 634,679
13.41 3,009,482 297,278
10.96 3,480,667 462,779
15.33
2.39 19
)
142,705 7.35
110,697 8.61 24,323
4.98
CovID-19
56,932
1.24 37,905
)
41,666 546
1.38 0.18
2.15 0.06 2.15 0.12
182.71 1.09
)
533,530 68,025
13.90 Tier 11.75

Tier 9.02
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2019

2020 /
110,697 101,918 8,779
24,323 23,169 1,154
484 585 (101)
15 42 @7
5,203 4,878 325
591 22 569
310 1,339 (1,029)
1,082 986 96
40,271 38,429 1,842
56,733 48,965 7,768
199 382 (183)
5 - 5
45,497 45,163 334
7,592 7,722 (130)
37,905 37,441 464
37,824 37,354 470
142,705 9,766 7.35
77.57 0.90
17.04 0.39
2020 2019
77.57 76.67
17.04 17.43
5.39 5.90
100.00% 100.00%
110,697 8,779 8.61

2.20
2.29
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2020 2019
(%) Q)
2,906,910 155,986 5.37 2,577,493 145,452 5.64
93,822 5,524 5.89 76,927 4,444 5.78
1,304,175 52,229 4.00 1,128,832 48,073 4.26
352,519 5,073 1.44 344,856 5,020 1.46
170,286 2,663 1.56 287,289 7,055 2.46
4,827,712 221,475 4.59 4,415,397 210,044 4.76
221,475 210,044
3,383,830 77,688 2.30 2,809,308 63,954 2.28
862,436 21,421 2.48 967,362 28,951 2.99
383,875 11,669 3.04 412,023 15,221 3.69
4,630,141 110,778 2.39 4,188,693 108,126 2.58
110,778 108,126
110,697 101,918
2.20 2.18
2.29 2.31
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18,590 (8,056) 10,534
976 104 1,080
7,467 (3,311) 4,156
112 (59) 53
(2,873) (1,519) (4,392)
24,272 (12,841) 11,431
13,079 655 13,734
(3,140) (4,390) (7,530)
(1,040) (2,512) (3,552)
8,899 (6,247) 2,652
15,373 (6.594) 8,779
221,475 11,431 5.44
@
10,534 7.24
155,986
2020 2019
) Q)
1,626,436 76,214 4.69 1,424,390 70,854 4.97
1,199,467 77,477 6.46 1,097,074 72,578 6.62
81,007 2,295 2.83 56,029 2,020 3.61
2,906,910 155,986 5.37 2,577,493 145,452 5.64
@)
4,156 8.65 52,229
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®
2,663 4,392 62.25
110,778 2,652 2.45
@
77,688 13,734
21.47
2020 2019
*) )
2,613,811 58,045 2.22 2,150,995 47,074 2.19
824,883 6,715 0.81 755,700 5,738 0.76
1,788,928 51,330 2.87 1,395,295 41,336 2.96
770,019 19,643 2.55 658,313 16,880 2.56
226,701 939 0.41 194,337 811 0.42
543,318 18,704 3.44 463,976 16,069 3.46
3,383,830 77,688 2.30 2,809,308 63,954 2.28
@
21,421 7,530 26.01
®
11,669 3,552
23.34
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24,323 1,154 4.98
1,884
297.16
2020 2019
27,005 25,977
1,626 1,909
12,245 14,163
1,701 1,538
2,518 634
1,529 1,360
3,288 2,744
1,614 1,446
2,484 2,183
(2,682) (2,808)
24,323 23,169
7,685 167
2020 2019
484 585
15 42
5,203 4,878
591 22
310 1,339
1,082 986
7,685 7,852
40,271 1,842 4.79
27.18 0.67
2020 2019
19,243 18,401
6,143 5,718
1,483 1,400
13,402 12,910
40,2711 38,429

56,932 7,585 15.37
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2020 2019

53,353 47,786

53,197 47,821

156 (35)

(334) 439

772 (314)

973 752

2,168 684

56,932 49,347

10
7,592 130 1.68
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634,679 (13.14 5,368,110

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
% %
3,009,482 2,712,204
8,486 8,160
(75,533) (76,228)
2,942,435 54.81 2,644,136 55.86
100,788 1.88 83,723 1.77
46,059 0.86 31,358 0.66
360,287 6.71 364,340 7.70
1,695,679 31.59 1,447,351 30.57
9,353 0.17 10,826 0.23
112,882 2.10 67,105 1.42
257 0.00 - -
23,301 0.43 19,342 0.41
11,137 0.21 11,684 0.25
1,281 0.03 1,281 0.03
19,587 0.37 16,306 0.34
45,064 0.84 35,979 0.76
5,368,110 100.00 4,733,431 100.00
@
3,009,482 297,278
10.96 54.81
1.05
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
Q) )
1,657,277 55.07 1,490,033 54.94
1,283,280 42.64 1,157,508 42.68
68,925 2.29 64,663 2.38
3,009,482 100.00 2,712,204 100.00
)
1,695,679
248,328 31.59
1.02

59/429



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
Q) (%)
304,908 17.98 211,406 14.61
25,264 1.49 13,805 0.95
222,807 13.14 180,005 12.44
1,141,825 67.34 1,041,512 71.96
875 0.05 623 0.04
1,695,679 100.00 1,447,351 100.00

®
475,428 173,908
75.05

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
) (%)
30,562 6.43 8,792 2.91
356,838 75.05 233,514 77.45
88,028 18.52 59,214 19.64

475,428 100.00 301,520 100.00
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@) 10
17,740 4.04 2027 10 -
15,850 4.98 2025 12 -
13,220 4.39 2027 -
13,120 4.24 2027 24 -
12,690 3.05 2026 25 -
11,600 3.18 2026 -
11,550 4.73 2025 -
11,330 3.74 2025 10 -
10,210 3.86 2029 20 -
10 9,340 3.63 2026 19 -
®)
6,019
4,738 1,281
©)
4,913,112 565,735
13.01
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
Q)] )
241,110 4.91 224,838 5.17
3,480,667 70.84 3,017,888 69.42
469, 345 9.55 444,320 10.23
176,061 3.58 191,828 4.41
4 - 100 -
25,778 0.52 13,893 0.32
15,169 0.31 13,667 0.31
8,772 0.18 9,322 0.21
10,762 0.22 11,069 0.25
440,870 8.98 371,904 8.56
44,574 0.91 48,548 1.12
4,913,112 100.00 4,347,377 100.00
3,480,667 462,779
15.33
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
Q) (%)
2,628,797 75.53 2,275,772 75.41
850,381 24.43 783,859 25.97
1,778,416 51.10 1,491,913 49.44
805,243 23.13 687,571 22.78
278,518 8.00 221,158 7.33
526,725 15.13 466,413 15.45
3,182 0.09 21,682 0.72
43,445 1.25 32,863 1.09
3,480,667 100.00 3,017,888 100.00
454,998 68,944
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

54,032 52,489

109,062 70,067

58,434 53,533

1,393 2,737

26,245 26,245

67,702 59,417

136,581 120,494

453,449 384,982

1,549 1,072

454,998 386,054
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1,476,546 189,050
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

351,996 323,743
769,458 609,169
130,425 128,746
224,482 225,653
185 185
1,476,546 1,287,496

117,157

61,003
418,227
474,381
173,560
702,616
924,959
86,758

439,051
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31

Q) (%)
313,427 18.91 270,177 18.14
294,595 17.78 261,465 17.55
224,450 13.54 211,918 14.22
189,785 11.46 170,068 11.42
127,522 7.69 113,140 7.59
107,987 6.52 94,793 6.36
97,132 5.86 76,907 5.16
88,535 5.34 87,226 5.85
54,100 3.26 41,459 2.78
45,532 2.75 45,948 3.08
114,212 6.89 116,932 7.85
1,657,277 100.00 1,490,033 100.00

1,283,280 1,157,508

68,925 64,663

3,009,482 2,712,204

2020 12 31 2019 12 31

Q) (%)
652,565 21.69 556,102 20.49
532,348 17.69 447,249 16.49
396,086 13.16 341,541 12.59
387,332 12.87 349,559 12.89
373,595 12.41 348,706 12.86
117,580 3.91 121,928 4.50
451,157 14.99 450,945 16.63
98,819 3.28 96,174 3.55
3,009,482 100.00 2,712,204 100.00
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
) ()
941,130 31.27 852,885 31.45
710,746 23.62 637,315 23.50
1,017,960 33.83 862,021 31.78
339,646 11.28 359,983 13.27
3,009,482 100.00 2,712,204 100.00

10
2020 12 31
(@) (@)
11,124 0.37 2.08
6,300 0.21 1.18
5,500 0.18 1.03
3,877 0.13 0.73
3,685 0.12 0.69
3,500 0.12 0.66
3,367 0.11 0.63
3,216 0.11 0.60
3,200 0.11 0.60
10 3,042 0.10 0.57
46,811 1.56 8.77
CBIRC
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
) Q)]
2,903,043 96.47 2,609,993 96.23
64,773 2.15 59,999 2.21
19,795 0.66 23,466 0.87
11,604 0.38 12,049 0.44
10,267 0.34 6,697 0.25
3,009,482 100.00 2,712,204 100.00
2,967,816 98.62 2,669,992 98.44
41,666 1.38 42,212 1.56
2020 2019 2019 2020 2018
3.35 2.57 +0.78 1.94
43.43 42.83 +0.60 38.48
83.11 86.04 -2.93 68.71
67.65 66.74 +0.91 32.80
@
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
) )
7,659 0.25 11,888 0.44
90 245 0.01 898 0.03
@
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
Q) )
31,349 48.53 27,637 44 .91
21,773 33.71 22,493 36.55
9,475 14.67 9,307 15.12
1,999 3.09 2,107 3.42
64,596 100.00 61,544 100.00
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
Q) (%)
26,354 63.25 26,223 62.12
15,312 36.75 15,989 37.88
41,666 100.00 42,212 100.00
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
Q) (%)
7,396 17.75 4,912 11.64
6,160 14.78 5,797 13.73
5,383 12.92 6,831 16.18
5,225 12.54 5,031 11.92
4,699 11.28 4,155 9.84
3,365 8.08 4,951 11.73
9,430 22.63 10,527 24.94
8 0.02 8 0.02
41,666 100.00 42,212 100.00
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
Q) (%)
13,608 32.66 12,605 29.86
3,897 9.35 5,141 12.18
1,724 4.14 2,280 5.40
1,629 3.91 951 2.25
1,554 3.73 926 2.19
1,039 2.49 741 1.76
864 2.07 1,155 2.74
561 1.35 640 1.52
377 0.90 979 2.32
133 0.32 192 0.45
968 2.33 613 1.45
26,354 63.25 26,223 62.12
15,312 36.75 15,989 37.88
41,666 100.00 42,212 100.00

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
Q) (%)
15,140 36.34 13,339 31.60
10,425 25.01 12,444 29.47
14,852 35.65 13,396 31.74
1,249 3.00 3,033 7.19
41,666 100.00 42,212 100.00
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12
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
581 517
581 517
(191) (39)
390 478
13
PD LGD
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
) 76,228 67,209
() 59,127 53,396
(5,930) (5,575)
3,202 2,428
() (767) (828)
(36,013) (26,576)
(20,310) (13,826)
) -
) 75,533 76,228
14
15,917 60,722
34,051 12,316 3,117
11,238
11,650
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2020 2019
27,558 13,277 23,837 10,369
24,855 7,917 22,031 7,285
23,186 9,246 20,936 2,885
19,917 4,603 18,419 4,805
17,214 3,178 15,912 3,294

6,042 (4,473) 6,638 19
21,384 10,119 22,908 15,014
2,549 1,630 2,258 1,492
142,705 45,497 132,939 45,163
2020 2019
59,633 20,619 53,275 16,670
58,678 2,957 54,683 5,897
24,225 21,925 24,765 22,532
169 ) 216 64
142,705 45,497 132,939 45,163
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31

46,059 31,358 46.88
25,264 13,805 83.01
43,592 6,835 537.78
304,908 211,406 44.23
25,778 13,893 85.55
14,182 25,603 -44_61
109,062 70,067 55.65
1,393 2,737 -49.10

2020 2019
310 1,339 -76.85
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€H)
32,014 248,856 244,806 36,064
@
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
3 10 @
@
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
31,597 26,187 5,410
@
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
694 573 121
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20

1,296 39 115
1,142

149
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2020 12 31
@) @)
54,031,908979 @
650,000,000
41,353,173,479 12,678,735,500
200,000,000 100,000,000
350,000,000
2020 12 31
1.00 54,031,908,979
100 650,000,000
5.30 3.90
4.80 2020 25
4.45

751429



@

@

(2) Tier

CBIRC

~NAAAA

N o S\

Tier

5.125

Tier
Tier
1) CBIRC
CBIRC
CSRC
10

@
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5.125

Tier

2)

Q)
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3) 2020 12 31
2015 12 31 o 39,810,359,500 o|  39,810,359,500
682,350
016 17 31 ol 39.810,359.500 0 39,810,359,500
682,350
2017 32,138 39,810,391,638
12 32,138| 39,810,391,638| . 682. 350
39,810,391, 638
2017 12 31 o| 39,810,391,638 0| 682 350
2018
88,858 39,810,480,496
88,858| 39,810,480,496| . . 682,352
2018
49,358 39,810,529,854
1 49,358|  39,810,529,854| .- 682,352
39,810,529,854
2018 12 31 o| 39,810,529,854 0| 682 35
2019
35,594 39,810,565,448
35,504| 39,810,565,448| 682,353
2019 22,153 39,810,587,601
12 22,153 39,810,587,601 0.38 682,353
39,810, 587, 601
2019 12 31 0| 39,810,587,601 0| 632 353
2020 9,564 39,810,597,165
9,564| 39,810,507,165 . 682,354
2020 1,542,576,314 41,353,173,479
12 1,542,576,314 | 41,353,173,479 26,440 708,793
41,353,173,479
2020 12 31 o| 41,353,173,479 0| 08 793
2020 10 14 1,542,553,191

771429
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2015 12 31 0| 6,868,735,500 0 6,868,735,500
117,730
2016 12 31 0| 6,868,735,500 0 6,868,735,500
117,730
2017 12 22 5,810,000,000| 12,678,735,500 5,810,000,000 12,678,735,500
99,583 217,314
2017 12 31 0] 12,678,735,500 0 12,678,735,500
217,314
2018 12 31 0] 12,678,735,500 0 12,678,735,500
217,314
2019 12 31 0] 12,678,735,500 0 12,678,735,500
217,314
2020 12 31 0] 12,678,735,500 0 12,678,735,500
217,314
2015 0 0 0 0
2015 19 200,000,000 200,000,000 0 0
2015 12 31 0 200,000,000 0 0
2016 100,000,000 300,000,000 0 0
2016 12 31 0 300,000,000 0 0
2017 12 31 0 300,000,000 0 0
2018 12 31 0 300,000,000 0 0
2019 15 350,000,000 650,000,000 0 0
2019 12 31 0 650,000,000 0 0
2020 12 31 0 650,000,000 0 0
Tier

781429
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®
2020 12 31
188,755 878
®)
2020 12 31 10
(%)
23,359,409, 561 43.23
1,782,965,000 3.30
11,063,806,380 20.48
4,200,000,000 7.77
1,605,286,000 2.97
1,530,397,000 2.83
1,572,735,868 2.91
1,550,215,694 2.87
413,094,619 0.76
376,393,000 0.70
766,002,403 1.42
723,999,875 1.34
723,077,824 1.34
B 629,693,300 1.17
« ) 626,063,556 1.16

791429
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1,610
4,200
11,793,469,285 10, 250,916,094
1,542,553,191
11,063,806,380
4,200,000,000  1,605,286,000  1,530,397,000 376,393,000 172,965,000
3,178,765,380
723,077,824
2020 12 31 10
2020 12 31 20
)
37,750,000 18.88
19,000,000 9.50
17,750,000 8.88
15,510,000 7.76
15,500,000 7.75
10,000,000 5.00
10,000,000 5.00
10,000,000 5.00
8,200,000 4.10
7,770,000 3.89

10
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2020 12 31 22
Q)
16,470,000 16.47
12,190,000 12.19
10,000,000 10.00
8,180,000 8.18
7,200,000 7.20
6,540,000 6.54
6,540,000 6.54
5,880,000 5.88
3,910,000 3.91
3,680,000 3.68
10
10
2020 12 31 23
Q)
84,110,000 24.04
47,720,000 13.63
31,810,000 9.09
27,270,000 7.79
27,270,000 7.79
18,180,000 5.19
15,000,000 4.28
13,630,000 3.89
9,090,000 2.60
9,090,000 2.60
9,090,000 2.60
9,090,000 2.60
9,090,000 2.60
9,090,000 2.60
9,090,000 2.60

81/429
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10
2020

2020 26,244 .5636 50

MOF 7,492.2996

3,130 2020 29 1,060
2020 11 390 1,680
10 2.10 2020
54,031.9090 11,346.7009
30.00
2020

2020 2019 2018
11,346.70 11,232.72 8,450.77
30.00 30.07 25.11
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2020 26 2020
2020 2019
2020 10 30 2020

®)

2019
2020

CBIRC
2020 CBIRC
2021
CBIRC

€))
2021 28

14

2021 28 14 12

®)

©
13
133 28

CBIRC 40

@

CBIRC
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©

33

113 31

€))

2020

2021 28

®)

14 13

2019

2021
2020
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2021 28
©
ANL
13
2021 28
@
10
2021 28
©
2019
2021 28
U)

60

AML

2019
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2019

2019



58
2021 28
2022
2021 28

2021 16
€))
®)

©

3.13
3.13
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29

10
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€))
2021 28

®)

©

27 22

@

20
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13 2019
2019
2019

2021 28

2.

2021 28
©
U)

2021 4 28

15
10
2020 12 31

2021 28
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2019

14 6.5
€))
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
2020
IT
®)

2020 12 31
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)
26 3.7
@
2018 0
LI Xiaopeng 2017 12
61
1CBC
13
2020 0
WU Lijun
56
CSRC
CSRC
2021 2021 0
FU Wanjun
52
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2021 2020 0
QU Liang 2018
54
2021 0
YAO Zhongyou
57
2021 0
YAO Wei
45
DNMC
2019 12 0
LIU Chong
51
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2015 0
XU Hongcai
56
WRSA WRSA
PBOC GF
2017 0
WANG Liguo
63
2019 0
SHAO Ruiqing
63
13
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2019 0
HONG Yongmiao
57
2020 0
LI Yinquan
66
U
izhi Inc.
2021 0
HAN Fuling
56
CSRC
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()
2021
LU Hong 2009
57 1994
2009
2021

2014 12
YIN Lianchen
54

KMV
PBOC

2009 11
WU Junhao
55

2016
WU Gaolian
68 PICC
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2016 11 0

WANG Zhe
60

PBOC

2019 0
QIAO Zhimin
68

PBOC

CBRC

2019 0
XU Keshun
54

EMBA

2019 0
SUN Jianwei)
54 )

2019 0
SHANG Wencheng)
45 )
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FU Wanjun
52

@

WU Chongkuan
58

2014

1997

DONG Tiefeng
53

2020 12

PBOC

CBRC

Qu Liang
54

€))

LI Jiayan
57

2018
2019

2005 11

PKF

98/429



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

ooooodd
2020 2020 0
Ql Ye 1992
51
2020 2020 0
YANG Bingbing 2005
50
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®
@
(b)
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Ernst & Young
2016
@
2019 2020
2020 2019
12.52 3.71 11.66 6.85
3.24 0.49 2.05 1.07
15.76 4.20 13.71 7.93
(b)
©
2020
0.78
2.17
1.25
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59

131

193

100

5.8348

2020 12 31
IFRS
17.14 2021

10
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12 31
2020 2019
) ( ) ( ) )
221,475 3,796,082 210,044 3,600,154
(110,778) (1,898,735) (108,126) (1,853,280)
1 110,697 1,897,347 101,918 1,746,875
27,005 462,866 25,977 445,246
(2,682) (45,969) (2,808) (48,129)
2 24,323 416,896 23,169 397,117
3 484 8,296 585 10,027
15 257 42 720
4 5,203 89,179 4,878 83,609
591 10,130 22 377
310 5,313 1,339 22,950
1,082 18,545 986 16,900
142,705 2,445,964 132,939 2,278,574
5 (40,271) (690,245) (38,429) (658,673)
8 (56,733) (972,404) (48,965) (839,260)
(199) (3,411) (382) (6,547)
45,502 779,904 45,163 774,094
(5) (86) - -
45,497 779,819 45,163 774,094
9 (7,592) (130,127) (7,722) (132,355)
37,905 649,692 37,441 641,739
37,824 648,303 37,354 640,248
81 1,388 87 1,491
37,905 649,692 37,441 641,739
) ) ( ) )
10 0.68 11.66 0.68 11.66
10 0.61 10.46 0.62 10.63

103/429

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

12 31
v 2020 2019
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

37,905 649,692 37,441 641,739
22 377 (180) (3,085)

2 34 6 103
23(b) - - @ (34)
24 411 176) (3,017)

(636) (10,901) 3,158 54,128

(219) (3,754) 409 7,010
74) (13,266) (1,982) (33,971)
23(b) 406 6,959 374 (6,410)

(148) (2,537) 48 823

(1,371) (23,499) 1,259 21,579

(1,347) (23,088) 1,083 18,563

36,558 626,604 38,524 660,301

36,480 625,267 38,436 658,793

78 1,337 88 1,508

36,558 626,604 38,524 660,301
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2020 2019
( ) ( ) ) ( )
11 360,287 6,175,319 364,340 6,244,788
12 46,059 789,451 31,358 537,476
9,353 160,310 10,826 185,558
13 69,290 1,187,631 60,270 1,033,028
14 25,264 433,025 13,805 236,618
15 43,592 747,167 6,835 117,152
16 2,942,435 50,433,336 2,644,136 45,320,491
17 100,788 1,727,506 83,723 1,435,012
18 1,670,415 28,630,913 1,433,546 24,570,978
304,908 5,226,123 211,406 3,623,499
222,807 3,818,912 180,005 3,085,286
875 14,998 623 10,678
1,141,825 19,570,881 1,041,512 17,851,516
19 257 4,405 - -
20 23,301 399,379 19,342 331,522
21 11,137 190,888 11,684 200,264
22 1,281 21,956 1,281 21,956
23 19,587 335,721 16,306 279,485
24 45,064 772,397 35,979 616,680
5,368,110 92,009,405 4,733,431 81,131,007
26 241,110 4,132,625 224,838 3,853,723
27 469,345 8,044,573 444,320 7,615,645
28 161,879 2,774,606 166,225 2,849,097
29 4 69 100 1,714
14 25,778 441,835 13,893 238,126
30 14,182 243,079 25,603 438,835
31 3,480,667 59,658,632 3,017,888 51,726,600
32 15,169 259,997 13,667 234,252
33 8,772 150,352 9,322 159,779
34 10,762 184,461 11,069 189,723
35 440,870 7,556,512 371,904 6,374,435
36 44,574 763,998 48,548 832,113
4,913,112 84,210,740 4,347,377 74,514,042

105/429
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12 3
\ 2020 2019
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
37 54,032 926,108 52,489 899,661
38 109,062 1,869,323 70,067 1,200,948
64,906 1,112,489 64,906 1,112,489
39,993 685,480 - -
39 58,434 1,001,559 53,533 917,556
40 1,393 23,876 2,737 46,912
41 26,245 449,839 26,245 449,839
41 67,702 1,160,412 59,417 1,018,407
136,581 2,340,998 120,494 2,065,267
453,449 7,772,116 384,982 6,598,591
1,549 26,550 1,072 18,374
454,998 7,798,666 386,054 6,616,966
5,368,110 92,009,405 4,733,431 81,131,007

2021 26

106/429



2020 1 1

2020 12

2019 1 1

2019 12
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v
52,489 64,906 - 5,161 53,533 2,737 26,245 59,417 120,494 384,982 1,072 386,054
- - - - - - - - 37,824 37,824 81 37,905
40 - - - - - (1,344) - - - (1,344) ®)  (@,347)
- - - - - - - - - - 400 400
- - 39,993 - - - - - - 39,993 - 39,993
1,543 - - (998) 4,901 - - - - 5,446 - 5,446
42
- - - - - - - 8,285 (8,285) - - -
- - - - - - - - (11,233)  (11,233) @) (11,234)
- - - - - - - - (2,219)  (2,219) - (2,219)
31 54,032 64,906 39,993 4,163 58,434 1,393 26,245 67,702 136,581 453,449 1,549 454,998
-
52,489 29,947 5,161 53,533 1,655 24,371 54,036 100,296 321,488 985 322,473
_ - - - - - - 37,354 37,354 87 37,441
20 - - - - 1,082 - - - 1,082 1 1,083
- 34,959 - - - - - - 34,959 - 34,959
42
- - - - - 1,874 - (1,874) - - -
_ - - - - - 5,381 (5,381) - - -
_ - - - - - - (8,451) (8,451) ) (8,452)
_ - - - - - - (1,450) (1,450) - (1,450)
31 52,489 64,906 5,161 53,533 2,737 26,245 59,417 120,494 384,982 1,072 386,054
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2020 1 1

2020 12

2019 1 1

2019 12

v
40
42
31
v
40
42
31
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ooooOoog

899,661 1,112,489 - 88,460 917,556 46,912 449,839 1,018,407 2,065,267 6,598,591 18,374 6,616,966
- - - - - - - - 648,303 648,303 1,388 649,692

- - - - - (23,036) - - - (23,036) (51)  (23,088)
- - - - - - - - - - 6,856 6,856
- - 685,480 - - - - - - 685,480 - 685,480
26,447 - - (17,106) 84,003 - - - - 93,344 - 93,344
- - - - - - - 142,005  (142,005) - - -

- - - - - - - - (192,534) (192,534) (17)  (192,551)

- - - - - - - - (38,034)  (38,034) - (38,034)
926,108 1,112,489 685,480 71,354 1,001,559 23,876 449,839 1,160,412 2,340,998 7,772,116 26,550 7,798,666
899,661 513,292 88,460 917,556 28,367 417,719 926,177 1,719,073 5,510,304 16,883 5,527,187
- - - - - - - 640,248 640,248 1,491 641,739
- - - - 18,545 - - - 18,545 17 18,563
- 599,197 - - - - - - 599,197 - 599,197
_ _ _ - - 32,120 - (32,120) - - -
_ - - - - - 92,230 (92,230) - - -
- - - - - - - (144,850)  (144,850) (A7)  (144,867)

- - - - - - - (24,853) (24,853) - (24,853)
899,661 1,112,489 88,460 917,556 46,912 449,839 1,018,407 2,065,267 6,598,591 18,374 6,616,966
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12 31
2020 2019
( ) ( ) ) ¢ )
37,905 649,692 37,441 641,739
56,733 972,404 48,965 839,260
199 3,411 382 6,547
5,164 88,511 4,664 79,941
(767) (13,146) (828) (14,192)
15) (257) 42) (720)
503 8,621 112) (1,920)
(57,032) (977,528) (54,632) (936,392)
(591) (10,130) 2) @G77)
5 86 - -
(733) (12,564) (1,021) (17,500)
(139) (2,382) 2,162 37,057
11,669 200,007 15,221 260,888
487 8,347 489 8,381
23 394 25 429
7,592 130,127 7,722 132,355
61,003 1,045,591 60,414 1,035,496
1,990 34,109 (42,733) (732,444)
5,781 99,086 20,549 352,210
(13,763) (235,898) (6,928) (118,746)
(349,060) (5,982,888) (331,235)  (5,677,368)
(36,770) (630,238) 30,913 529,849
(26,405) (452,582) (35,775) (613,184)
(418,227) (7,168,411) (365,209)  (6,259,682)
25,957 444,903 (45,587) (781,361)
(3,699) (63,401) 13,820 236,875
(11,451) (196,270) (14,793) (253,552)
17,271 296,025 (41,570) (712,510)
452,197 7,750,657 446,317 7,649,873
(11,297) (193,631) (10,239) (175,496)
5,403 92,607 21,947 376,172
474,381 8,130,890 369,895 6,340,000
117,157 2,008,071 65,100 1,115,814
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v 2020 2019
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
702,616 12,042,838 637,019 10,918,506
55,630 953,498 59,415 1,018,373
13 223 305 5,228
(924,959)  (15,853,797) (766,714)  (13,141,478)
(6,860) (117,580) (4,448) (76,239)
(173,560)  (2,974,818) (74,423)  (1,275,610)
400 6,856 - -
39,993 685,480 34,959 599,197
514,774 8,823,226 224,259 3,843,799
(439,051)  (7,525,334) (292,293)  (5,009,902)
(12,981) (222,494) (15,732) (269,646)
(13,453) (230,584) (9,902) (169,720)
(2,924) (50,117) (2,744) (47,032)
86,758 1,487,032 (61,453)  (1,053,304)
(2,778) (47,615) 595 10,198
« ) 46(a) 27,577 472,670 (70,181)  (1,202,902)
117,499 2,013,933 187,680 3,216,835
12 31 46(b) 145,076 2,486,603 117,499 2,013,933
g g
163,990 2,810,789 161,077 2,760,860
g g
(90,899)  (1,558,009) (93,880)  (1,609,103)

110/429



1992 18 A 2010
H 2013 12

CBIRC
No.B0007H111000001
N0.91110000100011743X
25 25

19
CBIRC

2021 26

IFRS

IFRS
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IFRS GAAP
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1.1 2020
2020 (2018 )

IFRS

IFRS IAS
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS

IFRS 16 Covid-19

1ASB

IFRS

IAS I1AS
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IFRS IAS 39 IFRS
RFR
IFRS 16
2021
IFRS 16
2020
2020
1.2 2020
IFRS IAS 39  IFRS 7 - 2021
IFRS IFRS 16
IFRS 2022
IAS 16 - 2022
IAS 37 - 2022
1AS 2023
1AS IFRS 2023
1AS 2023
IFRS 17 2023
IFRS 10  IAS 28
IFRS 2018-2020 2020 IFRS IFRS IFRS 2022

16 IAS 41
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IFRS 9
IBOR )
RFR

RFR

IFRS

IAS 16

IAS 37

IAS

I1AS

IAS

IFRS 17

IFRS 10

IAS 39

IAS 28
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IFRS 7 IFRS 4 IFRS 16
IBOR
IFRS IAS 39
1BOR
IFRS IAS 39 ( )
IAS 37 IFRIC 21
Day
IFRS
IAS 37 IFRIC 21
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 17 IFRS
IFRS 17

IFRS 10 IAS 28
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15%

8.1
30 35 % 2.8% 3.2%
% % 19.0% 32.3%
10 % % 9.5% 19.4%
8.2
25
8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3
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2020 2019

5,073 5,020

616 1,470

1,083 3,208

@

76,214 70,854
77,477 72,578
2,295 2,020
5,524 4,444

964 2,377
52,229 48,073
221,475 210,044
6,414 8,012
10,271 12,712
4,270 6,520
58,045 47,074
19,643 16,880
466 1,707
11,669 15,221
110,778 108,126
110,697 101,918

767 2019 828
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2020 2019
12,245 14,163
3,288 2,744
2,518 634
1,701 1,538
1,626 1,909
1,614 1,446
1,529 1,360
2,484 2,183
27,005 25,977
1,842 1,908
150 144
690 756
2,682 2,808
24,323 23,169
2020 2019

(369) (355)
836 920
467 565
@ @

19 21
484 585
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2020 2019
5,016 4,622
(785) (1,915)
198 189
774 1,982
5,203 4,878
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2020 2019

13,003 12,759
1,611 2,167
991 881
574 443
154 110
2,910 2,041
19,243 18,401
2,677 2,429
1,651 1,485
524 400
492 565
487 489
312 350
6,143 5,718
1,483 1,400
©) 13,402 12,910
40,271 38,429

9.90 2019 9.50
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2020
- 1,520 740 - 2,260 46 11 2,417
(i) - 298 223 - 521 12 111 644
() : : - : . - - -
() - 215 - - 215 - - 215
- 430 - - 430 - - 430
- 420 - - 420 - - 420
- 426 - - 426 - - 426
- 430 - - 430 - - 430
- 1,600 660 - 2,260 46 111 2,417
330 - - - 330 - - 330
340 - - - 340 - - 340
- 734 1,572 - 2,306 46 111 2,463
- 736 1,095 - 1,831 46 111 1,988
- 704 1,280 - 1,984 44 111 2,139
() - - - - - - - -
() - - - - - - - -
() . : - . . - - -
() - - - - - - - -
() : : - : . - - -
() 215 - - - 215 - - 215
() 360 - - - 360 - - 360
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2019
- 952 1,228 - 2,180 44 126 2,350
370 - - - 370 - - 370
271 - - - 271 - - 271
360 - - - 360 - - 360
150 - - - 150 - - 150
93 - - - 93 - - 93
- 984 1,195 - 2,179 44 126 2,349
290 - - - 290 - - 290
75 - - - 75 - - 75
- 363 570 - 933 21 64 1,018
- 364 456 - 820 18 64 902
- 348 519 - 867 21 64 952
- 200 150 - 350 16 105 471
284 - - - 284 - - 284
216 - - - 216 - - 216
343 - - - 343 - - 343
- 348 570 - 918 - - 918
- 349 456 - 805 - - 805
- 264 519 - 783 - - 783

141/429
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( ) 2020 25  CBIRC
( ) 2020 25  CBIRC
2020 26 2020 2020 11
CBIRC
2020 23
2020 28
2020 28
2020 28
2020 27
2020 11
2019 30 2019
CBIRC

() 2020 12 31
2020 12 31

2020 12 31
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3,000,001
3,500,001
4,000,001
4,500,001

5,000,001

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

5,000,000
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2020 2019
2,492 1,899
23,092 27,512
205 248
499 488
26,288 30,147
2020 2019
1 -
2 2
2 3
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2020 2019
53,197 47,821
156 (35)
(334) 439
772 (314)
973 752
1,969 302
56,733 48,965
v 2020 2019
10,917 13,727
23(b) (2,876) (5,887)
9(b) (449) (118)
7,592 7,722
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2020 2019
45,497 45,163

25% 250

11,374 11,291

(10) ®)

136 88

982 527

321 309

1,439 924

(i) (4,762) (4,370)
8,041 7,840

(449) (118)

7,592 7,722
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2020 2019
37,824 37,354
2,219 1,450
35,605 35,904
52,746 52,489
0.68 0.68

2020 2019
52,489 52,489

257

52,746 52,489

2020 2019
35,605 35,904
850 899
36,455 36,803
52,746 52,489
7,313 7,264
60,059 59,753
0.61 0.62
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
4,471 4,355
@) 293,540 297,528
(b) 56,132 57,546
©) 2,305 3,732
3,693 1,050
360,141 364,211
146 129
360,287 364,340
PBOC
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
9. 00% 10.50%
5. 00% 5. 00%
PBOC 2020 12

1471429



12

148/429

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2020 2019
12 31 12 31
29,185 12,868
314 528
16,980 18,399
46,479 31,795
59 6
46,538 31,801
(479) (443)
46,059 31,358
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2020 2019

12 31 12 31
14,502 4,160
17,702 29,777
37,216 26,291
69,420 60,228
179 213
69,599 60,441
(309) @a7n)
69,290 60,270
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2020 12 31
1,110,897 5,821 (6,340)
21,022 523 (610)
1,055,992 18,144 (18,499)
20,981 774 (246)
1,405 2 (83)
2,210,297 25,264 (25,778)

2019 12 31
1,298,443 3,655 (3.680)
29,168 229 (197)
1,365,001 9,483 (9,557)
78,260 392 (386)
4,254 46 (73)
2,775,126 13,805 (13,893)
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(®)

2020 2019

12 31 12 31
2,504 492
4,808 3,449
21 317
2,277 1,710
9,610 5,968

CCR
CCR
CVA CCR
2019
©
2020 12 31
3,286 2019 12 31 14
2019 12 31
118 2019 12 31 95

2020
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(b) IBOR
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS
RFR
LIBOR
RFR
2020 12 31
2020 1ASB IFRS IAS 39 IFRS

- 2021
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
13,262 2,000
30,331 4,702
5 126
43,598 6,828
3 8
43,601 6,836
©)) o
43,592 6,835
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
20,074 2,062
23,524 4,766
43,598 6,828
3 8
43,601 6,836
©® €))
43,592 6,835
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2020 2019

12 31 12 31
1,627,339 1,463,630
652 488
492,444 414,211
171,336 158,871
173,565 140,545
445,935 443,881
1,283,280 1,157,508
29,938 26,403
68,273 64,175
98,211 90,578
3,009,482 2,712,204
8,486 8,160
3,017,968 2,720,364
(75,533) (76,228)
2,942,435 2,644,136
(594) (438)
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()
2020 12 31
%

313,427 10.41% 106,816
294,595 9.79%% 121,503
224,450 7.46% 154,223
189,785 6.31% 66,502
127,522 4.24% 49,657
107,987 3.50% 32,520
97,132 3.23% 4,765
88,535 2.94% 37,660
54,100 1.80% 17,062
45,532 1.51% 12,163
114,212 3.79% 36,048
1,657,277 55.07% 638,919
1,283,280 42.64% 653,526
68,925 2.29% 65,161
3,009,482 100.00% 1,357,606

8,486

3,017,968

(75,533)

2,942,435

(594)
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2019 12 31
%

270,177 9.96% 102,716
261,465 9.64% 111,707
211,918 7.81% 130,785
170,068 6.27% 65,501
113,140 4.17% 42,016
94,793 3.50% 35,149
87,226 3.22% 36,653
76,907 2.84% 12,380
45,948 1.69% 13,517
41,459 1.53% 12,962
116,932 4.31% 45,051
1,490,033 54.94% 608,437
1,157,508 42.68% 550,653
64,663 2.38% 62,914
2,712,204 100.00% 1,222,004

8,160

2,720,364

(76,228)

2,644,136

(438)
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2020 12 31 10
2020 12 31
12 ( (
ECL ECL) ECL)
13,608 (3,378) (5,591) (6,106) 2,689 1,816
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
941,130 852,885
710,746 637,315
1,017,960 862,021
339,646 359,983
3,009,482 2,712,204
8,486 8,160
3,017,968 2,720,364
(75,533) (76,228)
2,942,435 2,644,136
(594) (438)
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@
2020 12 31
%
652,565 21.69% 266,093
532,348 17.69% 296,164
396,086 13.16% 263,189
387,332 12.87% 223,419
373,595 12.41% 212,662
117,580 3.91% 80,952
98,819 3.28% 9,916
451,157 14.99% 5,211
3,009,482 100.00% 1,357,606
2019 12 31
%

556,102 20.49% 219,717
447,249 16.49% 256,676
349,559 12.89% 199,916
348,706 12.86% 200,481
341,541 12.59% 220,143
121,928 4.50% 80,011
96,174 3.55% 38,005
450,945 16.63% 7,055
2,712,204 100.00% 1,222,004
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10
2020 12 31
(12 ECL) ECL) ECL)
5,383 (9,100) (2,930) (3,140)
5,225 (5,561) (3,418) (3,006)
6,160 (2,592) (2,499) (3,355)
3,365 (3,400) (3,326) (1,786)
4,699 (4,955) (3,685) (2,843)
24,832 (25,608) (15,858) (14,130)
2019 12 31
1z ED ECL) ECL)
6,831 (6,439) (4,847) (3,625)
5,031 (4,094) (2.,461) (3,218)
5,797 (2,159) (2,435) (3,032)
4,951 (2,849) (4,212) (2,707)
4,155 (4,219) (1,829) (1,811)
26,765 (19,760) (15,784) (14,393)

49(b)
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O)
2020 12 31
14,474 12,760 1,200 30 28,464
5,221 2,964 3,535 582 12,302
10,367 5,765 4,176 1,386 21,694
1,287 284 564 1 2,136
31,349 21,773 9,475 1,999 64,596
276 - - - 276
31,625 21,773 9,475 1,999 64,872
" 1.05% 0.72% 0.31% 0.07% 2.15%
2019 12 31
15,557 11,118 323 33 27,031
4,954 4,953 3,726 609 14,242
5,692 4,973 4,421 1,429 16,515
1,434 1,449 837 36 3,756
27,637 22,493 9,307 2,107 61,544
69 - - - 69
27,706 22,493 9,307 2,107 61,613
1.01% 0.83% 0.34% 0.08% 2.26%
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2020 12 31
(12 ECL) ECL) ECL)
2,837,009 124,772 47,701 3,009,482 1.59%
6,649 1,374 463 8,486
2,843,658 126,146 48,164 3,017,968
(31,192) (21,037) (23,304) (75,533)
2,812,466 105,109 24,860 2,942,435
2019 12 31
G ECL) ECL)
2,546,902 123,090 42,212 2,712,204 1.56%
6,701 1,158 301 8,160
2,553,603 124,248 42,513 2,720,364
(24,060) (27,574) (24,594) (76,228)
2,529,543 96,674 17,919 2,644,136

161/429
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2019

2019 12 31

Q)
2020
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2020

@z Ebh ECL) ECL)
(24,060) (27,574) (24,594) (76,228)
(2.112) 2,049 63 -
988 (1,072) 84 -
216 10,315 (10,531) -
(9,488) (7,133) (42,506) (59,127)
3,260 2,378 202 5,930
- - 20,310 20,310
- - 36,013 36,013
- - (3,202) (3,202)
- - 767 767
4 - - 4
(31,192) (21,037) (23,304) (75,533)

2019

a2  Eb C e ECL)
(23,335) (21,264) (22,610) (67,209)
(2,089) 2,038 51 _
742 (787) 45 -
156 2,233 (2,389) -
(3.899) (10,693) (38,804) (53,396)
4,365 899 311 5,575
- - 13,826 13,826
- - 26,576 26,576
- - (2,428) (2,428)
_ _ 828 828
(24,060) (27.,574) (24,594) (76.,228)

2019 12 31 438

162/429
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
7,659 11,888
245 898
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
118,247 99,825
(15,442) (14,662)
102,805 85,163
1,128 936
(3,145) (2,376)
100,788 83,723
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
32,149 23,619
25,745 20,418
20,825 17,123
15,752 12,628
11,420 9,745
12,356 16,292
118,247 99,825
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€
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2020 2019

12 31 12 31
©) 304,908 211,406
® 222,807 180,005
©) 875 623
(d) 1,141,825 1,041,512
1,670,415 1,433,546

2020 2019

12 31 12 31
O) 33,040 18,602
() 1 4
() 271,867 192,800
304,908 211,406
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(i)
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
80 132
9,291 4,975
[©)) 19,985 9,436
1,770 2,624
1,914 1,435
@ 33,040 18,602
©) 4,391 4,716
2,194 1,703
28,649 13,886
33,040 18,602
(€D
@
25(a)
(©)]
)
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
1 4

165/429
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)
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
212,937 159,760
2,620 2,019
56,310 31,021
271,867 192,800
®
()
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
59,441 40,880
(€} 75,493 51,640
) 51,310 56,371
349 98
12,535 7,574
19,786 19,777
218,914 176,340
3,893 3,665
3@ 222,807 180,005
®) 50,534 43,019
33,872 29,884
168,380 133,321
218,914 176,340
3,893 3,665
222,807 180,005

166/429
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(3 2020 12 31
2019 12 31

*

®

2020

2020

2019

2019

()

12 31

12 31
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456
25(a)
2019
(12 EC) ECL) ECL)
(708) - (118) (826)
1 - o) -
(292) - (15) (307)
543 - 98 641
36 - - 36
(420) - (36) (456)
2019
(12 ECL) ECL) ECL)
(384) - - (384)
2 - @ -
(343) - (116) (459)
20 - - 20
A - - A
(708) - (118) (826)
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©
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
i) 875 623
() 23 21
852 602
875 623
(O)
2020 12 31 875 2019 12 31 623
2020 14 2019 11
)
@
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
O) 921,967 773,460
() 207,486 256,649
1,129,453 1,030,109
17,510 15,786
1,146,963 1,045,895
(5,138) (4,383)
1,141,825 1,041,512
() 159,519 139,562
21,710 20,905
964,796 886,164
1,124,315 1,025,726
17,510 15,786
1,141,825 1,041,512

168/429
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31

386,220 340,733

@ 333,697 228,028
©) 168,370 183,628
4,777 1,891

23,141 5,486

5,762 13,694

921,967 773,460

15,621 13,140

®) 937,588 786,600
(1,937) (1,657)

935,651 784,943

944,985 796,461

25(a)

169/429
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)
2020
(az  Eb ¢ ECL) ECL)

2020 (2,513) (101) (1,769) (4,383)
(30) 30 - -

179 (179) - _

6 47 (53) -

(1,003) (323) (1,017) (2,343)

1,412 54 105 1,571

17 - - 17

2020 12 31 (1,932) 472) (2.734) (5.138)

2019
(12 ECL) ¢ ECL) ECL)

2019 (3,531) _ (1,163) (4,604)
3 ) _ _

8 _ ®) -

_ (98) (723) (821)

1,010 _ 125 1,135

(©) - - (€)

2019 12 31 (2,513) (101) (1,769) (4,383)

170/429
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@
2020 2019
12 31 12 31

4,680 4,680

2,267 2,267

105 105

70 70

156 156

R 105 105

5,000 5,000

600 -

12,983 12,383

/
5,900 90% 90%
2,267 100% 100%
150 70% 70%
100 70% 70%
156 100% 100%
150 70% 70%
5,000 100% 100%
1,000 60% 60%
(i) 2020 10

60 600

171/429
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2020
2020 12 31
20
2020
2020 12 31
2020
2020 12 31
2020
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
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2020
262
®)
257
) )
(

12,949 5,657 2,210 6,667 4,498 31,981
276 3,117 405 1,959 488 6,245
301 (170) (301) - - (170)

- - - (378) (196) (574)

- 477) - @ Q@ (479)
13,526 8,127 2,314 8,247 4,789 37,003
(4,104) (408) - (4,895) (3,073) (12,480)
(402) (223) - (578) (448) (1,651)

- 12 - - - 12

- - - 372 169 541

- 37 - 1 1 39
(4,506) (582) - (5,100) (3,351) (13,539)
(159) - - - - (159)
o - - - - @
(163) - - - - (163)
8,857 7,545 2,314 3,147 1,438 23,301

172/429
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2019 12 31

2019

2019 12 31

2019
2019 12 31

2019 12 31

( ) 2020 12 31

( )2020 12 31

2019 12 31

10-50

10

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

(@D) (@D)
(
11,737 5,725 2,100 6,195 4,172 29,929
69 170 1,256 871 459 2,825
1,146 - (1,146) - - -
®) (332) - (399) (133) (867)
- 94 - - - 94
12,949 5,657 2,210 6,667 4,498 31,981
(3,703) (240) - (4,789) (2,797) (11,529)
(404) (200) - (480) (401) (1,485)
3 38 - 374 125 540
- ®) - - - ©)
(4,104) (408) - (4,895) (3,073) (12,480)
(159) - - - - (159)
(159) - - - - (159)
8,686 5,249 2,210 1,772 1,425 19,342
42 2019 12 31 245
7,545
5,249
V25(a)
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
8,547 8,454
310 232
8,857 8,686

173/429
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2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31
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14,023 66 14,089
2,524 12 2,536
(937) 14) (951)
13) - (13)
15,597 64 15,661
(2.,388) an (2,405)
(2,662) (15) (2,677)
548 9 557
1 - 1
(4,501) (23) (4,524)
11,096 41 11,137
11,768 61 11,829
2,557 8 2,565
(303) ®) (306)
1 - 1
14,023 66 14,089
(2,412) an (2,429)
24 - 24
(2.388) an (2,405)
11,635 49 11,684

174/429
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
6,019 6,019
(4,738) (4,738)
1,281 1,281
CDB PBOC 1999 18
CDB CIB
29 137 1999 18
CoU
12% 2019  13%
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
/ /
(
78,350 19,587 65,221 16,306
- - ® @
78,350 19,587 65,215 16,305

175/429
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2020

2020

2019

2019

)

)

12 31
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/
® )
(
14,664 (243) 1,884 16,305
2,594 40 242 2,876
66 340 - 406
17,324 137 2,126 19,587
/
® &)
(
9,724 (674) 1,744 10,794
5,042 705 140 5,887
(102) (274) - (376)
14,664 (243) 1,884 16,305

176/429
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(k)

12 31

799.36

2020

2019 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2020 2019
12 31 12 3
@ 30,903 24,288
4,661 2,988
2,160 1,646
1,698 1,326
896 871
703 795
390 478
89 88
3,564 3,499
45,064 35,979
2020 12 31
2019 12 31 861.58
2020 12 31
2019 12 31 2020

1771429
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2020 2019

12 31 12 31
238,751 221,480
2,359 3,358
241,110 224,838

2020 2019

12 31 12 31
149,996 170,505
317,300 269,224
226 1,836
467,522 441,565
1,823 2,755
469,345 444,320
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2020 2019

12 31 12 31
115,334 89,480
1,004 1,004
45,072 74,625
161,410 165,109
469 1,116
161,879 166,225

2020 2019

12 31 12 31
4 100
4 100
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C))
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
( )
7,047 23,064
930 -
5,895 2,390
298 131
14,170 25,585
12 18
14,182 25,603
(k)
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
( )

9,958 14,771
4,212 10,814
14,170 25,585
12 18
14,182 25,603

180/429




EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

32

2020 2019
12 31 12 31
( )

850,381 783,859
274,087 217,892
1,124,468 1,001,751
1,530,885 1,262,657
526,723 466,413
2,057,608 1,729,070
251,964 232,522
3,182 21,682
3,437,222 2,985,025
43,445 32,863
3,480,667 3,017,888

2020 2019

12 31 12 31

( )
@ 12,626 11,929
(b) 1,310 620
©) 1,233 1,118
15,169 13,667
@

2020 12 31

181/429
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©

)

)

12

SRB
SRB

SRB

SRB

31
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SRB
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
(
1,233 1,118
2020 2019
(
1,118 843
110 77
44 33
(22) 180
an (15)
1,233 1,118
V40

oOoOooodn
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(

)

2020 12 31

)

(b)

2019 12 31

©
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
4.00% 4.00%
6.00% 5.88%
22.80 22.80
2020 12 31
(575) 631
653 (461)
2019 12 31
(301) 330
356 (251)
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184/429

2020 2019
12 31 12 31
( )
5,617 6,446
2,705 2,446
450 430
8,772 9,322
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
( )
2,636 2,611
2,305 2,283
1,893 1,937
2,601 2,711
2,916 3,292
12,351 12,834
10,762 11,069
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Tier
@
2027
() 2012
2022

() 2020 12 31

15

67
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2020 2019

12 31 12 31

(

@ 6,700 6,700
(b) 5,795 55,782
© 41,430 39,983
(@ 22,884 27,547
) 313,045 199,057
® 31,762 19,249
© 17,412 20,428
439,028 368,746
1,842 3,158
440,870 371,904

2020 2019

12 31 12 31

(
) 6,700 6,700
6,700 6,700
5. 250
6,871 2019 12 31 6,998

185/429
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ooo0000
Q)
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
(
2020 () - 27,999
2020 () - 21,995
2021 11 () 4,996 4,990
2022 () 799 798
5,795 55,782
( ) 2017 23 280 4.00%
( ) 2017 21 220 4.20%
() 2018 11 50 4.12%
( ) 2019 18 8 3.49%
( ) 2020 12 31 5,840 2019 12 31 56,058
(c) Tier
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
(
2027 Tier () 27,990 27,988
2027 Tier () 11,995 11,995
2030 Tier () 1,445 -
41,430 39,983
( ) 2017 10 Tier 280 4.60
2022
( ) 2017 25 10 Tier 120 4.70
2022 29
( ) 2020 16 10 Tier 16
4.39% 2025 15
() 2020 12 31 Tier 41,935 2019 12 31 40,935

186/429



©)

2017

2020
2020

2020

2020 12 31

2017 17

0.50 1.00

)

30

)

30

A
2020 12 31

() 2020 12 31

v) 2020

©

2020 329

(2019 216,490

2017
2023
1.50

105

20

5,801
1,542,813,979

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

2020 2019
12 31 12 31
(
22,884 27,547
V38
(
24,826 5,174 30,000
(64) (13) @)
24,762 5,161 29,923
2,786 - 2,786
@ - @
27,547 5,161 32,708
783 - 783
() (5.,446) (998) (6.,444)
22,884 4,163 27,047
17 300 A
16 0.20
1.80 2.00
30 15 130
4.36
A 30 20
3.76
2019 12 31 965,000
2019 12 31 228,101
300 (2019 : 150 )
508,600

2020

187/429
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ooooOoog
392,400 (2019 285,690 ) 2020 12 31
310,619 2019 12 31 196,493
®
2020 12 31
@
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
(
2020 () - 3,472
2020 13 ) ) 3,484
2021 13 () 2,407 2,342
2021 13 () 1,958 2,001
2021 19 ) 1,958 2,083
2022 24 ( ) 3,262 3’484
2022 12 11 () 3,262 3,472
2023 () 4,565 -
17,412 20,428
( ) 2017 500
2.50

( ) 2017 500

2.09%
( ) 2018 300

0.43%
( ) 2018 300

3.18%
( ) 2018 12 300

3.19%
( ) 2019 17 500

3.13%
() 2019 12 500

2.59%
( ) 2020 27 700

1.10%
( ) 2020 12 31 17,432 2019 12 31

20,478

36

188/429



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
( )
@ 5,222 6,710
(b) 14,302 17,597
6,034 4,876
© 4,280 2,751
3,364 1,761
421 354
21 21
10,930 14,478
44,574 48,548
@
(b) 2020 12 31 10
14,302

2019 12 31 17,597

(c) 2020 12 31
126 2019 12 31 255

189/429
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37
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
41,353 39,810
12,679 12,679
54,032 52,489
H A
38
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
( )
(@ M © @) 64,906 64,906
35(d) 4,163 5,161
( 39,993 -
109,062 70,067
@
)
2015 200 20,000
2016 100 10,000
2019 350 35,000
65,000
©4)
64,906

190/429
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(b)
)

)

)

)

Tier

)

Tier Tier 5.125%
Tier 5.125%
A A

CBIRC

)
CBIRC

191/429



©
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CBIRC
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2020 2020 12 31
C ) ( ) ( )
650 64,906 - - 650 64,906
2019 2019 12 31
(¢ ) C ) (¢ )
300 29,947 350 34,959 650 64,906
2020 18
400 2020 22
100 4.60%
CBIRC
Tier

192/429

Tier
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39

O

193/429

2020 2019

12 31 12 31
453,449 384,982
348,550 320,076
64,906 64,906
39,993 -
1,549 1,072
1,549 1,072

2020 2019

12 31 12 31
58,434 53,533
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40
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
16 14
(281) (303)
(265) (289)
1,739 2,959
928 1,998
811 961
(81) 67
1,658 3,026
1,393 2,737
ECL
2019 1,094 654 10 20 (123) 1,655
904 307 4 47 (180) 1,082
2020 1,998 961 14 67 (303) 2,737
(1,070) (150) 2 (148) 22 (1,344)
2020 12 31 928 811 16 (81) (281) 1,393

194/429



41
@

50%

(b)

42
(a) 2021 26

7,492
2021

54,032

(b) 2020
1,874
50%
5,380

(c) 2020 27

2019 18

(d) 2020

2019 25

(e) 2020 30

2019 13

1,680

769

1,060

390

11,233

50

10%

1.5%
2020 12 31
4.8
11,347 10
2019 12 31
5.12
10 2.14
2.20
4.80%
5.30 (
5.30%
3.90
3.90

195/429

2.10
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@
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
( ) ( )
211,085 211,085 159,760 159,760
30,282 30,282 18,686 18,686
205,206 205,206 256,569 256,569
149,205 149,205 119,439 119,439
595,778 595,778 554,454 554,454
(b)
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
836,273 2019 12 31 778,837
2020 2020
12 31 200 2019 771
2020 2,518
2019 634

196/429



©

2020

2020 12 31

2019 12 31

44

9,106
2020

2020

197/429
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2020 12 31

2021
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IFRS

31 2019 12 31 13

2020 12 31

2020 12 31
2,590

2020 12 31
2019 12 31 614

2019

198/429
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oOoOooodn
2020 12
2020 12 31
1,998 2019 12 31

251
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Tier

2013

CBIRC

9.50%

11.50%

Tier

Tier
CBIRC
2018
Tier
Tier
7.50% 8.50% 10.50%
0TC
CVA

GAAP

199/429
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oOoOooodn

Tier

8.50%
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31

Tier 349,479 320,793

54,032 52,489

63,990 61,431

26,245 26,245

67,702 59,417

136,581 120,494

929 717

Tier (3.457) (2,930)

(1,281) (1,281)

(2,160) (1,646)

(16) (©))

Tier 346,022 317,863

Tier 105,023 65,002

Tier 104,899 64,906

124 96

Tier 451,045 382,865

Tier 82,485 82,640

Tier 44,525 46,683

36,566 35,766

1,394 191

533,530 465,505

3,837,489 3,456,054

Tier 9.02% 9.20%

Tier 11.75% 11.08%

13.90% 13.47%

200/429
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@
2020 2019
12 31 12 31

12 31 145,076 117,499
117,499 187,680
27,577 (70,181)

®

2020 2019
12 31 12 31
4,471 4,355
56,132 57,546
40,483 26,581
43,990 29,017
145,076 117,499
47
@
@
2007 29 CIC
2,000
CIC CIC
2003 12 16
828,209

CIC

V 47(b)

201/429



)

91100000102063897J

202/429

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0(E25668)

ooooood
V 47(b)
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V 47(b)
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(V)
)
cIc
2020 2019
1,521 1,051
(3,411) (3,548)
cIC
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
13,098 9,552
- 51
22,233 13,909
7,047 3,764
15,505 997
2,599 694
221,493 170,418
56,471 36,270
39,852 27,611
125,170 106,537
3,548 419
98,208 81,621
56,025 70,629
9,072 3,678
6,523 2,970
51,476 14,586
249 30

206/429
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OooooOodd
)
(
47(a))
2020 12 31
- 422 1,242 1,664
@27) (339) (444) (910)
2020 12 31
- 3,200 1,000 4,200
- - 21 21
- 385 1,900 2,285
- 5,523 15,356 20,879
105 40,613 2,948 43,666
- 8,527 1,982 10,509
105 40 213 358
- - 98 98
- 32,046 655 32,701
- 5 2,633 2,638
105 49,726 23,858 73,689
- 17,173 9,769 26,942
. - 23 23
4,284 9,815 39,412 53,511
4,284 26,988 49,204 80,476
2020 12 31
180 - - 180
(
47(a))
2019 12 31
- 533 501 1,034
(159) 371) (331) (861)

208/429
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2019 12 31

2020 12 31
2019 12 31
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- 508 2,002 2,510

- - 12 12

- 7,251 9,064 16,315

178 8,112 98 8,388

- 7,727 - 7,727

178 385 - 563

- - 98 98

- 113,480 256 113,736

- 3,261 - 3,261

178 132,612 11,432 144,222

- 3,147 1,528 4,675

- - 11 11
4,652 15,696 35,638 55,986
- 693 167 860
4,652 19,536 37,344 61,532
180 - - 180

180

209/429

180
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2020 12 31
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
30,687 30,970
1,015 1,037
486 567
2020
78 32 161
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
8,708 8,867
8,738 8,994

210/429
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v 2020 2019
12 31 12 31
360,131 364,184
40,231 28,648
9,353 10,826
74,769 60,466
25,262 13,754
43,587 6,709
2,939,071 2,642,764
1,658,026 1,425,223
299,768 207,634
216,324 175,565
870 618
1,141,064 1,041,406
19 12,983 12,383
15,698 14,041
11,096 11,599
1,281 1,281
18,444 15,446
43,593 34,243
5,253,525 4,641,567

211/429
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31

241,059 224,758
473,926 450,716
89,948 108,045
25,694 13,821
10,115 24,542
3,478,730 3,016,555
14,874 13,494
7,708 8,729
10,723 10,986
433,749 366,061
18,698 22,558
4,805,224 4,260,265
54,032 52,489
109,062 70,067
64,906 64,906
39,993 -
58,434 53,533
1,509 2,617
26,245 26,245
66,015 58,523
133,004 117,828
448,301 381,302
5,253,525 4,641,567
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2020
22,059 57,769 30,869 - 110,697
29,615 (15,583) (14,032) - -
51,674 42,186 16,837 - 110,697
6,929 16,331 1,063 - 24,323
- - 484 - 484
- - 1 14 15
(56) 7 5,225 27 5,203
- - 591 - 591
268 69 @7 - 310
818 85 51 128 1,082
59,633 58,678 24,225 169 142,705
(16,312) (22,115) (1,676) (168) (40,271)
(22,497) (33,617) (619) - (56,733)
(205) 11 G) - (199)
- - - ®) ©)
20,619 2,957 21,925 0 45,497
2,377 2,583 204 - 5,164
2,675 3,921 264 - 6,860
2020 12 31
2,135,482 1,409,348 1,801,709 703 5,347,242
2,755,106 859,093 1,295,799 3,003 4,913,001
2019
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25,445 55,890 20,583 - 101,918
21,510 (17,459) (4,051) - -
46,955 38,431 16,532 - 101,918
6,100 16,115 954 - 23,169
- - 585 - 585
_ , - 42 42
(862) 6 5,638 96 4,878
- - 22 - 22
297 75 967 - 1,339
785 56 67 78 986
53,275 54,683 24,765 216 132,939
(15,703) (20,465) (2,136) (125) (38,429)
(20,562) (28,306) ©7) - (48,965)
(340) (15) - ©n (382)
16,670 5,897 22,532 64 45,163
2,072 2,360 232 - 4,664
2,284 1,976 188 - 4,448
2019 12 31
1,938,565 1,276,983 1,499,765 531 4,715,844
2,405,750 779,244 1,157,929 4,432 4,347,355
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v 2020 2019
12 31 12 31
5,347,242 4,715,844
22 1,281 1,281
23 19,587 16,306
5,368,110 4,733,431
4,913,091 4,347,355
36 21 21
- 1
4,913,112 4,347,377

(b)
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2020

2019

2020
12 31

2019
12 31

)
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27,558 19,917 23,186 24,855 17,214 6,042 21,384 2,549 142,705

23,837 18,419 20,936 22,031 15,912 6,638 22,908 2,258 132,939
C

3,813 2,968 3,410 11,137 3,077 1,393 10,395 494 36,687

3,729 3,244 3,782 8,568 2,843 1,539 8,489 566 32,760

217/429
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PD PD
PD PD

A B C D AAA+  AAA  AAA-  AA+ AA
AA- A+ A A- BBB+ BBB BBB- BB+ BB BB- B+ B B- CCC+ CCC CCC- CC C D 24
D

ECL

ECL
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12 ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
12 ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL
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30
IFRS
90
ECL ECL ECL
PD LGD
EAD
IFRS
PD LGD EAD
PD 12
PD
Point-in-Time( PIT )PD
LGD
LGD

LGD

EAD 12
222/429



ECL
GDP  CPI
PD LGD
2020
GDP 2021
CPI 2021
2021
ECL
10%
%
ECL ECL

53(a)

PD
GDP
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ECL
LGD
CPI
7.20%
2.29%
CP1 3.25%
1.94%
4.00%
8.58%
12 ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL 12 ECL

2020 12 31
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360,287 - - - 360, 287
46,059 - - - 46,059
69,140 - 150 - 69,290
43,592 - - - 43,592

2,812,466 105,109 24,860 - 2,942,435
96,564 3,970 254 - 100,788
1,352,507 4,876 7,249 305,783 1,670,415
33,530 - - 25,264 58,794
4,814,145 113,955 32,513 331,047 5,291,660

2241429
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2019 12 31

364,340 - - - 364,340
31,358 - - - 31,358
60,000 270 - - 60,270
6,835 - - - 6,835
2,529,543 96,674 17,919 - 2,644,136
80,839 2,869 15 - 83,723
1,215,372 1,375 4,770 212,029 1,433,546
29,249 - - 13,848 43,097
4,317,536 101,188 22,704 225,877 4,667,305
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
666 366
(516) (366)
150 -
BBB - 270
- 270
AAA 151,764 73,880
BBB 1,123 5,879
5,904 18,434
158,791 98,193
158,941 98,463
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
1,904 1,662
(1,179) (1,038)
725 624
24,208 1,033
8,296 810
31,773 25,497
23,035 30,001
87,312 57,341
955,020 740,453
105,717 63,240
4,075 548
2,508 2,119
55,666 120,451
1,122,986 926,811
1,211,023 984,776

2271429
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0.01%
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2020 12 31
445 360,287 16,919 343,368 - - -
.03k 46,059 59 45,301 699 - -
.81% 69,290 179 55,669 11,305 2,137 -
.90% 43,592 3 43,589 - - -
.37% 2,942,435 29,462 2,277,700 564,325 67,246 3,702
.89% 100,788 1,381 21,375 51,532 19,700 6,800
.00% 1,670,415 67,190 315,202 209,932 681,052 397,039

- 135,244 131,989 - - - 3,255
.50% 5,368,110 247,182 3,102,204 837,793 770,135 410,796
.23h 241,110 2,359 20,303 218,448 - -
.27 469,345 1,824 296,698 170,823 - -
.29% 161,879 475 91,453 69,951 - -
.90% 14,182 12 10,216 3,505 449 -
.30 3,480,667 50,225 2,008,963 561,854 859,601 24
.04% 440,870 1,842 125,872 265,672 799 46,685

- 105,059 90,129 10,214 3,625 1,001 -
.39% 4,913,112 146,866 2,563,719 1,293,878 861,940 46,709
.20% 454,998 100,316 538,485 (456,085) (91,805) 364,087

2019 12 31

.46% 364,340 15,487 348,853 - - -
.73h 31,358 6 29,359 1,993 - -
.97 60,270 213 42,793 16,775 489 -
.51% 6,835 8 6,827 - - -
.64% 2,644,136 29,609 1,992,591 531,959 86,871 3,106
.78 83,723 951 69,524 289 9,195 3,764
.26% 1,433,546 67,851 234,363 201,092 599,514 330,726

- 109,223 106,094 - - - 3,129

230/429
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.76% 4,733,431 220,219 2,724,310 752,108 696,069 340,725
.34% 224,838 3,358 7,000 214,480 - -
.89% 444,320 2,913 339,180 102,227 - -
.10% 166,225 1,122 98,731 66,372 - -
.22% 25,603 18 20,422 5,163 - -
.28% 3,017,888 34,570 1,867,333 645,265 470,708 12
.69% 371,904 3,158 142,222 174,052 5,789 46,683

- 96,599 76,614 12,735 4,195 3,048 7
.58% 4,347,377 121,753 2,487,623 1,211,754 479,545 46,702
.18% 386,054 98,466 236,687 (459,646) 216,524 294,023

231/429
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2020 12 31 100
96 2019 12 31 969
5,603 2019 12 31 5,039
125 2019 12
6,189 2019 12 31 5,316

12
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2020 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
350,913 7,130 2,244 360,287
24,342 15,547 6,170 46,059
24,169 37,239 7,882 69,290
43,587 1 4 43,592
2,783,150 101,459 57,826 2,942,435
99,987 801 - 100,788
1,571,828 76,004 22,583 1,670,415
128,376 5,527 1,341 135,244
5,026,352 243,708 98,050 5,368,110
241,110 - - 241,110
467,908 1,162 275 469,345
73,335 69,320 19,224 161,879
7,977 2,603 3,602 14,182
3,299,893 144,010 36,764 3,480,667
391,668 43,604 5,598 440,870
99,325 2,009 3,725 105,059
4,581,216 262,708 69,188 4,913,112
445,136 (19,000) 28,862 454,998
1,420,403 42,432 13,711 1,476,546
7,129 19,193 (25,909) 413

2019 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )

233/429
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353,625 10,258 457 364,340
8,822 15,096 7,440 31,358
33,001 23,340 3,839 60,270
6,708 127 - 6,835
2,488,590 100,219 55,327 2,644,136
82,800 923 - 83,723
1,345,906 79,341 8,299 1,433,546
98,151 10,053 1,019 109,223
4,417,693 239,357 76,381 4,733,431
224,838 - - 224,838
442,306 1,488 526 444,320
55,186 92,685 18,354 166,225
23,074 2,529 - 25,603
2,839,940 146,468 31,480 3,017,888
332,159 35,802 3,943 371,904
86,763 7,987 1,849 96,599
4,004,266 286,959 56,152 4,347,377
413,427 (47,602) 20,229 386,054
1,220,466 53,513 13,517 1,287,496
(28,453) 51,603 (17,294) 5,856
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
0.8428 0.8949
6.5337 6.9687
2020 12 31
100
2019 12 31 100
2019 12 31

100

100 12
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2020 12 31

/
299,538 60,749 - - - - - 360,287
- 40,161 1,100 4,098 700 - - 46,059
150 - 45,942 9,673 11,351 2,174 - 69,290
- - 43,592 - - - - 43,592
42,303 422,190 137,773 174,521 672,559 749,441 743,648 2,942,435
197 67 3,382 4,918 18,663 62,723 10,838 100,788
21,283 214,456 45,807 49,441 210,493 717,712 411,223 1,670,415
69,121 37,604 2,748 4,458 10,652 6,080 4,581 135,244
432,592 775,227 280,344 247,109 924,418 1,538,130 1,170,290 5,368,110
- - 13,195 7,712 220,203 - - 241,110
- 154,114 70,330 72,828 172,073 - - 469,345
- 6 44,194 47,445 70,234 - - 161,879
- - 7,132 3,003 3,508 449 - 14,182
- 1,303,947 289,829 447,446 568,955 870,466 24 3,480,667
- - 5,450 81,580 270,937 34,772 48,131 440,870
- 47,537 4,001 5,735 20,338 19,252 8,106 105,059
- 1,505,604 434,221 665,839 1,326,248 924,939 56,261 4,913,112
432,592 (730,377)  (153,877)  (418,730)  (401,830) 613,191 1,114,029 454,998
- - 326,206 252,135 820,303 767,683 43,970 2,210,297

2019 12 31

/
301,750 62,590 - - - - - 364,340
- 28,209 439 717 1,993 - - 31,358
270 - 34,032 8,630 16,841 497 - 60,270
- - 6,835 - - - - 6,835
33,760 409,336 162,556 132,922 635,142 612,104 658,316 2,644,136
4 4 2,277 3,446 13,853 49,946 14,193 83,723
9,100 159,827 37,613 36,928 235,099 614,108 340,871 1,433,546
63,610 28,678 2,015 2,765 5,698 3,325 3,132 109,223
408,494 688,644 245,767 185,408 908,626 1,279,980 1,016,512 4,733,431
- - 7,210 - 217,628 - - 224,838
- 179,958 73,454 87,280 103,628 - - 444,320
- 6 50,449 48,909 66,861 - - 166,225
- - 15,720 4,715 5,168 - - 25,603
- 1,150,257 366,487 385,159 645,265 470,708 12 3,017,888
- - 17,233 85,324 175,856 46,808 46,683 371,904
- 41,076 8,245 3,294 18,649 20,388 4,947 96,599

2371429
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- 1,371,297 538,798 614,681 1,233,055 537,904 51,642 4,347,377
408,494 (682,653)  (293,031)  (429,273)  (324,429) 742,076 964,870 386,054
- - 404,966 378,775 1,314,045 673,700 3,640 2,775,126
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2020 12 31

241,110 245,941 - 13,216 7,743 224,982 - -

469,345 473,815 154,386 70,407 73,938 175,084 - -

161,879 164,280 6 44,239 47,871 72,164 - -

14,182 14,205 . 7,132 3,099 3,523 451 -

3,480,667 3,527,109 1,303,948 294,044 454,407 578,814 895,866 30

440,870 469,431 - 6,838 85,830 272,371 51,483 52,909

51,060 53,973 19,315 568 1,774 10,227 14,134 7,955

4,859,113 4,948,754 1,477,655 436,444 674,662 1,337,165 961,934 60,894
(513) - 2 ®) (123) (323) (66)

1,076,507 - 301,281 213,938 514,515 5,694 41,079

(1,076,200) (300,960)  (213,583)  (514,822) (5.759)  (41,076)

307 - 321 355 (307) (65) 3

2019 12 31
224,838 228,879 - 7,224 - 221,655 - -
444,320 448,811 179,959 75,916 87,926 105,010 - -
166,225 167,904 6 50,558 49,207 68,133 - -
25,603 25,667 - 15,723 4,734 5,210 - -
3,017,888 3,049,947 1,150,257 372,046 390,510 655,277 481,840 17
371,904 405,350 - 17,555 93,250 182,147 59,086 53,312
76,519 79,880 21,059 8,237 3,298 19,361 21,857 6,068
4,327,297 4,406,438 1,351,281 547,259 628,925 1,256,793 562,783 59,397
327 - 17 108 158 44 -
1,388,726 - 363,750 307,177 704,146 13,653 -
(1,387,827) - (362,637) (307,299) (704,213)  (13,678) -
899 - 1,113 122) (67) (25) -

239/429
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2020 12 31
( )

348,503 1,159 2,334 351,996
1,074,877 48,265 1,408 1,124,550
1,423,380 49,424 3,742 1,476,546

2019 12 31
( )

312,090 5,474 6,179 323,743

912,051 51,355 347 963,753
1,224,141 56,829 6,526 1,287,496

240/429



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

©)

RCSA KRI IT

241/429



51

@

)

)

)

)

(b)
()

18

PBOC

2421429

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn



(

©
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12 31
2020 2019 2020 2019
935,651 784,943 944,985 796,461
440,870 371,904 440,017 371,869
/
LIBOR
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2020 12 31
- 19,441 - 19,441
- 5,819 2 5,821
- 2 - 2
- 98,211 - 98,211
4,391 28,649 - 33,040
- - 1 1
213,781 47,723 10,363 271,867
51,111 171,696 - 222,807
23 - 852 875
35 - - 35
269,341 371,541 11,218 652,100
4 - - 4
- 19,355 - 19,355
- 6,338 2 6,340
- 83 - 83
4 25,776 2 25,782

2019 12 31
- 10,104 - 10,104
- 3,653 2 3,655
- 46 - 46
- 90,578 - 90,578

2441429



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

4,716 13,886 - 18,602
- - 4 4
164,806 23,964 4,030 192,800
43,527 136,478 - 180,005
21 - 602 623

43 - - 43
213,113 278,709 4,638 496,460
100 - - 100

- 10,140 - 10,140

- 3,678 2 3,680

- 72 1 73

100 13,890 3 13,993

245/429
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2020

2020 12 31

2019 12 31

2019

2019 12 31
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2 4,034 602 4,638 ®3) (©)
1 65 - 66 (&) (6
- 6,396 250 6,646 - -
[€)) (131) - (132) 2 2
2 10,364 852 11,218 ) (@)
1 65 - 66 (€)) o
7 3,141 352 3,500 8) ®)
5) (725) - (730) 4 4
- 1,906 250 2,156 - -
- (288) - (288) 1 1
2 4,034 602 4,638 ®3) [6)
) (725) - (730) 4 4
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2020 12 31
161,862 783,123 944,985
25,558 414,459 440,017
2019 12 31
142,394 654,067 - 796,461
31,658 340,211 - 371,869
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
125,827 139,790
125,827 139,790
C))

2020 2019

12 31 12 31
16,758 19,855
7,939 13,732
327,299 290,156
351,996 323,743
769,458 609,169
130,425 128,746
224,482 225,653
185 185
1,476,546 1,287,496

248/429
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2020 2019
12 31 12 31
382,659 380,959
% 100%
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
( )
1,962 1,100
4,445 2,817
6,407 3,917




)
2020 12 31

©

2020 12 31
1,262 2019 12

54

55

31

1,384
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MOF PBOC
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
( )
5,918 6,626
36
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= | " = d “a B
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss <
For the year ended 31 December 2020 ;
{Expressed in millions af Fenmindbi, unless otherwize omed) i
x
MNote V 20620 19 ‘g
Interest income 221,475 210044
Interest expense (110,778) (108, 126)
Met interest income 110,697 101,918
Fre and commission income 27005 23977
Fee and commission expense {2,682) {2.808)
Met fee and commission income 2 24,323 23,169
Met trading gains 3 484 585
Dhvidend income 15 42
Met gains arising from investment securities 4 3203 4,878
Met gains on derecognition of financial asets
measured at amortised cost 591 22
Met foreign exchange gains 310 1,339
Orther net operating income 1,062 986
Operating income 142,705 132,939
Ohperating expenses 5 {40,271) (38.429)
Credit impairment losses 8 {36,733) (48,965)
Ohther impaitiment losses (199) (382)
Operating profit 45,502 45,163
Losses on investment of joint veniures (5) =
Profit before tax 45,497 45,163
Ineome tax 9 {7.592) {7.722)
Net profit 7905 37441
Mer profit attributable to:
Equity sharcholders of the Bank 37824 37,354
Mon-controlling ingerests 81 87
37905 474410
Earnings per share
Basic camings per share {in RMB/share) 10 LG8 (L8
Diilured earnings per share {in RMB/share) 10 6] (62

The nores form an integral pare of these consolidared financial starements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Far the year ended 31 Diocember 2010
(Expressed in millions of Renminbd, ualess orhe rwise saed)
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MNote V 2020 2014
New profic 37905 37441
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
[rems thar will not be reclassified o profic or loss
- Remeasurement of supplementary retieement benefies 22 {180
- Equiry instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— Ner change in fair value 2 ]
— Related income rax effect 23(b} - {2}
Subroral 24 {176)
[eerns thar will be reclasified o profit or los:
= Diebe instruments at fair value through
ather comprehensive income
= Mer change in fair value (B3G) 3,158
- Changes in allowance for expecred credin losses (219} 45
— Reclassified o the profit or las upon disposal {774} (1,982)
- Related income rax effect 23 (b} 405 (374}
— Exchange differences on rranslarion of financial starements {148) 48
Subroral (1371} 1,250
Other comprehensive income, net of ax (1.347) 1.083
Total comprehensive income 36,558 38,524
Total camprehensive income attributable to:
Equity sharcholders of the Bank 36,480 38436
Mon-controlling interests 78 BE
36,558 38,524

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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£-]
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position =
At 51 Diecember 2020 E
ﬂi_:p.rﬂud in millions of Kenmin®i, unless otherwize mmed) i.
=
31 December 31 December .§l
Mote W 2020 2M9
Assets
Cash and deposits with the cenral bank 11 360,287 364,340
Dreposits with banks and other financial instirutgons 12 406,055 31,358
Precious metals 9,353 10,826
Placements with banks and other financial insootions 13 69,290 60,270
Derivarive financial assets 14 25,264 13,805
Fimancial assets held under resale agreements 15 43,592 05,535
Leans and advances to customers 15 2,942,435 2,644,136
Finance lease receivables 17 100,788 83,713
Financial investments I8 1670415 1,433,546
~ Finansial assets at fair value through profit or loss 304,908 211,406
= Dbt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income 222807 180005
- Equ':l‘}' instruments at fair value l:hl'nugh other
eomprehensive income 873 613
- Financial investments measured ar amortised cost 1,141,825 1,041,512
Investment in joint ventures 19 257 -
Praperty, plant and equipment 20 23301 19,342
Right-of-use assers 21 11,137 11,684
Goodwill 12 1.281 1,281
Dreferred rax assers 23 19,587 [ 63, 300
Oher assers 24 45,064 35979
Toal assets 5,368,110 4,733,431
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Due wo the cenreal bank 26 241,110 224,838
Deposies from banks and acher financial instrtions rr 469,345 444,320
Placements from banks and other financial institurions 28 161,879 166,225
Financial liabilicies ar fair value through profit or loss 29 4 1]
Drerivative financial liabilities 14 25,778 13,893
Fimancial assets sold under repurchase agreements 30 14,182 25603
Deposies from cuseomers 31 3 AB0GGT 3017888
Accrued staff costs 32 15,169 13,667
Taxes payable a3 B.771 9,321
Lease liabilities 34 10,762 11,069
Drebr securicics issued 35 440,870 371,904
Oither liabilities 36 44,574 48,548
Toual liabilities 40913,112 4,347 377

The nowes form an integral pare of these consolidated financial statements.
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2 _
£ Consolidared Statement of Financial Position
% Axoat 31 December 2020
; {Expressed in millions of Benminbi, noles otherwiee sared)
Z A Dbembes] 31 Deceriber
= Nowe V 2020 2019
Equity
Share capiral 37 54,052 21489
Orher equity instruments 38 10,062 TO06T
of which: Preference shares £ SN 64,906
Perpetual bonds 39,993 =
Capital reserve 39 58,434 53,533
Other comprehensive income &0 1,393 2,737
Surplus reserve 41 26,245 26,245
General reserve 41 67,702 59.417
Retained earmings 136,581 120,494
Toral equity arributable to cquity sharchalders of the Bank 453,449 354,982
Mon-conorolling intercsts 1,549 1072
Total equity 454,098 JBG.054
Total lalbilities and equity 5,368,110 4733431

Approved and aurthorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2021,

Li Xiaopeng Yao Zhongyou

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Vice president in charge of Finance
Mon-executive Director Executive Director

Sun Xinhong

General Manager of
Financial Accounting Deparement

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The notes form an :inu:gra] part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Far the year ended 31 Diocember 2010
(Expressed in millions of Renminbd, unless orhe rwise saed)

2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities
Met pmﬁt AT 05 37441
Adyustrnents for:
Credit impairment loses 56,733 48,965
Orher impairment losses 199 382
Deprecianion and amarrisation 5,164 4604
Unwinding of discount {767} (828)
Dividend income {13} {42}
Unrealised forcign exchange losses/igains) 03 (112)
Met gains on investrment securitics (57.032) {54.632)
Met gains on derecognition of financial assets measured
ar amortised oost (591} (21}
Losses on investments of joint ventures 3 x:
Mer gains on disposal of trading seeurities (733) (1.021)
Revaluarion (gains)/losses on financial instruments ar
fair value through profit or loss {139) 2,162
Interest expense on debt securities issued 11,64 15,221
Interest expense on lease liabilivies 487 489
Met losses on dispesal of property, plant and equipment 23 25
Income tax 7,592 7.722
G1.003 G414
Changes in operating diel
N:?r;l:cnfwﬂ-’[ingfm] in deposits with the central bank,
banks and other financial Institutions 1,990 (42,733
Mer decrease in placements with banks and other financial institutions 5,781 20,549
Mer increase in financial assers held for rrading (13,763) (6,9218)
Mer increase in loans and advances to customers {349,060} (331,235)
Met {increasc)decrease in financial assers held under resale agreementes (36,7 70) 3913
Met increase in other eperating assets {26,405) {35,775)
{418,227} {365,209
Changes in operating liabifities
Met increasef{decrease) in deposits from banks and
other financial institutions 25,957 (45.587)
Met (decrease)finerease in placements from banks and
ather financial insgirueions (3.699) 13,820
Mer decrease in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (11,451} (14,793)
Mer incremsef{decrease) in amounts due to the central bank 17.271 {41,570)
Mer increase in deposies from customers 452,197 446,317
Income rax paid (11.297) (10,239)
Met increase in other operating liahilities 5403 21,947
474381 368,895
Met cash flows from operating activitics 117,157 65,100
Cash flows from investing activities
Procerds from disposal and redemprion of investments T02,616 GIT A5
Imvestment income received 55,630 59415
Proceeds from disposal of Property, plant and equipment
and other assets 13 305
Payments on acquisition of investments {924.959) {766, 714)
Paymients on acquisition of Properry, plant and equipment,
imrangible awers and other long-teem assers (5, 8000) (4,44 %)
Net cash flows from investing activities {173,560) (74.423)

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Mowe V 2020 2019 -i

Cash flows from financing activities

Capiral injecred into subsidiaries by non-conrrolling
sharcholders 1] -
Proceeds from issuance of other equity instrument holders 39993 34,959
Proceeds from insurance of debes 514,774 224,259
Repayments of debis issued {439.051) (292,293)
Interest paid on debr securiries issued (12,981} (15732)
Diividends paid (13,453 {4,902)
Other net cash flows from financing activities (2.924) {2,744)
Ner cash flows used in financing activities 86,758 {651,453)
Effect of forcign exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents {2,778) 5595

Met increasel{decrense) in cash and cash equivalents ab {a) 27,577 (FOL1R1)

Cash and eash equivalents as ar 1 January 117499 187 680

Cash and ecash equivalents as ar 31 December 46 () 145,076 117499

Interest received 163,990 161,077

Interest paid (excluding interest expense on debt

securities ssued) (S0,899) (93,880}

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated finandal starements,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 51 December 2020
(Expressed in millions of Renminbd, unaless orhe rwise saed)

152

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

China Ewvérbright Bank Company Limited {the "Bank”™) commenced its operations in Bejing, the People's
Republic of China {the "PRC”} on 18 August 1992, The A-shares and H-shares of the Bank were listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange in August 2000 and The Stack Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in December
2013 respectively.

The Bank is licensed as a financial institution by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
{the "CBIRC"}, formerly the China Banking Regulatory Commission, No. BODOTH 111000001 and is issued
the business licence of legal enterprise Mo, 2111000010001 1743X by the State Administration of Industry and
Commerce of the PRC, The registered address is Mo.25, Taipinggiao Ave, Everbright Center, Xicheng District,
Beijing, People’s Republic of China.

The principal sctivities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (Note V 19) {collectively the “Group”) are the provision
aof corparate and retail deposits, loans and advances, sentlement, treasury business and other financial services as
approved by the CBIRC. The Group mainly operates in Mainland China and alse has a number of averseas
branches and subsidiaries. For the purpose of these financial starements, Mainland China refers to the PRC,
excluding the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC (*Hong Kong™hthe Macau Special
Administrarive Repion of the PRC ("Macau™) and Taiwan. Overscas refers to countries and regions other than
Mainland China.

These financial starements have been approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 Basis of 11rz'|1u|.-.l1']11n

The consolidated financial starements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Stndards ("IFRSs"). In additon, the consolidated financial staterments comply with
the disclosure pequirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Finaneial assers and financial liahilities ar fair value through profic or loss (including derivarive financial
instrumenis), as well as financial assers ar fair value through other comprehensive income are measured
ar their fair values in the consolidared financial statements. Other accounting items are measured ar their
historical costs. Impairment is recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment of assets.

The preparation of financial satements in conformity with [FRSs requires the use of cermin critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management o exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimares are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Mate [IL

As a financial instivution incorporated in the PRC and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the
Group also prepared its consolidated financial statements for the reporting period in accordance with
the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard” isued by the Ministry of Finance
of the People’s Republic of China {the “MOF"}), as well as additional specific accounting standards, the
Application Guide and Interpretations of Accounting Standards and other relevant regulations (eollectively
known as the “PRC GAAPT), There is no difference in the net profic for the year or tonal equity as ar
the end of the year berween the Group's consolidated financial staremenes prepared under [FRSs and
those prepared under PRC GAAP.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)
1 Buasis of preparation (continwed

1.1 Sundards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2020

On | January 2020, the Group adopred the Conceprual Framework for Finaneial Reporting 2018
and the following new srandards, amendments and interprerations,

IFRS 3 Amendments Defimition of @ Busines

1AS 1 and TAS 8 Amendments Defimirion af Marerial

IFRS 9, IAS 39 and [FRS 7 Amendments Interest Rare Benchmnark Reform
IFRS 16 Amendment COVID:- | 9-Belaved Reny Concessions

The Conceprual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override
the concepts or requirements in any standard. The purpase of the Conceprual Framewerk is to
assist the IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies
where there is ne applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret
the standards. This will affect those entities which developed their accounting policies based on the
Cuncv}'truﬂ Framewark. The revised Cnn.crptual Framework includes some new COnceprs, l.:pdal:ed
definitions and recognition eriteria for asets and liabilities and clarifies some important concepts,
These amendments had o impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,

IFRS 3 Amendments clarify and provide additional guidance on the definition of a busines. The
amendments clarify thar for an integrated ser of activities and assers 1o be considered a busines, it
must include, ar a minimum, an input and a substantive process thar together significantly conrribure
o the ability o create ourpur, A business can exist withour including all the inpurs and processes
needed to ereare ourpurs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether marker participanes are
capable of acquiring the business and continue o produce ourpurs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inpurs and substanrive processes rogether significandy conmribute o the ability o creare
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the definition of ourputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other income from ordinary acriviries. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance o assess whether an acquired process 15 substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
ser of activities and assers is nor & business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020
{Expressed in millioens of Fenminbi, noles otherwiee sared)

IT SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1 Basis of preparation (continied

1.1 Swndards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2020 (continued)

The amendments 1o [AS | and 1AS & provide a new definition of mareriality. The new definidon
srares thar informarion is marerial if omicing, misscating o obscuring it could reasonably be expected
o influcnce decisions made by the primary users of general purpose financial starements based
on those fimancial statements. The amendments clarify thar mageriality depends on the namre or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material if ic could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users.

The amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and [FRS 7 modify some specific hedge accounting requirements.
During the yaer of uncertainty arising from phasing-out of interest-rate benchimarks with an alternative
nearly risk-free interest rare ("RFR"), the entities that apply these hedge accounting requirements
can assume that the interest rate benchmarks on which the hedged cash flows and cash flows of
the hedging instrument are based are not altered as 3 result of interest rate benchmark reform. The
amendments must be applied retrospectively.

[FRS 16 Amendment provides for rent relief during COVID-19, which provides an exemption for
lessees, For bease payments due before June 2021, lessees are not required o apply the guidance
on accounting treatment of lease changes in IFRS 16 for rent relief pranted due w the impace of
COVID-19, The amendment is applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 June
2020, and carlier adeption is permited. The Group has adopred the amendments from 1 January
2020,

The adoption of the ahove srandards, amendments and inrerpreations does mot have any significant
impact on the aperating resulrs, financial position and comprehensive income of the Group.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)
1 Busis of preparation (continwed

1.2 Sundards, amendments and interpresations that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopred by the Group in 2020

Effective for
anmual periods
beginning on or
after
I[FRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 Iuterese Rate Benchwmark 1 January 2021
and IFRS 16 Amendments Reform — Phase 2
IFRS 3 Amendments Reference no the Conceprual Fransenwort 1 January 2022
IAS 16 Amendments Praperry, Plenr and Egquipment: 1 Jamuary 2022
Proceeds before fnvended Use
IAS 37 Amendments Chireraes Contracy — Cost of 1 January 2022
Fulfitling a Contract
1A% 1 Amendments Clessification af Liabilities as 1 January 2023
Current or Nan-curvent
[AS 1 and [FRS Practice Accounting policies disclosures 1 January 2023
Statement 2 Amendments
IAS 8 Amendments Defimition of acconnting extimates 1 January 2023
IFRS 17 and Amendments Frsarance Contricti 1 January 2023
[FRS 10 and [AS 28 Sale or Contribution of Awers Effective date
Amendments dtrveen an fnveitor and in has been deferred
Associate or Jofowt Vewture indefinitely
Anwetd Dprovienrents to Ansendeenss o [ERS 1, IFRS 9, 1 Jamuary 2022
fFRSs 2018-2020 fustrarive Ecanples accompanying
{iusued in May 2020) TERS 16, and A5 47

The amendments o [FRS 9, [AS 39, [FRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address the accounting issues
that arise when financial instroments thar reference Interbank Offered Rares ("IBOR”) rransition
e nearly RFRs. The amendments include a practical expedient for modifications, which permits
contracrual changes, or changes 1o cash flows thar are dircctly required by the [BOR reform, o be
reaved as chanpes  a floating interest rare. The amendments also perrmnit changes required by [BOR,
reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documenrarion under boch 1FRS 9 and 1A5 39
without the hedging relatonship being discontinued. In addition, while IFRS 9 and [AS 39 require
thar a risk component (or a designated portien) is “separately identifizble” o be eligible for hedge
accounting, the amendments provide cemporary relief to entities from having w0 meer the separacely
idenrifiable requircmen: when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component.
Additional disclosures are required for adoption,

IFRS 3 Amendments add an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the isue of
potential “day 27 gains or losses arising for liabilitics and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of IAS 37 Providons, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or [FRIC 21 Levies,
if incurred separately. The exception requires entitics to apply the criteria in 1AS 37 or [FRIC 21,
respectively, instead of the Coneeprual Framework, to determine whether a present obligation exists
at the acquisition date. At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to [FRS 3 o clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition ar the acquisition date,
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MNotes to the Consolidared Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020

(Expressed in millions of Benminbi, noles otherwiee sared)

1 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1 Basis of preparation (continied

1.2 Swndards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been
carly adopied by the Group in 2020 (continucd)

[AS 16 Amendments prohibit entities from deducting from the cost of an irem of properny. plamt
and equipment, any proceeds of the sale of jtems produced while bringing thar asser o the locarion
and condition necessary for it o be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
[nsread, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of preducing those

items, in pmﬁr or loss.

IAS 37 Amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract
is onerous or loss-making, The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs
thar relate direcdy to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and
an allecation of costs directly related to contract activities, General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to 2 contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract.

[AS 1| Amendments specify the requirements for clasifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments clarify whar is meant by a right 1o defer setlement, that a righe to defer must exist ar
the end of the reporting period, thar classification is unaffected by the Gikelibood thar an entity will
exercise its defereal right, and thar only if an embedded dervative in a convertible liability is irself
an equity instrument, would the terms of a fiabilicy nor impact i classification,

The amendments o JAS 1 Preensarion of Financial Stosements and |FRS Procrice Stavemeny 2
provides guidance and examples o help enrides apply maceriality judgements o accounting, policy
disclosures. Replacing the requirement for entities o disclose their ‘sipnificant’ accounting policies
with a requirement w disclose their ‘material” accounring policies: and Adding guidance on how
entities apply the concepr of mareriality in making decisions abour accounting policy disclosures,

The amendments to [AS % introduces a new definition of ‘accounting estimates’. The amendments
are designed o clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the cosrection of errors.

IFRS 17 frserance Contraces and 1FRS 17 amendmenes replaced [FRS 4 Jnswrance Comracss. The
standard provides a general medel for insurance contracts and two additonal approaches: the variable
fee approach and the premium allocation approach. IFRS 17 covers the recognition, measurement.
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and applics to all ypes of insurance coniraces.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)
1 Busis of preparation (continwed

1.2 Swundards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopred by the Group in 2020 (contineed)

The amendments to IFRS 10 and JAS 28 addeess an ineonsistency beoween the requirements in
IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or conmribution of assets berween an investor and
its associate or joine venture. The amendmenes require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the
sale or conmribution berween an investor and s asseciate or jeint venture constimues @ business,
For a transaction involving assers thar do not constirute a business, a gain or loss resulring from the
transaction is recognised in the investar's profit or loss only o the extent of the unrelated investor's
interest in that associate or joint venmre.

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2018-2020 were issued in May 2020, including an amendment to
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of 4 new or medified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability by conducting the “10 per cent”™ test for derecognition of financial liabilities,
These fees include only those paid or received besween the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other's behalf. The improvements also
include an amendment to lease incentives, which removes the illustration of payments from the lesor
relating to leasehold improvements in [hustrative Example 13 accompanying [FRS 16 Leaer, 5o as
to remove potential confusion regarding the reatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 16,

The adoprion of the above standards, amendments and interpretations will have no marerial impact
on the finaneial statemenrs,

Z Consolidation

2,1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including corporates. divided parts of associares, and struetured entities
controlled by corporates) over which the Group has control. Thar is the Group contrals an entiry
when it is exposed, or has rights, o variable recurns from i involvement with dhe entity and has
the ability 1o affect those perums through its power over the entity. The existence and effect of
porential voting rights thar are currently exercisable or convertible and righrs arising from other
contracrual arrangements are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another enrity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from rhe date on which control is transferred o the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the dare that control ceases. If changes in facts and drcumstances resule
in changes in elements involved in the definition of contral, the Group will re-evaluate whether it
still has contrel over subsidiarics,
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MNotes to the Consolidared Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020

(Expressed in millions of Benminbi, noles otherwiee sared)

1 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F. Consolidation (contimused)

2.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting 1o aceount for business combinations, The
consideration rransferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assers cransferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity inrerests issued by the Group. The consideration rransferred
includes the fair value of any asser ar liabilicy resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
[denrifiable assers acquired and liabilities and contdngene liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially ar their fair values ar the acquisition date. The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-conmolling incerest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable ner assers
acquired is recorded as goodwill, IF this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of 2 bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the sarement of

profit or loss

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating o ransactions
between members of the Group are diminated in full on consolidation. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group,

[n the Bank's statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for ar cost les
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments, bur does not include acquisition-related costs, which are expensed & incurred. The
dividends or profits declared to distribure by the invested entiry shall be recognised by the Bank as
the current investment income of subsidiaries.

2.2 Joint Ventures

Jeint ventures exist wheee the Group has 2 contracrual areangement with one or more parties
undertabie economic activities which are subject to joing control.

[mvessments in joint venmres are initially recognised ar cost and are accounted for wsing the equity
method of accounting. The Group's "Investments in associates and joint ventures” includes goodwill.

Unrealised gains on rransacrions berween the Group and its joint ventures are efiminated o the
exterit of the Group's interests in the joint ventures; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting pelicies of joint
ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group,

The Group assesses ar each financial reporting date whether there s objective evidence that
investments in joint ventures are impaired. Impairment loses are recopnised for the amounts by
which the investments in joing ventures’ carrying amounts exceed their recoverable amounts, The
recoverable amounts are the higher of investments in associates and joint ventures” faie value los
costs 10 gell and value in use.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and ecash equivalents comprise cash on hand, non-restricted balances with central banks, short-
term deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions, and highly liquid short-term
investrents which are readily convertible into known amounes of cash and are subjecr o an insignificant
risk of change in value.

4  Foreign currency translation

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencices from investors, the capiral is rranslared o Renminbi
ar the spor exchange rate on the dawe of receipr. Other forcign currency ransacrions are, on inioal
recognition, transkated to Renminbi ar the spor exchange rates or the rares that approximare the spor
exchange rates ar the dates of rransacrions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the financal reporting date are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Changes in the fair value of monetary securitics
denominated in foreign currency classified as financial assees at fair value through other comprehensive
income are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amorised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying ameunt are recopnised in “Other comprehensive income”, Translation differences on all ather
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the starement of profit or loss,

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities thar are measured ar historical cost in foreign currencies are mranslated
using the foreign exchanpe rates ar the date of the transaetion. Non-monetary asers and liabilicies thar
are measured ar fair value in foreign currencies are rranshited vsing the foreign exchange rates ar the date
the fair value is determined. Translation differences on nen-monerary financial assers classified as financial
assers ar fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised in “Other comprehensive income™.
Transtation differences on non-monetary financial assets and Labilivies held ar fair value through profir or
loss are recognised as “Mer mrading gains” in the statement of profic ar loss,

Assers and liabilitics of forcign operations are translated to Renminbi ar the spor exchange races ac the end
of the year. Equity items, excluding “Rerained Earnings”, are rranslated o Renminki ar the spot exchange
rates at the ransaction dakes. [ncome and expenses of foreign operation are manslaced o Renminbi ar the
rates that approximate the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. The resulting translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income. The translation differences accumulated in shareholders’
equity with respect to a foreign operation are transferred to profit or loss in the year when the forcign
operation is disposed,
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1 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

5  Financial instruomenis

A fimancial inserument & any conteact thar gives rise to a financial asser of one enterprise and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another cnterprise,

5.1 Recognition and de-recognition of financial instruments

The Group shall recognise a financial asser or a fimancial liability in iz sracement of financial positon
when the Group becomes a party 6o rthe contractual provisions of the insorument.

Financial assets (or a part of a financial asset or group of financial assews) are derecognised when the
financial assets meet ene of the following conditons:

(1] the contraciual rights ro the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or

(2] the contractual rights to the cash flows from the finandal asset are transferred, or the Group
undertake the obligation to pay the cash flows collected to a third: party in full and on me
under the 'paﬂ-lhmuj;,h agrﬂ:mrnt" and the Group (a) rransfers suh&tanﬁa]l}' all the risks and
rewards of ownesship of the financial assers or (b) where substantially all the risks and rewards
of ewmership of a financial asser are neither retained nor transferred, the control aver that asser

is relinquished.

The Group recognises and de-recognises financial wsers on the rading day when trading financal
assels in a conventional way. Trading financial assets in a conventional way refers 1o collecting or
delivering financial assers within the fime limir preseribed by laws or common practices in accordance
with conrract provisions. The rrading day refers 1o the dare on which the Group undertakes 1o buy
or sell financial assers.

Financial liahilitics are de-recognised when they are extinguished - thar is, when the obligation is
discharged or cancelled, or expires. The difference berween the carrying amount of the de-recognised

financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the statement of J:lmﬁr or loss,

5.2 Classification and measurement of financial assets

The Group classifies fimancial assets as ar amortised cose, fair value through orther comprehensive
income or fair value through profic or los en the basis of both the Group's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Only if when the Group changes the business model for managing financial assets, the Group shall
reclassify the affected financial assets,

For financial assets at fair value through profic or los, transaction cests are directly recognised in
pmﬂt or loss. For other financial assers, transaction costs are rccn@im:d in the inital measurement.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3 Fimancial instromenis {cominued

5.2 Classification and measurement of financial asset (continued)
Busfuess models

The Group's business model refers to how the Group manages ies financial assers in order to generate
cash flows, Thar is. the Group’s business model devermines whether cash fows will resule fram
eollecting contractual eash flows, selling financial assets or both. IF finaneial assets are not held within
a business moedel whose objective is o hold asers 1o colleer contractual cash flows or within a business
model whose objecrive is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, the business model of the financial assers is “other”. The Group's assessment of the business
model is performed on a financial asser porrfolio basis, and determined on a reasonable expecred
scenario, taking into account: how cash flows were generared in the past, how the performance of
the business model and the financial assers held within thar business model s evaluared and reporred
w the Group’s key management personnel; how risks are evaluared and managed; and how managers
of the busines are compensated.

The contractual ceish _ﬂmu clgracieristics

The assessment of contractual cash flow characteristics s to determine whether the cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Principal is the fair
value of the financial asser at initial recognition. However, chat principal ameunt may change over
the life of the finandal asset {for example, if there are repayments af principal), Interest consists af
consideration for the time value of money, for the credic risk assodated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well
as a profit margin.

The erul'lwqmm measurement of financial assets dcpcnds on the clasification:

Financial aseers ar amorsised cos
A financial asset shall be measured ar amortised cost if both of the fallowing conditions are mer:

. the financial asser is held within a business model whaose objective is to hold Rnancial assers
in order to eollecr conrracmal cash flows: and

*  the contractual terms of the financial asser give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount owstanding,

Incerest income is recognised using the effective interest method for such financial assets. The gaine
or losses frem derccognition, amendments or impairment en such financial assces arc recognised in
profit or loss,
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1 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

5  Financial instromenis (continied)

5.2 Classification and measurement of financial assets (continued)
Diebet instraoments at faiv valwe through other comprebensive incowe

A financial asser shall be measured ar fair value dhwough other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

*  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
conrractual cash Aows and selling finandal assers: and

. the conrracrual rerms of the financial assec give rise on specified daces o cash flows char are
solely paymenrs of principal and inreresr on the principal amount oustanding.

A gain or loss on a financial asset measured ar the fair value chrough other comprehensive income
should be recognised in “other comprehensive income”, except for interests calculared using effective
interest method and foreign exchange gains and losses. When the financial asset is derccognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
other comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Equity instriments at fuir value througl other comprehensive income

The Group has irrevocably designated equity instruments that are not held for trading as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. Only relevant dividend income {excluding
dividend income explicitly recovered as part of investment cost) is recognised in profit or loss, and
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive ineome without provision
for impairment. When financal assets are de-recogmised, the accumulated gains or losses previeusly
recognised in other comprehensive ineome shall be reclassified to retained camings under equity.

Financial assets at fair valwe through profic or foss

A finaneial asser shall be measured ar faie value through profic of loss unless it i+ measured @t
amortised cost or ar fair value through ather comprehensive income. Such financial assers thar the
Group holds are subsequently measured ar fair value, Gains or losses on such financial assers are
recognised in profir or loss unless it is parr of 2 hedging relationship.

Only when an accounting mismarch can be eliminared or significantly reduced, financial assers can

be designaved ar fair value through profits or losses ar iniral recogniton.

When an entiry classified a financial asser as a financial asser designared ar fair value through profic
ar loss, it cannot be reclassified as other financial asset; nor can other financial assets be reclassified
as financial assets designated ar fair value through profic or loss after inital recognition.

In accordance with the above conditions, the financial assets dusignatfd at fair value through pn:lﬁt

ar loss held by the Group mainly include fixed interest rate personal mortgage boans for which the
Group wied interest rate swaps to manage the associated interest rate risk,
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)
3 Financial instromenis {cominued

5.5 Classification and measurement of financial liabilites

The Group classifies financial liabilities as ar fair value through profit or loss, ather financial liabilivies
or designated as effective hedging instruments ar inirial recognition. For financial liabilites ar fair
value through profic or loss, rransacrion costs are directly recognised in profic or loss. For other
financial liabilities, mansaction costs are recognised in the midal measurement.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilivics depends on the classificarion:

Financial lialilities at fair value throngl profi ov loss

Financial liabilitics ar fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for rrading
{including derivative financial insoruments) and financial liabilities designated ar fair value through
profit or loss at initial recogpition. Financial liabilitics held for trading {including derivative financial
instrumenis) are subsequently measured ar the fair value. A gain or loss on such financial liability is
recognised in profic or loss, unless it is part of hedging relationship. Financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at the fair value. A gain or los on
such financial liability is recognised in profit or loss, except thar the changes in the fair value of
the financial liability arising from changes in the Group’s own credit risk should be recognised in
ather comprehensive income, If the recognition of the impact arising from changes in the financial
liabilities” own credit risk in other comprehensive income will eate or enlarge the accounting
mistmatch in profie or loss, the Group shall recopnise the entire gain or loss of the financial abilities
(including the impact of changes in its own credit risk) in profit or loss.

Orler financial labilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method,

5.4 Impairment of financial instruments

The Graup evaluares and confirms. relevant impairment allowance for finaneial assets measured ar
amartised cost, debt instrument investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, loan
commitments and financial guaranree contraces based on ECL (Note ¥ S0(a)).

5.5 Financial guarantee coniracis and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are those contraces that require a payment 1o be made by the issuer 1o
reimburse the holder for a lass it incurs becawse the specified debror fails 1o make 2 payment when
due in accordance wirh the erms of a debr insrument. Financial guaranree contracts are measured
ar fair value ar initial recogpition. For fimancial guarantee conrraces which are por designared as ar
fair value through profic or loss subsequently measured ar the higher of the expenditure determined
by the ECL model thar is required 1o sertle any financial obligation arising at the financial reporting
date, and the value initally recopnised less the accomulated amorntisation recognised in accordance
with the guidance for revenue recognition.

Loan commitments are commitments provided by the Group to the customers o grant loans under
the established contract terms during a certain period. The impairment losses of loan commitments
are measured using the ECL midel.
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1 SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

5  Financial instruomenis (continied)

5.6 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, for example, 1o hedge exchange-rate risks and interest
rate risks through foreipn exchange forward comtracs and interest rate swaps, which are initially recognised
ar fair value on the date a derivative conmract is entered into and are subsequenty remeasured ar their
fair value. All derivarives are carried as asets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

Changes in the fair value of these derivatives are recognised in profit or loss unless it is related to hedge
ACCOUnIing.

In terms of the hedge accounting method, the Group's hedge is classified as:

(1}  Fair value hedge, refers to a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of 3 recognised assee or
liability or an wnrecognised firm commitment {except the exchange rate risk);

(2} Cash Aow hiedge, refers to a hedige of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is antributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast ransaction,
or the exchange rate risk contained in an unrecognised definitive commitment.

Ar the beginning of the hedging relationship, the Group has formally designared the hedging relationship
and prepared a formal wrinen document on the hedging relarionship, rigk management oljectives and
risk management straregy. The file specifies the hedging instrument, the hedged project, the nature of the
hedged risk, and the Group's method for evaluaring the effectiveness of the hedging. Hedping effectivenes
refers o the degree o which the fair value or cash flow change of the hedging insrrument can offser
the fair value or cash flow of the hedged ftem caused by the hedged risk. Swuch hedging should be
continuously evaluated for compliance with hedging effecoiveness requirements on the initial designared
dare and subscquent periods.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, rermimated or exercised (the replacement or rollover of a hedging instrument into another hedging
instrument does not constitute an expiration or eemination), or the hedging relationship ceases o meer
the updared risk management objective, or to meer other qualifying criteria for hedging accounring.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectivencss requirement relating to the hedge ratio
but the risk management objective for thar designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group
adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.

If the condition of the hedge accounting method is satisfied, it should be treated as follows:
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)
5 Fimancial instromenis {cominued)

5.6 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
Fair value bedge

Gains or losses arising from hedging instruments are recognised in profic or los. The gains or losses
of the hediged frem due o the hedging risk exposure shall be recopnised in profiv or loss, and the
kool value of the hedged item nor be measered ar fair value shall be adjusted ar the same time.

For the fair value hedges relared to the debr instrument measured ar amortised cosr, the adjustment of
the book valee of the hedged irem should be amortised by the effective interest rate method during
the remaining period of the hedge and recognised in profit or loss. The amortigation in accordance
with the offective inrerest rate method may commence immediarely after the adjustment of book
value and shall nor be larer than the rerminarion of the adjustment of the hedped item based on
the change in fair value caused by the hedging risk. If the hedged item is a debr instrument at fair
value through other comprehensive income, the accumulated recognised hedpe gains or losses are
amortised in the same way and recognised in profic or loss, bue the book value of financial asscts
is not adjusted. If the hedged dtem is terminated, the unamortised fair value is recognised in profic
or loss.

IF the hedged item is an unrecognised firm commitment, the subsequent cumulative chinge in the
fair value of the firm commitment attributable o the hedged sk is recognised as an aser or liabiliey
with a corresponding gain or loss recopnised in profic or loss. The changes in the fair value of the
hedging instrument are also recognised in profit or loss,

Cash flow bedge

The gain or loss of the hedging instrument that belongs to the effective part should be directly
recognised in other comprehensive income, and the incffective part shall be recopnised in profit or
hoss,

If thie hedged Forecast transsction subsequently confirmed a5 2 non-finaneial asser or non-financial
liability, or the forecast rransaction of a4 non-financial asser or non-financial Gabilicy form a fiem
commitment for the applicable fair value hedge, cash flow hedpe reserve original recognised in erher
comprehensive income shall be reclasified o the initally amounr of the assers and liabilies. The
remaining cash flow hedge reserve recognised in other comprehensive income shall be reclassified o
profit or loss in the same periods when the hedped funsre cash flows affecr profir or loss, such as
the expected sales occur.

When the Group discontinues hedge accounting for a cash flow hedge, if the hedged furere cash
flows are still cxpected to occur, that ameunt accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve shall
remain in equity until the expected transaction actually eccurs or the commitment is confirmed to
be fulfilled. If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected o occur, that amount shall be
immediately reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve o profit or loss,
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;

Financial instrumenis (continied)

5.7

5.8

5.9

Converiible corporate bonds

Convertible bonds comprise the liabiliy and equity componenrs. The liabiliy component,
representing the obligation to make fxed payments of principal and interest, is clasified as a liabiliry
and inirially recognised ar the fair value, calculated using the marker interest rare of a similar liabilicy
that does not have an equity conversion oprion, and subsequently measured ar amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity compenent, representing an embedded oprion o convert
the liability into ordinary shares, is ininally recognised in “Equity”™ as the differcnce berween the
proceeds received from the convertible bonds as a whole and rthe amount of the liability component.
Any direcdy atrriburable ransaction costs are allocared o the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds,

On conversion of the bonds into shares, the amount transferred to share capital is calculated as the
par value of the shares multiplied by the number of shares converted. The difference between the
carrying value of the related component of the converted bonds and the amount transferred to share
capital is recognised in capital surplus under “Capital reserve”,

Transfer of financial assets

If the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of conership of financial assets
to the transferee, it shall de-recognise the financial assets; if it retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of finaneial assets, it shall not de-recopnise the financial assers,

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all che risks and rewards of ownership of
financial assets, it shall deal with the Following situations separately: if it abandons its control over
the financial assers, it should de-recognise the financial assers and recognise the assers and liabilites
thar arose; if it does not abandon its control over the financial assers; i shall recognise the relevant
financial assers in accordance with the extent o which it continues to be involved in the mransferred
financial assers, and relevane liabilities are recognised accordingly.

[f the Group continues oo be involved in the rransferred financial assers by providing a financial
guarantee, the assets thar arose from the continued invobvement shall be determined ar the lower
of the baok valie of the finandial assets and the amount of the financial guarantee. The amount
of the financial guarantee refers 1o the maximum amouns thar will be required o be repaid among
the consideration received.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilitics are offset and the ner amoune is reporred in the statement of financial
position when there is a current legally enforceable right o set off the recognised amounts and there
is an intenton to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and sertle the Lability simultaneously.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)
s Precious metals

Precious metals that are nor related 1o the Group's teading activities are initially measured ar acquisition
cost and subsequently measured ar the lower of cost and ner realisable value, Preciows metals acquired
by the Group for rading purposes are initially measured ar fair value less costs o sell, and subsequent
changes in fair value less costs o sell are recognised in profic or loss in the vear of the change.

Financial assets held nnder resale and reporchase agreements

Financial assers purchased under agreements to resell are not reporred as purchases of the assers bur as
receivables and are carried in the starement of financial posidon ar amortised cosr.

Financial assers sold subject to a simulaneous agreement to repurchase these assets are rerained in the
statement of financial position and measured in accordance with their original measurement principles.
The proceeds from the sale are reported as liabilities and are carried at amortised cost.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised as “Interest expense” or “Interest income” in
the statement of profit or loss over the life of the agreements using the effective interest methed.

] ]*rﬁpr.'rl:l.'. l:li.l.n[ and m.ulluuqnl

Property, plant and equipment are assets held by the Group for operation and administration purposes

with useful lives over one year.

The Group's property, plant and equipment mainly comprise premises, electronic equipment, aireraft and
CONSEMICHON In progress,

The assets purchased or constructed are inifially measured af acquisition cost or deemed cost, as appropriate,
Such initial cost includes expenditure thar is dircetly arerbutable to the acquisition of the asers.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrving amount, only when it is probable thar future economic
benefits aseociared with the item will flow o the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably,
All other repair and maintenance costs are charged 1o the starement of profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the srraighr-line method o write down the cost of such assers o their
residual values over their estimared useful lives. The residual values and useful lives of assers are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriare, ar cach financial reporting dare.

Gains and lasses on disposals are derermined by the difference berween proceeds and carrying amounr,
after deduction of relevant taxes and expenses. These are included in the statement of profit or loss,
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B

Property, plant and equipment (continued

B.2

8.3

Premises, electronic equipment and others

Property, plant and equipmenrt are depreciared using the sraight-line method over their estimared
useful lives, after raking into account their estimated residual values. The estimared useful lives,
residual values and depreciation rates of cach class of property. plant and equipment are as follows:

Estimared

Estimated rate of
useful life residual Depreciation
Asset category {years) valwe( %) rate (%)
Premises 30-35 3 2852
Elecrronic equipment 35 35 19.0-32.3
Ohthers 5-10 3-5 9.5-149.4

Aircraft

Aircraft are used in the Group's aircraft operating leasing business.

Aircraft are depreciawed using the straight-line methed over the expected useful life of 25 years, less
the vears in service at the time of purchase at an estimated residual value rate of 15%.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress consists of assets under construction or being installed and is stated at
cost. Cost includes equipment cost, cost of construction, installation and other dirccr costs. Irems
classified as construction in progress are transferred to property and equipment when such assets are
ready for their intended wse and the depreciation charge commences after such assets are transferred
to property and equipment.

Lenses

2.1

Lease classification

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease, A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right o
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Group assesses whether, throughout
the period of use, the customer has both of the right to obrain substantially all of the economic
benefies from use of the identified asser and the fght to direct the wse of the identified assee.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)
9 Leases {continued)

9.2 Assessment of the lease term

The lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease for which the Group has the right ro wse an
underlying asser. I the Group has an opion o extend the lease, thar is, the Group has the rghe
o extend the lease, and is reasonably certain to exercise thar option, the lease rerm alse includes
perinds covered by an oprion to extend the lease. IF the Group has an oprion o terminate the lease,
thar is, the Group has the right 1o terminate the lease, bur is reasonably certain not o exercise that
oprion, the lease term incdudes the periods covered by an opron o erminace the lease. The Group
reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an cxrensien option, purchase oprion. of not
o exercise a termination oprion, upon the occurrence of cither a significant cvent or a significant
change in the circumstances that is within the control of the Group and affects whether the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the cerresponding option.

2.3 As lessee
Lease modification
Lease madification is a-change in the scope of a lease, the consideration for a lease or lease term, thar

was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease. For example, adding or terminating
the right to use one or more underlying assets, or extending or shortening the comtractual lease term,

The Giroup accounts for a lease modification as a scparate lease if both:

(1} the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use ene or more
underlying assets; and

(2} the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the inerease in seope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract,

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, ar the effective date of the lease
madification, the Group remeasures the lease lability by discounting the revised lease payments wsing
a revised discount rate. In caleulating the present value of the lease payments after modificarion. the
revised discount rare is determined as the interest rage implicic in the lease for the remainder of the
lease rerm, or the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate ar the effecrive date of the modification, if the
interest rate implicic in the lease cannor be readily derermined.

For the impact on the adjustments of a lease liability, the Group accounts for the remeasurement by:
(1} decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination
af the lease for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease or shorten the lease
term, and recognising the gain or loss relating te the partial or full erminatdon of the lease in

pruﬁt or loss; or

(2} making a corresponding adjustment to the right-ef-use asser for all other lease modifications,
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9

[.4'.'1!'5-!.'5 Leontins -\.I!

2.3

9.4

As lessee (continued)
The ifweremental borvowing rate of lescee

The Group uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate to caleulate the present value
of lease payment. When determining the incremental borrowing rate, cach institution of the Group
uses it economic environment and rthe observable interese rare ag the foundation. On this basis, the
applicable incremental borrowing rate is caleulated chrough the adjusement of the reference interest
rate, which is determined according to the sinnation of the institution and the underlying asser, the

lease term, the amoune of the lease liahiliny and other specific conditions of the lease.

Shore-term leases and leases af low-value assets

The Group considers a lease thar, ar the commencement date of the lease, has a lease term of 12
months or less, and does nor contain any purchase option a5 a shom-term lease: and a lease for
which the value of the individual underlving asser is relatively low when it is new as a lease of a
low-value asser. The Group chooses not o recognise the righr-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
shor-term leases and leases of low-value assers, and the rent is amorrised on a straighe-line basis in
cach period of the lease term and included in the statement of profit or loss,

As lessor

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset, except that a lease is classified as an operating lease ar the
inceprion date.

When the Group is a lessor under finance beases, at the commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognises finance lease receivable and derecognises finance lease asers. [n the initial measurement of
the finance lease receivable, the Group recognises the net investment of the lease as the book value.
The net investment in a lease is the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the present value of
the unreceived minimum lease payment receivable at the commencement date, which is diseounted
by the interest rare implicit in the lease. The Group caleulares and recopnises the interest income in
each period during the lease rerm wsing the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognises such
ingefest expenses in profic or loss. Variable lease payments thar are nor measured a5 part of the net
investment in the lease are recognised in profic or loss as incurred.

When the Group is a lessor under operating leases, the Group still reflects the underlying assets as

the Group's assets. The rent income is amortised on a straighe-line basis in each period of the lease
term and recognised in the statement of profit or less, or profic or loss as incurred.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)
9 Leases {continued)

2.5 Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assers of the Group mainly include buildings. vehicles and other equipment.

Ar the commencement dare of the lease. the Group recognises a right-of-use asser. The cost of the
right-of-use xsser comprises:

(1} the amount of the inidal measurement of the lease liability;

(2} any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease less any lease
incentives received;

(3} any initial direct cost incurred when the Group is a lessee; and

(4} an estimate of costs incurred by the lesice in dismantling and removing the underlying asser,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset 1o the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,

The right-of-use assets are depreeiated on a straight-line basis subsequently by the Group. [f the
Group is reasonably cerrain that the ownership of the underlying asser will be transferred to the
Group ar the end of the lease term, the Group depreciates the asser from the commencement date
te the end of the useful life of the asser. Orherwise, the Group depreciates the assers from the
commencement date to the carlier of the end of the wseful life of the asser and the end of the lease
rerm, whichever is shorrer,

The Group remeasures the lease liability ar the present value of the changed lease payments and
adjusts the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets accordingly, when the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asser is reduced to zero, and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the
lease liability, the Group recognises the remaining amount of the remeasurement in profic or loss,

9.6 Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group measures the lease liability ar the present value
of the lease payments thar are not paid ar thar date, excepr for short-trerm leases and leases of low-
value asscrs.

In caleulating the present value of the lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate of lessee as the discount rate, The Growp calculates the interest expenses of the lease liability in
cach period during the lease term using the constant periedic rate of interest, and recognises such
interest expenses in profit or loss. Varable lease payments that are not incladed in the measurement
of the lease liabilities are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

After the commencement date, the Group remeasures the lease labiliey by discounting the revised
lease payments using & revised discount rate if either: (i) there is 2 change in the amounts expected o
be payable under a residual value puarantee; (i) there is a change in futere lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or a Fare used o determine those payments: or (fii} there i a change in
the assessment of an option to purchase, extend or terminate the underlying asset, assessed in the
context of a purchase oprion.
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L1

Intangible ussets

Intangible asers are identifiable non-monetary assers withour physical substance, including computer
software and other intangible asscrs,

Compurer software and other intangible ascers are srared ar acquisition cost less accumulared amorrisation
and impairment. These costs are amortised on a straighe-line basis over their estimared useful lives with

the amorrisation recognised in the statement of profic or lonss.

The respective amortisation periods for intangible assets are as follows:

Estimated uschul
Asset category lives (years)
Computer software &
Oihers -0

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair valee of the
identifiable net assets of the acquiree under the business combination involving entities not under common
control. Goodwill is not amertised and is stated at cost less aceumulated impairment loss (Note 11 13).
On disposal of the related cash-generating unit ("CGU™) or group of CGLUSs, any attributable amount of
purchased goodwill is written off and incleded in the caleulation of profit or loss on disposal.

I cpo sseascd assers

Repossessed assets are ph}'sic:l] assets or property nghts obtained by the Group from debrors, warrantors or
third parties following the enforcement of its creditor’s rights. The repossessed asets should be recorded
at the fair value of the abandoned creditor’s rights, and the relevant expenses payable for obtaining
the reposessed assers should be included in the book value of the repossessed assets. When there is an
indication that the net realizable value of the repossesed assers is lower than the book value, the Group
will reduce the book value to the net realizable value,

Provision for impairmeni losses an non-linanclal assers

The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed at the end of the year based on the internal and
expernal sources of information te determine wheeher there is any indication of impairment: property, planmt
and equipment, fght-of-use assers, construction in progress, intangible assers, goodwill and investments
in subsidiaries and joint ventures,

If any indicarion exists thar an asser may be impaired, the recoverable amount of the asser is estimared.
In addirion, the Group estimates the recoverable amounts of goodwill ar no later than each year end.
irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment or not. Goodwill is allocared 1o the CGU,
ar group of CGUs, thar is expected to benefic from the synergies of the combination for the purpese of
impairment testing.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)
13 Provision for impairment losses on non-financial assets (continued)

A CGU is the smallesy identifiasble group of asets that generates cash inflows thar are largely independent
af the cash inflows from other assets or asser groups. A CGLU s composed of asers direcdy relating o
cash generation. Identification of a CGLU is based on whether major cash inflows generated by the asser
growp are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or asser groups. In identifving an asset
group, the Group also considers how management monirors the Group's operations and how management
makes decisions abour continuing or disposing of the Group’s assers.

The recoverable amount of an asser or CGU, or a group of CGUs {hereinafrer called “asset™) is' the
higher of its fair value less costs 1o sell and its present value of expected future cash flows. If there is any
indication that an assct may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asser; if
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines the
recoverable amount of the asset group to which the assets belongs.

If there i indication of impairment when testing for asset group or group of asset groups with goodwill
for impairment, the Group shall first rest the asset group or group of aser groups excluding goodwill
for impaiement and recognise the impairment loss in the statement of profit or loss. Then the Group
shall tese the asset group or group of asset groups induding goodwill for impairment, by comparing the
carrying amount with its recoverable amount. Any impairment loss shall be allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocared to the aset group or group of aser groups fisst and then pro rara on
the basis of carrying amount of each of the asser group or group of aset groups (excluding goodwill),

An impairment los in respect of goodwill i not reversed. IF, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss of the non-financial asser excepr for poodwill decreases and the decrease can be linked
abjectively 1o an event occurring after impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profic or boss. A reversal of impairment loss is limited 1o the asser’s carrving amount
thar would have been determined had mo impairment loss been recognised in prior periods.

The present value of expecred furure cash flows of an asset is determined by discounting the furure cash
flows, estimared to be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal, o their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate thar reflects expected future cash flows, the useful life and the
discount rate specific to the aset

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recopgnised in profit or los. A provision for an impairment loss of the asser s

recopnised accordingly.

For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, goodwill arising from business combination is allocared
to asset group since the acquisition date. IF it cannot be reliably allocated o an asser group, it should be
allocared 1o the relevant group of asser groups. The aser group or group of asser groups is expected w
benefit from the synergics of the busines combination and s not larger than a segment as defined by
the Group,
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1T SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
14 Employee benefiis

Employee bencfits refer o all forms of consideration and other related expenditure given by the Group
in exchange for services rendered by employees, The benefits payable are recognised as liabilities during
the period in which the employees have rendered services o the Group. If the effect of discounting the
bencfits payable which are payable after one year from the end of the reporting period is significant, the
Group will present them ar their present value,

14.1 Shori-term employee benefits

Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, soctal security contributions such as medical insurance, work
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing funds, measured at the amount incurred or at
the applicable benchmarks and rates, are recognised as a liabilicy as the emplovee provides services,
with a corresponding charge to profit or loss or included in the cost of assets where appropriare.

Al eligible employees outside Mainland China participate in local defined contribution schemes,
The Group contributes to these defined contribution schemes based on the requirements of the
local regulatory bodies.

14.2 Post-employment benefits - defined contribution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in a defined
contribution basic pension insurance in the sedal insurance system established and managed by
government organisations, The Group makes contributions to basic pension insurance plans based
on the applicable benchmarks and rates stipulated by the govenment. Basic pension insurance
contributions are recognised as part of the cost of the assers or charged o profic or loss as the relared
services are rendered by the employees.

In addition, employees in Mainland China also parricipare in a defined contribution retirement
benefir plan established by the Group (the “Annuity Man”). The Group and its employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of the emplovees' previous vear basic salaries 1o the
Annuity Plan. The contriburion is charged o profic or loss when it is incurred. The Group pays a
fixed conmribution into the Annuity Plan and has no obligation o pay further coneriburions if the
Annuity Plan docs not hold sufficient assees o pay all employee benefits,
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)
14  Emplovee benefits (continued)

14.3 Termination benefits

Terminarion benefits are payable as a result of either the Group’s dedision to terminare an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement dare or an employee’s decision 1o accepr an offer of
kencfits in exchange for the rermination of eonployment. The Group recognises rerminarion benefits
in profir or loss ar the carlier of:

— When the Group can no longer withdraw an offer of those benefits; and

—  When the Group has a specific, formal restructuring plan invelving payment of termination
benefies, and the plan has started or the details of the plan have been notified to cach affected
party. so that each party has developed reasonable expecrations.

14.4 Early retirement benefits

According to the Group’s policy on carly retirement benefits, certain employees are entitled to take
leave of absence and in return receive a certain level of staff salaries and related benefits from the
Group. The salaries and benefit payments are made from the dave of carly retirement o the normal
retirement date. Differences arising from changes in asumptions and estimates of the present value
af the liabilities are recognised in profit or los when it is incurred,

15 Oiher Ilrlhl‘]'\iﬂl‘l'\ and LLI:I:IIillHI:'II[ liabilitles

A provision i recognised for an obligation related to a contingency if the Group has a present obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and ir is probable thar an cutflow of economic benefits will be required 1o
setele the obligation. A provision is initially measured ar the best estimate of the expenditure required 1o
settle the relaved present obligation. Factors pertaining ro a contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and
time value of moncy are taken into account as a whole in reaching the best estimate, Where the effect of
time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected furure cash flows.

Far a possible obligation resuling from a past rransaction or event whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence of non-occurrence of uncerrain fumre evenrs or a present obligation resulting from a
past transaction of event, where it is not probable thar the secdemenr of the above obligation will cause
an outflow of economic benefits, or the amount of the outflow cannot be estimared reliably, the possible
or present obligation is disclosed as a contingent liabilicy.
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16

Fidociary activities

The Group acts in a fdudary activity as o manager, 3 custodian, of an agent for customers. Awets held
by the Group and the related wndertakings o return such assets to customers are recorded as off-balance
sheer irems as the risks and rewards of the assers reside with customers.

The Group enters into entrusted loan agreements with customers, whereby the costomers provide funding
("entrusred funds") o the Group, and the Group grants loans to thied parties ("entrusred loans”™) under
instrucrions of the customers. As the Group does nor assume the risks and rewards of the enrruseed loans
and the corresponding entrusted funds, the entrusted loans and funds are recorded as off-balance sheet
items at their principal ameunts. No provision for impairment loss is made for entrusred loans.

Other equity instruments

Preference shares

Such preference shares or their components are initially recognised as financial assets, financial liabilities
ar equity instruments acoording o the twrms of the contract, the economic substance and the definiton
of financial assets, financial liabilitics and cquity instrumenis.,

When the issued preferemce shares contain equity and kability components, the Group follows the same
accounting policy as for convertible bonds with equity components. For the issued preference shares which
do not contain equity component, the Group follows the accounting policy for the convertible bonds
with liability component enly,

The issued preference shares that should be casified as equity instruments will be recognised as equity
in the actual amount received. Dividends payable are recognised as distribution of profis, Equity will be
written down by the redemption price for any redemptions made before maturing in accordance with
contractual terms,

Perpetual bonds

The perperual bonds issued by the Group do nor include the contrerual obligations 1o pay cash or other
financial assers to orher parries or exchange financial assers or financial liabilities with orher partics under
potential adverse condiions; and perperual bonds isswed includes no terms and amangement thar che
bonds must or will alteenatively be serded in the Group's own equity instruments. The perpereal bonds
issucd by the Group are divided into equity instruments. The handling fees and commissions incurred in
isming the puputual bonds are divided into equity instruments, and the ransaction costs are deducted

from equity. The interest on perpetual bond is recognized as profit distribution at the fme of declaration.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

18 Income recopnition

The income should be recognised when the Group’s performance abligation in the contrace is fulfilled,
which refers the revenue is recognised when the customer obtains the contral right of relevant goods or
services. To obmin the right of control over related poods or services means o be able vo dominare dhe
use of such goods or the provision of such services and obrain almost all economic benefits therefrom.

18.1 Interest income

Incerest income for financial assets is recognised in profic or loss as it is incurred, based on the
time for alienation of right to use capital and effective interest rates. [nserest income includes the
amortisation of any discount or premium or differences beoween the inital carrying amount of an
interest-hearing asset and its amount at maturity calculated using the effective interest rate.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of
allocating the interest income, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate. a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the finandal asser. When caleularing
the effective interest rate, the Group stimates csh flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider future credit loses, The caleulation includes all fees paid
or received herween parties to the contract, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts
that are an integral part of the effective interest rarte,

For the purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assers, the Group caleulares the interest
income according to the amortised cost of the fimancial assers and the effecrive interest rare after
credit adjustment since the initial recognition by the Group. The effecrive interest rate after credic
adjustment refers o the cstimared furure cash flows of the acquired or originared financial assers wirth
credit impairment in the expected duration, which is converted into the interest rare of amorrised
cost of the financial assets,

For the financial asses acquired or originated without any credic impairment, but incurred. credic
impairment in the subsequent period, the Group caleulates the interest income in accordance with
the amartised cost and the effective. interest rage of the financial assets,

18.2 Fee and commission income

The Group carns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides o its
customers. For those services that are provided over a period of time, fee and commission income
is accrued in accordance with the terms and conditions of the service agreement. For other services,
fee and commission income is recognised when the transactions are completed.

18.3 Other income

Orther income s recognised on an accrual basis.
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19

Expenses recognition

19.1 Interest expenses

[nmerest expenses from financial liabilivies are acerued on a time propertion basis with reference 1o
the amortised cost and the applicable effective innerest rare.

19.2 Other expenses
Ohther expenses are recopnised on an accreal basis.

Income tix

Income rax comprises current and deferred x. Income rax relating o irems recognised outside profic
or Joss § recognised ouside profic or los, eicher in other comprehensive income or direerly in equity.

Current tax assers and liabilides are measured ar the amount expected w0 be recovered from or paid o
the taxarion aurhorities, based on tax rates (and rax laws) thar have been enacred or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting peried, raking into considerarion interpretations and pracrices prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates,

Dieferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temperary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

MepOTting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all saxable eemporary differences. excepe:

—  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or labiliny
in a ransaction that is nor a business combination and, a7 the time of the ransaction, affects neither
the aceounting profic nor taxable profit or loss; and

= in respect of taxable wemporary differences associared with investments in subsidiaries, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
remporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Dicfeered wax assers are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and the caery forward of unused
tax credits and any unwsed rax losses. Deferred tax assers are recognised 1o the extent thar it is probable
thar raxable profic will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused rax credits and unused rax losces can be wrilised, excepr:

—  when the deferred rax asser relaing o the deducidble temporary differences arises from the inirial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction thar is nor a business combinatien and, ar the
time of the transacrion, affects neither the accounting profic nor toable ]:lm:ﬁt or loss and

— in respect of deductible cemporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred rax
assets are only recognised to the extent thart it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foresceable future and taxable profic will be available against which the temporary differences
can be wtilised.
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I SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)
20 Income tax {continued)

Deferred v amers and liabilities are measured ar the tax raves that are expeered 1o apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the labiliy is scrrled, based on tax rates {and vax laws) thar have been enacted
ar substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assers is reviewed ar the end of cach reporting period and reduced
to the extent thar it is no longer probable thar sufficient taable profic will be available o allow all or
part of the deferred tax asser o be urilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assers are reassessed ar the end of
cach reporting period and are recogniced o the exrent thar it has become probable thar sufficient xable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred rax asser w be recovered.

Deeferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsct if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax asscrs against current fax liabilicies and the deferred taxes relate w0 the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

21 Dividends

Dividends or distributions of profies proposed in the profit appropriation plan which will be authorised
by the Group and declared after the end of the reporting year are not recognised as a liability at the end
of the year but disclosed separately in the notes w the financial statements,

22  Related ]:r.'l]‘l]t'.':

If a Group has the power to control, jointly conirel or exercise significant influsnce over another party,
or vice versa, or where the Group and one or more parties are subject to common contral or joint
control from another party, they are considered 1o be related parties, Related parties may be individuals
of enterprises. Enterprises with which the Group is under common control only from the State and that
have no other related party relationships are not regarded as related partics.

23 Segment reporiing

Reporable sepments are identified based on operating segments which are determined based on the
structure of the Group's internal organisation, management requirements and internal reporting system,
whose operaring results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s management to make decisions abouwr
resourees o be allocared to the segment and asess its performance. Any segments which do nor comply
with the reporting of segments by division of quantities are reperted ar consolidation level.
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180

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions thar affect the
application of accounting policies and the repomed amounts of assers, liabilitics, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates, Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to acoounting estimeates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in

any future periods affected.

Arcas susceptible to changes in aitical cstimates and judgements, which affect the carrying value of assets and
liahilitics, are st out befow. It is possible that actual results may be materially different from the estimates and
judgements referred below.

J|11I!_|'|h:lh:'hl lpases on Onanclal assers

The Group follows [FRS 9 to measure impairment losses of all financial assets. In this process, there are
many estimates and judgements, especially the determination of the amount of impairment losses, the
estimation of future contract cash flows, the value of collateral, and the criteria for judging a significant
increase in credie risk. The Group’s impairment measurement is impacted by many factors, which will
lead to different levels of allowanee for impairment.

The Group's expected credit loss calculation is the result of model ourpur, which contains many medel
assumptions and parameter inputs. The accounting judgements and estimates used in the expected credit
loss model include:

»  eriteria for judging a significant inerease in eredit risk
*  definiion of credit impaired assets

*  parameters for the measurement of ECL

«  forward-looking information

*  management overlay

*  medification of contractual cash flows

Fair valoe of financial instroments

There are no quoted prices from an active market for 2 number of financial instruments, The Fair values
af these financial instruments are established by using valuation techniques. These techniques include
using recent arm's length market transactions by referring to the current fair value of similar instruments,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. The Group has establishied a work flow to ensure
that the valuation techniques are constructed by qualified personnel and are validated and reviewed by
independent personnel. Valuation techniques are certified and calibrated before implementation o ensure
that the valuation result reflects the actual market condidons. Valuation models established by the Group
make maximum wse of marker inputs and rely as linle as possible on the Group's specific data, However,
it should be noted that some inputs, such as eredir and counterparty risk, and risk correlations require
management’s estimates. The Group reviews the above estimations and assumptions periodically and
makes adjustment if necessary.
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III CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APFLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3 Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions invelves judgement on the future rax reatment of cemain rransactions,
The Group carcfully evaluares the rax implications of rransacrions and rax provisions are ser up accordingly.
The tax rreatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically o rake into accounr all changes in
tax legislation, Deferred tax assers are recognised for 1ax losses nor ver used and temporary deductible
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised o the extent that it is probable rhar
furure taxable profits will he available against which the unused rax credits can be urilised, management’s
judgement is required ro assess the probability of future taxable profirs. Management's assessment is
constantly reviewed and additonal deferred rax assers are recognised if it becomes probable that furure
taxable profits will allow the deferred rax assews o be recovered.

4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Mon-financial asscts are reviewed regularly o determine whether the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount of the assets. IF any such indication exists, an impairment loss is provided.

Since the market price of an asset (the asset group) cannot be obtained reliably, the fair value of the assct
cannot be estimated reliably. [n assessing the present value of future cash flows, significant judgements
are exercised over the aset’s selling price, related operating expenses and the discount rate w aloulate
the present value, All relevane marerials which can be obrained are used for estimation of the recoverable
amount, including the estimation of the selling price and related operating expenses based on reasonable
and supportable asumption,

vl

Drepreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated and amertised wsing the straight-line
method over their estimazed useful lives after taking into account residual values. The estimated useful
lives are regubarly reviewed ro determine the depreciation and amostisation costs charged in the reporting
period, The estimared useful lives are determined based on historical experiences of similar assets and the
estimated technical changes. IF there is an indication thar there has been a change in the fetors used 1o
determine the depreciation er amortisation, the amount of depreciation or amorisation will be revised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in millicns of Benminbi, nnlos otherwiee sared)

[II CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6

Judgement in assessing control over structured entities

The Group is involved with structured entiries in its normal business cowrse, and the Group derermines
wihether or not o consolidate those seructired entities depending en whether the Group has conrrol
over them. When assessing control over structured entities, the Group rakes into consideration the power
arising from rights it directly owns or indirealy owns chrough subsidiaries (including controlled structured
entities), variable rerurns, and the link berween power and rerurns,

The variable recurns the Group is exposed to from its invalvement with structared entinies include decision
makers" remuneration (such as management fees and performance-related fees), as well as ocher benefits
{such as investment income, remuneration and exposure to loss from providing credic or liquidity suppart.
and variable retums from transactions with structured entities), When assessing whether it controls a
structured entity, the Group not only considers applicable legal or regulatory requirements, and contractual
agreements, but also other circumstances where the Group may have the obligation to absorh any los of
the structured entity.

The Group reassesses whether it controls a structured entity if facts and circumstances indicate thar there
are changes to one or more of the relevant elements of control.

TAXATION

The Group'’s main applicable taxes and tax rates are as follows:

{a)
{b)
{c)
(d)

Value-added tax: value-added tax is charged at 6% and 13% on raxable added value,

City construction tax: ity construction tax is caleulared as 1%-79%0 of busines tax.

Education surcharge: educarion surcharge is caleulared as 3% of busines rax.

Income rax: the income rax is caleulared on raxable income, The statutory income tax rare of the Bank and
domestic subsidiaries is 25%. The starurory income rax rate of CEB International Invesrment Ca., Led.,

the Hong Kong subsidiary, is 16.5%. The stamrery income tax rare of China Everbright Bank Company
Limited {Ewrope) ("China Everbright § A.7), the Luembourg subsidiary, is 15%.
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -i
1 Met Inberest income
Mate 2020 2019
Interest income arising from
Dieposits with the cenrral bank 5,073 5,020
Deposits with banks and other financial instrurions Ol 1,470
Placements with banks and other financial
instirurions 1,083 3,208
Loans and advances o customers {a)
— Corporate loans and advances 76,214 70,854
— Personal loans and advances T a7y 72,578
— Discounted hills 2,295 2,020
Finance lease receivables 5,524 4,444
Financial assets held under resale agreements 94 2,377
Investments 52,229 48,073
Subtotal 221,475 210,044
Interest expenses arising from
Due o the ceneral bank O 14 8012
Dieposits from banks and other financial institorions 10,271 12,712
Placements from hanks and other financial
institutions 4270 6,520
Dieposits fram customers
~ Corporate customers 58,45 47.074
- Individual customers 19,643 16, BRI
Financial asets sold under repurchase agrecments At 1,707
Debt securities fsued 11,6659 15,221
Subtoral 110,778 108,126
Mer interest income 110697 101,218
MNatre

(rH Tl imneresr iworve ariang fam ompaieed [usonnal aoen fir o pear emilod 57 Dreember 2020 amowarad o RAWEET millies (2075 RARS2E
i
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Net fee and commission income
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2020 2009
Fee and commission income
Bank card service fees 12,245 14,163
Agency services fees 3,288 2,744
Wealth management service Fees 2,518 634
Sertlemnent and clearing fees 1,701 1,538
Underwriting and advisory fees 1.626 190
Custody and other fiduciary business fees 1614 14406
Acceprance and guarantee fres 1,529 1360
Oichers 2,484 2,183
Subworal 27,005 25977
Fee and commission expense
Bank card rransacrion fees 1,842 1.90%
Sertlernent and dearing fees 150 144
Others (e ] 756
Subtoral 2.682 2,808
Met fee and commision income 24,323 23169
NL"'. lrﬂi‘i]'l]_"‘ ]:"_J.i.“l
20020 2009
Trading financial instruments
— Derivatives {365} (355)
~ Dicht securities #36 920
Subraral 467 565
Financial instruments designated ar fair value
through profic or boss {2} {1}
Precious metal contraces 19 21
Taotal 484 3R3

294/429



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 n0(E25668)
Oooooooa

wodsy pemey o707

V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4 Met gains arising from Investiment securifies

2020 019
Ner gains arising from financial investments ar fair value
through profic or los 50016 4,622
Mer losses arising from debr instruments ar fair value
through other comprehensive incame (785} {1,915)
MNer gains arising from loans and advances to customers at
fair value through other comprebensive income 198 189
Mer revaluation gains reclassified from other
comprehensive income on disposal 774 1,982
Toral 5,203 4,878
5  Operating cxpenses
More 2020 2019
Snaff costs
~ Salaries and bonuses 3,003 12,759
- Pension and annuiry 1,611 2,167
= Housing allowances 991 531
— Seaff welfares 574 443
- Supplementary retitement benefirs 154 110
— Ohhers 2910 2041
Subroral 19243 18,401
Premises and equipment expenses
~ Depreciation of right-of-use sssers 1,677 2,429
= Depreciation of Property. plant and equipment 1,651 1,485
- Amartisation of intangible asers 524 400
- Bental and properey managemicnt expenses 492 363
= Interest expense on lease liabilines 487 489
— Amaortisation of other long-term assers 22 350
Subiroral 6,143 5718
Tax and surcharges 1,483 1,401
Oither general and administrative expenses tal 13.402 12.910
Total 40,271 38429
Nate:

fal .llilm'rrmmm!ﬁr toe por e 31 [aecwmder 2050 o RAEERA0 mitlon (20018 RS0 milian)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in millicns of Benminbi, nnlos otherwiee sared)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6 Direciors” and supervisors’ emolumenis

The emoluments before individual income tax in respeer of the dircerors and supervisors who held office
during the reporting year are as follows:

2020

Contributions
Discredionary bosuses. to social
; persion Other
MNotes Fes  Salaries Pid  Payable  Subtotal shemes. welfars Total
RMB'D00 RMB'00D RMBOOO RMBO0D RMBOM0  RMBOOO RMBO00 RMB'DI0

Executive direstors
Lu Heng - 1,520 T4l - 2260 ity 11 2417
Liu Jin (il - 298 s - 2] Iz 111 44
Non-executive

directors
Li Nisopeng - - - - - - - =
W Lijun {ii) - - - - - - - -
Liu Cheng - - - - - - -
Y Chunfine - - - - - - - -
Independent non-

executive directors
Li Yinquan i) - 25 - 215 - - 215
X Hoengeai - 430 - - 430 - - 430
Wang Liguo - 420 - 420 - - 420
Shor Rusicpireg - 42 - - 426 - - 426
Hong Vormen - 430 - 430 - - 430
Supervisars
Li Xin - 15K} (1] - 2260 4t 11 2417
Yin Lianchen - - - - - - - -
Wa Junhao - - = - - - - =
Wu Gaolian - - - - = - = -
Wang Zhe 330 - - - 330 - - 330
Qiao Zhimin Ho - - - Ho - - Ho
Xa Keshun - TH 1572 - 2,300 46 i i
Sun Jianwe - TH 1,095 - 1,831 45 i 1,988
Shamg Wencheng - T 1,280 - 1,984 44 1ni L1359
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 3
6 Directors" and supervisors’ emoluments (continued |
The emoluments before individual income rax in respeet of the directors and supervisors who held office
during the repornting year are as followss (continued)
2020
Coneributions
Discrctionary bonuss to socia
poion Other
Notes Fos.  Salaries Paid  Payable  Subtorad schemes welfars.  Tonal
RMB000 RMBO00 RMBO0O RMEB'O00 RMB'O00  RME'O00 RME'000 RMB000
Farmer non-
executive directors
Cai Yunge fiip - = - - = = = -
Wang Xiackin i - - - - = = = =
Shi Yongyan fit - = - - - -
Drou Hongquan (it} - - - - - - -
He Hailxin fish - - - =
Farmer independent
nan-exeaive
directors
Fek O Ling fith 215 - - a5 - - 25
Fereg Lun (ii} 300 - - 360 - - 360
187
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6 Directors” and supervisors” emoluments (continued)

The emoluments before individual income tax in respect of the directors and supervisors who held office
during the reporting vear are as follows: (continuwed)

g
Discretionary bonuss |
pension Other

Fes  Silaie Taid Payable  Subtotal shemes  welfues Totd
EMB00n RMBOoR  RMBOGH RMBOM  RMB'0M RMBOD  RMBEOM  RMBEHG

Executive director
Lis H:llg - %2 1228 - 2180 44 1265 2350

Mon-executive

directars
Li Nisopeng - - - - - - - -
Cai Yunge - ES = 3 = 2 = =
Wang Niaolin s - % - - - y ”

Shi Yongyan - - - - - . . ~

Dwoa Hongapian - - - - - - - -
He Haibin - - - - - - - -

Liu Chong = = = = = = = =
Yu Chunling = = = = = a . =

Independent non-

executive directors
Fok Of Ling 370
Xu Hengeai 7l
Wang Ligua 360
Shaor Ruiging 150
Horg Yongmizo b5 ]

Supervisars

Li Xin - 84 1:195 - 2179 44 126 1349
Yin Lianchen - - -

W Junhao - - - - - - - -
Wu Gaclian - - - - - - - -
Wang Zhe X0 - - - 290 - - 290
(Jiao Zhimin 75 - - - 75 - - 7h
X Keshun - k) 5T - 933 | < 1018
Sun [Enwei - Hd 45 - BN £ 1 gii2
Shang Wencheng - HE 59 - BT by | vk 952

B
m
364
154

93

23

in
22
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
i Directors™ and sopervisors’ emolumenis (continued |

The emoluments before individual income rax in respeet of the directors and supervisors who held office
during the reporting year are as followss (continued)

2019
Contributions
Dhiscretionary bofisses &0 sodal
pension Chiber

Feex  Salaries Paid  FPayable  Subwoml schemes welfares Toral
BMBo0  RMBOW RME'S0  RMEw0  RME 0 RMB'OM0  RME00  EMEB 000

Former executive

director
Ge Haijian - L] 150 - 350 16 1105 471
Farmer non-executive

directors
Fu Dong - - - - - - - -
Zhao W - - . - - B - -
Formet independent

- eseculive

director
Qiao Zhimin 284 - - - 184 - - 184
Nie Rong 216 - . . 26 - = b
Feng Lun M3 - = = 3 - - Hi
Former Supervisors
Sun Minhong - 343 470 = big = = 98
Jiang Ow - 349 456 - 85 - - 403
Huang Dan - 24 519 - 783 - - 783
Yu Emiu - - - - - - - -

189
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

190

6

Direciors’ and snpervisors” emoaluments (continied)

The emoluments before individual income tax in respect of the directors and supervisors who held office
during the reporting year are as follows: (continued)

Mare

i

fai)

fased

e 25 Afarcl 2020, ohe CIREC approved Mr, Liw fin's gualficaivn o aw oxewiter divecver of e Sank,
O 2% Marich 2020, the CIRE approved Mr, W Liws's guatfaurew o o dirrier aud the eirr cfatirn of e Sawi.

{M.M.ﬂ.l'ﬂr!-m.Hr.liﬂlwiufhninﬂlwirmfnhﬂn}urbﬂm" doary Sdbarafkders’ Girmrnn Af)
ulﬁ?ﬂ_lﬂuﬂﬁvmﬁﬂﬂfwhﬂhl ';" bpw 1w 'r denr dirwssr.

'

L 23 Sepermeler 2020, dice 1o work adrarar, Mr. Cas Vinge reigaed o sewexecuriee divecssr. o mevaber of the malk Manageomos Commirtes
af the bocrd of direcrans and @ member of e Awiir Comiirer af the board o divernens.

Cip B fuly 2000 My, Wy Xisalin riperd o @ new-ooecutier divmier of the Bank, ebe chasroaen and @ mrlber of the vk Masagreacs:
&-mfdvh&d{dmu-—h#‘&-w &MM{&M.{AW wond at srevabhrs vl M f:..y-u‘u&-mw
wf e desired o directers due to b dhiage of sguery and perienal work sdpermrar of the ok

Cw fuily 28 2020, Mr. Sy Yowgwon rrapeed @ @ seacscmiive diveas, d ok sf ke Nowinslion Camoittee of o baiend o dirertors aoid

o mrmler s the Cammines sa incladie fi I drvelep awd i o af tle doiewd o diveonses dur 1e the change of aquity and
Chw 28 Jule 2020, M. Duw Howggisor pedpaed i & mon-corcutiee diveceor, o mensber af e Stratngy Commitiee of she board of diveciars and @
wmember of the Cammitter ou {wcturier fiwanrisf dfriviap and ¥ of b friutrd of sivresai due ta Hot chvge of epity dud
presinal ward adfmemcnt af the Reonk,

Cim 27 fuke 200, Me. He Hacden revgaed d o mon-corcurive directeor, o imcmibe aff the Awdir Coommitiee of the bosed of divesters amd & meoaber
of o Comrmrirer an factndee Teswvnl devniaparar gl mmomer preverrian 8 die foard af diventens dar to work anfsureenr,

G-lII_FIHMH»MGJmenﬁﬂfwrm.#mﬂwmfnﬁrWM Trawsrcrian Conral
&—-'rm'fiﬁfh-#'-fﬂﬂ#mnm—ﬁr{*Mfmfﬁrh{fmumﬁﬁbmtrmfﬂr
Goutred of divvctars sod @ member of the Reviunenarian Comaister off the fuard of divectan die 20 the capivssion of Do teem o affice.

i 10 fale 2000 afier the plervion of the Secomd Taveviv Sharebabdon” Grmeeal Merving of vhe bank sow 2009, My, Foag Luw wei ae boagee aw
indrpendns direcrar of vhe bawk. Mr. Feag Lua comimura 2 perforsm lis dune wand b quatif v replariny B fadepemidend dvecmse

e racal campravation package fir thew diveary sl agperrian fie the war e 35 December 2020 B nes pre bovw fiwsliseed in gooerdvace
wunh repulation of the PR referan amsberitien, The gmaunt of the campraartion wet provided for i et -expecird te Juive tiguifoinr bopect an
mﬁwiﬁr&tmiﬂuﬂwﬂﬁrﬁrﬂﬂﬂwm

The adgre ddivermses’ doad cupervisrs” pravkivmean [or the voae endlad 17 Deorwber 2000 were cnbadonsd o0 acoordomce aind oheer avruad reaurr.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Individuals with highest emolumenis

2020 2019

RMB 000 RMB 000

Salaries and other emoluments 2,492 1,899
Discretionary bonuses 23,092 7512
Conrributions o pension schemes 205 248
Chhers 495 458
Toral 26,288 30,147

Mone of the five individuals with the highest emoluments are directors or supervisors. The number of
these individuals whose emoluments before individual income tax are within the following bands is ser

out helows
2020 20149
RMB3 000,000 -3, 500,004 - -
RMB3, 500,000 -4 000,00k = =
RN B4, 000,001 -4, 500,004 1 -
RAM B4, 500,001 -5, 000,004 2 2
RMBS 000,001 and sbove 2 3

Maone of these individuals received any inducements or compensation for loss of office, or waived any
emoluments during the reporting year.

8  Credit impairment losses

20020 2019
Loans and advances o customers
— mcasured ar amortised cost 33,197 47,821
— measured ar fair value through ather
comprehensive income 156 {35)
Drebt insmruments ar fair value through other comprehensive
incoms (334) 434
Financial investments measared at amortised cost Ti2 (314)
Finance lease receivables 973 75l
Chihers 1,968 302
Toral 56,733 48,965
191
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MNotes to the Consolidared Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020

(Expressed in millicns of Benminbi, nnlos otherwiee sared)

V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

9 Income tax

(a) Income tax:

More V 2020 2005

Current fax 10,917 13,727
Dieferred rax 23(b) (2876} (3.887)
_Adjustmicnts For prior year (k) (4:49) (118)
Toral 7.592 s

(b) Reconcillations between Income tax and accounting profit are as follows:

More 20240 2009

Profie before tax 45,497 45,163
Sratutory tax race 25% 25%
Income tax calcolated at starurory tax rate 11,374 11,291
Effeer of different tax rates applied by

certain subsidiaries {10) {5)
Mon-deducrible expenses
— Saff costs 136 .+
— Impairment losses on - asscts 982 527
— Chihers 321 30%
Subtotal 1,439 024
Maon-taxable income {i} (4,762} {4,370
Subroral B.041 7.H40
Adjustments For prior vear {449) {118}
[ncome tax 7592 7.722

Nare:

ik Maw-taxably inwos maindy includln imteas inonsr of PRE trestury bowds amd divislvds of forads
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10 Basic and diluted carnings per ordinary share

Basie carnings per share was compured by dividing the net profit anributable 1o the ordinary sharcholders
of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in Bsue during the year.

2020 2019
Mer profic anriburable w equity holders of the Bank 37,824 37,354
Less: Dhividends on preference shares declared P b 1,450
MNer profic anriburable w ordinary sharcholders of the Bank 35,605 35,904
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(i million shares) 52,746 32,489
Basic carnings per share {in RMBfshare) 68 (LGE
Weighted average nuimber of ardinary shares in issue (in million shares)
2003 20149
lssued ordinary shares as ar 1 January 52,489 52,489
Add: Weighred average number of new issued ordinary
shares in cutrent vear 257 =
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in isuc 52,746 52,489

Diluted earnings per share was computed by dividing the net profie attributable to the ordinary shareholdess
of the Bank based on assuming conversion of all dilutive potential shares for the year by the adjusted
welghted average number of ordinary shares in issue. The Bank had convertible bands as dilutive porential
ardinary shares.

2020 2019
Mee profic arributable o ordinary sharcholders of the Bank 35,605 35,0904
Add: [nerest expense on convertible bonds, ner of rax 850 899
Mer profit used o determine diluted carnings per share 36,455 36,803
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
{in million shares) 52,746 52,489
Add: Weighted average number of ordinary shares assuming
conversion of all dilutive shares (in million ghares) 7313 7.264
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
diluted earnings per share {in million shares) B0,059 59,753
Dilured carnings per share {in RMEB/share) 61 (162
193
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11  Cash and deposits with the central bank
31 December 31 Decembuer

Mores 2020 2019
Cash on hand 4471 4,355
Deposits with the central bank
— Sramrory deposit rescrves {a) 293,540 297,528
— Surplus deposit reserves k) 5_6.132 57,546
— Foreign currency risk reserves {c) 2,305 3732
— Fiscal deposits 3693 1150
Subparal 141 421
Accrued ineerest 1446 129
Taotal 360,287 304,340

INten:

fa) T Graup plares asvsssery depeoair rearrses wivh wbe Feople's Bawk off China (ohe "PROCT in acverdence with relemimt rigulaniond. A it the ead
f e pere, vl snarutary A reerve parfes gppliontile e cbe Bauk were a i

F Derrder I December

L e

Reerive retie for RMB depavin P TS0
Reserve ratin lf’-rj'n'w_‘:l surrrary -'.-Pun LA 5. 00%

?hm&?ﬂmmmnuﬂfrn&rdwiﬁq{;hm ﬁrm.!'&pur:mm.n:,h!y L‘bur'anhﬂuﬂmu.ﬂ'ﬂnh—n‘
e 8 rersared in avvoroer ssink ohe pelentur repwkmians of ofr PO Tl awssn of stanvsary dipandy rescren . plived winh ale ormman’ Sk
of avevasn ave o f ey focal dirriam.

B The morplus depouir reverves ave mainoined wiok che PEOE for the purpese of clsaring.

fick The Crowp places firrign aovency rivk sevrron wirk dhe PROC in acvardance with relaut sepuisnon. Av ar 31 Decrmber 2000 the fareign
vurrewy risk ruree marie st 0% (51 Deormber 20059 20%)

194

304/429



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 n0(E25668)
Oooooooa

wodsy ey o707

V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12 Deposits with banks and other financial institutions
Analysed by rype and location of counterparty

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
Dieposits in Mainland China
— Banks 29,185 12,868
— xher financial instimtons 34 528
Deposits outside Mainland China
— Banks 16,980 18,399
Subroral 40,474 31795
Accrued interest 59 &
Toral 46,538 31,801
Less: Provision for impairment losses (479) (443}
Mer balances 46,055 31,358

13  Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Analysed by type and location of counterparty

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
Placements in Mainland China
= Bankx 14,502 4,160
= Chher financial instioutions 17,702 29777
Placements ourside Mainland China
= Banks 37.216 26,291
Subroral 69,420 60,228
Acerued interest 179 ZL3
Total 09,599 G041
Less: Provision for impairment losses {309 (7
Mee balances 69,290 60270
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020
{Expressed i millicns of Benminbi, noles otherwiee sared)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [(CONTINUED)
14 BPerivatives and hedge accounting

Derivative financial instraments included forward, swap, and option contracts undertaken by the Group
in foreign currency and interest rate markets, The Group acts as an intermediary berween a wide range
of customers for strucnaering deals o provide risk: management solutions o meer customer needs, These
positions are actively managed through entering into back-to-back deals with external parties o ensure
thar the Group's net exposures are within acceprable risk level, The Group also wses derivarive financial
instruments to manage its own asser and liability porrfolios and strucoaral positions.

The following mbles provide an amalysis of the notional amounts of derivative financial instruments
af the Group and their corresponding fair values at the end of the year. The notienal ameunts of the
derivatives indicate the volume of transactions cutstanding at the end of the reporting year, while they
do not represent exposure at sk

{a) Analysed by nawre of contract

196

31 December 2020
Fair value
MNotonal amounc Assers Liabilitics

[nrerest rare derivarives
- Inwerese rare swaps 1,110,897 5421 (6,340)
Currency derivatives
— Forcign exchange forwards 21,022 523 (610)
— Foreign exchange swap and

CTOSS-CUFFENCY interest

rafe swaps 1,055,992 18,144 (18,499}
— Foreign exchange options 20,981 774 (246)
Credic derivatives 1,405 2 {83)
Tatal 2,210,297 25,264 (25,778)

31 December 2019
Fair value
Motenal amoune Assers Liabiliries

[mrercse rare derivarive
= Interest rate swaps 1,298,443 50655 (3,680
Currency derivarives
— Fareign exchange forwards 29,168 229 {197
- Forcign exchange swap and

Cross-CURFeRCy inferest

rate swaps 1,365,001 9,483 {9,557)
— Forcign exchange options 78,260 3z (380)
Credit derivatives 4,254 4 [73)
Teal 2775126 13,805 {13,893}
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V' MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14  Derivatives and hedge accounting (continued)

(b)  Analysed by credit risle-weighted amount
31 Décember 3] December

2020 019
Counterparty defaul risk-weighred assers
— Inrerest rare derivatives 2,304 452
- Currency derivarives 4,808 3449
- Credic derivarives 21 37
Credit value adjustment risk-weighred assers 2,277 1,710
Total 9,610 5,968

The risk-weighted assers for counterparty eredic risk ("CCR") of derivarives of the Group were
caleulared in accoedanee with the Capital Rules for Commercial Banls (Provisional) and ether
relevant regulations under the advanced capital measurement approaches. For derivarive ransactions,
risk-weighred assets for CCR include the risk-weighred assets for defaule risk, and the risk-weighred
assets for eredit valuaton adjustment ("CVA™). The risk-weighted assets for CCR of derivatives of the
Group were caloulared in accerdance with the Assers Measurement Rules for Counterparty Defaulc
Risks of Derivatives since 1 January 2019,

{¢) Hedging accounting

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge fair value changes caused by interest rate changes,
and the hedged item is fixed interest bonds. As ar 31 December 2020, the novional amount of the
derivative financial instrumenss used by the Group for the fair value hedging instrument in the hedpge
acconnting was RMB3.286 million (31 December 2019 RMB14 million), in the above hedging
instrument, derivative financial assets was RMB2 million {31 December 20019: Nil), derivative

financial liabilities was RMB118 million (31 December 2019 RMB95 thousands).

In 2020, the fair value v;hangcs rr:mgn'm'd in the pmﬁt or loss attributed o the ineffectve hedging
were not significant,

197
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed i millicns of Benminbi, noles otherwiee sared)

V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

198

Brerivatives and hedge accounting (continued)

(d)

IBOR Reform

The amendments vo [FRS 9, IAS 39 and [FRS 7 modify some specific hedge accounting requirernents.
During the vear of uncermainty arising from phasing-our of interesr-rare benchmarks with an alternarive
nearly risk-frec interest rate ("RER), the cnries that apply these hedpe accounting requirements
can assume thar the inerest rate benchmarks on which the hedged cash flows and cash Aows of the
hedging, inssrument are based are not altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform.

The Group has fair value hedge accounting relationships thar are exposed o the US dollar LIBOR.
External progress on the transition w RFRs is being monitored, with the objective of ensuring a
smooth transition for the Group's hedge accounting relationships. The specific issues arising will
vary with the denils of each hedging relationship, but may arise due to the ransition of cxisting
products included in the designation, a change in expected volumes of products 1o be isued, a
change in contractual terms of new products issued, or 3 combination of these factors, Some hedgges
may meed to be de-designated and new relationships may be entered into, while others may survive
the market-wide benchmarks reform. The hedge items thar are affected by the adoption of the
temporary exceptions in hedge accounting relationships are presented in the statement of financial
posttion as™Financial investments”.

As at 31 December 2020, the notional ameunt of interest rate derivatives designated in fair value
hedge accounting relationships represent the extent of the fair value hedge sccounting’s risk exposure
managed by the Group thar is directlv affected by marker-wide benchmark reform and impacred by
the temporary exceptions is RMB3.286 hillion.

In Auguse 2020, TASE issued Amendments to [FRS 9, [AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFR5 16 Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2. The Group will adopr the amendments from 1 January 2021,

308/429

ooOooood



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

wodsy ey o707

¥V MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
15 Financial asseis held under resale agreements

(2]  Analysed by wype and location of counterparty
31 December 31 December

2020 2019
In Mainland China
- Banks 13,262 2,00
— Oieher financial instnutions 30,331 4,702
Ourside Mainland China
- Oither financial insttecions 5 126
Subraral 43,598 6,828
Accrued interest 3 b
Toral 43,601 6,830
Less: Provision for impairment loses () (1)
Met balances 43,592 5,835

(b) Analysed by type of security held
31 December 31 December

200 2019
Bonds
- Government bonds 20,074 2,062
— Oither debt securities 23,524 4,760
Subroral 43,598 5,528
Accrued interest 3 B
Toeal 43,601 6,830
Less: Provision for impairment losses {2 {1}
Ner balances 43,592 6,835
199
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020
{Expressed in millicns of Benminbi, noles otherwiee sared)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [(CONTINUED)
16 Loans and advances to customers

(a)  Analysed by nature
31 Duecember 31 December

20020 2019
Loans and advances to customers measured at
amortised cost
Carporate loans and advances 1,627,339 FA63 630
Discounted bilks (52 485
Persomal loans and advances
= Personal howsing morrgage loans 492 444 414,211
- Personal business loans 171,336 158,871
— Personal consumprion loans 173,565 140,545
- Credir cards 445,935 443,881
Subrtoral 1,285,280 1.157.508
Loans and advances to customers at fair value through
ather comprehensive income
Fox-domestic credit 29,938 26,403
Discounted hills 68.273 6, 175
Subtoral 98.211 90,578
Total 3,009,482 2,712,204
Accrued interest B.A480 B, 160
Cross Ioans and advances to customers 3017968 2,720,364
Less: Provision for impairment losses of loans and
advances to customers measured
at amortised cost (75,533) {76,228}
MNer loans and advances to customers 2942435 2644, 136
Provision for impairment losses of loans and
advances to customers ar fair value through
other comprehensive income (594 ) (438)

As ar the end of the year, part of the above loans and advances to customers was pledged for
repurchase agreements. See Nowe ¥ 25(a).
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
16 Loans and advances to customers (contlived)

(b)  Analysed by economic sector
31 December 2020

Loans and
advances secured
Amount Percentage by collateral
Manufacruring 313427 10.41% 106,816
Water, envirenment and public
wrility manmagement 294,595 9. 79%, 121,503
Real estare 224,450 7A0% 154,223
Leasing and commercial services 189,785 6.31% 5, 502
Whalesale and rerail rade 127,522 4. 24% 49657
Construction 107,987 3.59% 33,520
Fimanece 97.132 3.23% 4,765
Transportation, storage and
postal services 88,535 2.94% 37,600
Agriculoure, foresery, hushandry
and fishery S, 100 1.80% 17,062
Production and supply of electriciry,
gas and warer 45,532 1.51%: 12,163
Orthers 114,212 3.79% 36,048
Subromal of corporate loans
and advances 1,657,277 5507 % 638,919
Persanal loans and advances 1,283.280 42.64% 633,526
Diiscounred bills 68925 2.29% 65,161
Toral 3.004,482 1O 1,357,606
Accrued inerest BA480
Gross loans and advances 1o
customers 3.M7.968
Less: Prowvision for impairment
losses of loans and advances
[0 CRSIOITIERS I'I:'I.vl.—.l.’i.ﬂl'l.'d ar
amorgised eost (75,533}
Met loans and advances 1o
CUSTOIMERS 2.942.435
Prowision for impairment loses of
loans and advances to customers
ar fair value through other
comprehensive income (594)
201
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MNotes to the Consolidared Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020
{Expressed in millicns of Benminbi, noles otherwiee sared)

V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16 Loans and advances to customers {conthnued)

(b) Analysed by economic sector (continued)
31 December 2019

[.JJ:EI-"! and
advanees secured
Amount Percentage by collateral
Manufacturing 270177 9.96% 102716
Warer, environment and public
utility management 261,465 9645 1707
Real estare 211,918 7-51% 130,785
Leasing and commercial services 170,058 G 2T% 5,501
Wholesale and rerail rade 113,140 4.17% 42,016
Construction 94,793 3500 35,149
Transporration, stworage and
pestal services 87,226 3.22% 36,633
Fimance TH07 2.84% 12,380
Producrion and supply of pawer,
gas and warer 45,948 LG9 13,517
Agriculrure, forestry, husbandry
and fishery 41,459 1.53% 12,962
Chthers 116,932 4.314% 45051
Subtotal of corporate loans
and advances 1,490,033 54.04%, B8, 437
Pegsonal loans and advances 1,157,508 42685 550,653
Discounted bills 4,503 2.38% 614914
Tonl 2712204 TR 1.222.004
Accrued interest 8,160
Crross loans and advances o
customers 2,720,364

Less: Pravision for impairment
losses of loans and advances
Eox CLUSTOEFIERS I!'!d‘j.'kllﬂ:'d ar

arnartised eost {76,228}
Met loans and advances 1o
CUSTOTCES 2.644.136

Provision for impaicment losses of
[oans and advances 1o customers
ar fair value through other
comprehensive income {438)
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¥ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
16 Loans and advances to customers (contlived)

(b)  Analysed by economic sector (contimeed)

As ar 31 December 2020 and for the year ended 31 December 2020, derailed informarion of the
impaired loans and advances o customers as well as the corresponding provision for impairment
losses in respect of cach coonomic sector which constiture 109 or mere of gross loans and advances
o cusgomers s as follows:

31 December 2030
[mpaiement
Impaired Suage 1 Snage 2 Stape 3 charged  Wrireen-off
loams and {1 2-muonth (Liferime {Liferime during during
advances ECL} ECL) ECL) the year the year
Manufacruring 13608 (3.378) (5591 (6, 106) 2,683 1816

(e} Analysed by type of collateral
31 December 31 Decemnber

2020 20149
Unsecured loans 941,130 31,885
Guaranteed loans TI0. 746 637,315
Secured loans
— By rangible assers other than monetary assets 1017 860 BEH2,021
— By monetary assets 339,640 359,983
Taoral 3009482 2,712,204
Acerued interest 480 8,160
Ciross loans and advances 1o customers 3.017.968 2,720,364
Less: Provision for impairment loses of loans and
advances o eustomers measured ar
amortised cost {75,533) {76.228)
Met loans and advances 1o custamers 2942435 2,644,130
Provision for impairment losses of loans and advances 1o
customers at fair value lhruugh ather wmprciwnﬁb'«'
income (594) (438}
203
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MNotes to the Consolidared Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020
{Expressed in millioens of Fenminbi, noles otherwiee sared)

V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16 Loans and advances to customers {continued)

(d) Analysed by geographical sector

31 December 2020
Loans and
advanees secured
Loan balance Percentage Iy collareral
Yangree River Delra 632,505 21.69% 266,093
Central 332,348 17.69% 296,164
Pearl River Delia 306,086 13, 16%: 263,189
Bohai Rim 387,332 12.87% 223419
Western 373,59 12.41% 212,662
Maortheastern 117,580 391% 80,952
Ohverseas 928,819 3.28% 9916
Head Office 451,157 149995 5211
Total 3,009,482 1000 1,357,606
31 December 2019
Loans and
advaness secured
Loan balance Percentage Iy collareral
Yangtee River Delea 556,102 20,451 219,717
Central 447,249 16,499 256,676
Bohai Rim 349,559 12,8944 1994916
Western 348,706 12.86% 200481
Pearl River Delra 341,541 12.5%% 220,143
Martheasrern F21,928 4.500% 0,001
Ohverseas D61 74 3.35% IRO05
Head Office 450,045 16.63% 7055
Total 2,712,204 T 0, 1,222004

204

314/429



V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16

Loans and advances 1o customers (contlised)

{d})  Analysed by geographical sector (continued)
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As ar the end of the year, denailed informarion of the impaired loans and advanees o eustomers as
well as the corresponding impairment provision in respect of peographic secrors which constiture
108 or more of gross loans and advances o customers is as follows:

31 December 2020

Impaired Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

laans and (12-month {Liferime {Lifetime

advances ECL) ECL) ECL)

Yangree River Dielra 5,383 {9, 106 (2.930) {3, 140)
Cenrral 5,225 {5,561) (3.418) {3006)
Bohai Rim 6,160 (2,592) (2499} {3.355)
Western 3365 {34008 (3.326) {1,786)
Prearl River Drelra 4,699 (4,955) {3.685) {2,843)
Total 24,832 (25,608) (15,838} {14,130)

31 December 2019

Impaired Seage | Stage 2 Seage 3

loans and (12-month {Lifetime {Lifetime

advances ECL) ECL) ECL)

Yangtze River Delta 6831 {6,439) {4,847) {3,623)
Cenrral 5,031 (4,054 ) [2.461) {3,218)
Bohai Rim 3797 {2,159) {2.435) (3,032)
Western 4,951 (2.849) {4,212} {2.707)
Pearl River Drelea 4.155 {4,219} {1,829} {1.811)
Total 26765 {19,760) {15784} {14.393)

For the definition of regional divisions, see Note V 49(b).
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MNotes to the Consolidared Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 December 2020

(Expressed in millions of Benminbi, noles otherwiee sared)

VYV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED

16 Loans and advances to customers {conthinued)

e} Owerdue loans analysed by overdue years

31 Drecember 2020
Chierdue Ohverdue
Overdue mare than miote than
within three  thiree momths olle year o Overdee
monhs of to o year theee years mere than
bess dinclasive) {inchisive) {inclusive) three years Towd
Uecured boans 14.474 12,760 1,200 30 15464
Guaranteed loans 320 2904 153 582 12302
Secured loans
- By rangibbe assers other
than monetary awets 10,37 5705 4,176 1386 21.6%
- By monetary awers 1.287 284 34 1 2136
Subrotal 3LH0 ] GATH I el 550
Acerued intere 7h - - - 276
Toal 3625 ' [ BATS 1.5 4572
As 3 percentage of gros
Jears and advances 1o
CUSTOmCTS 1.05% 0.72% 0.31% 0079 215%
31 December 2019
Creerdue Ohverdue
Overdue mate than e than
within three  three months afle year o Chverdue
enediehs of b it year thece yeirs mote than
bess: dinelusive) fimclusive) (inclusive) three years Torl
Unsecured koans 15,557 1,118 ot 3 7031
Ciuaranteed loans 4,954 4933 37 G 14.242
Secured foans
= By eangible assets othet
than nenctary assets H002 4973 4421 1429 16,31%
-By moncary ases 1434 1444 B37 3o 375
Subtotal 637 A9 9307 il Iny 01,544
Accrued inerest 69 - - - W
Tatal 27,706 403 9307 LT [ FAE]
As a percentage of gros
Joans and advances to
cusfoimers 101 1,83% (.34% DA% 226%

Oherdue loans represent loans, of which the whaole or part aof the principal or interest was overdue
for one day or maore,
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¥V MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
16 Loans and advances o customers (contlised)

(f)  Loans and advances and provision for impairment losses

31 December 2020
SI:EI.' )
loans and
advances as
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 a percentape
(12-month (Liferime {Liferime of loans and
ECL) ECL) ECL) Taoral advances
Loan principal 2,837,009 124,772 47,701 3,009,482 1.59%
Accrued innerest 045 l@n?li 463 B486
Grows loans and
advances o
CUATOMETS 2.B43,658 126,146 48,164 H017,908
Less: Provision
for impairment
losses of loans
and advances
00 CUSTOTICTS
micasured ar
amortised cost {31,192} {21,037) [23.304) {75.,533)
Mer loans and
advances (o
CUSTOMIETs 2812466 105, 109 24,8600 2942435
31 December 2019
5!15:' 3
loans and
advances as
Srage 1 Srape 2 Srage 3 1 percentage
(12-month { Liferime {Liferime of leans and
ECL) ECL) ECL) Taoral advances
Loan principal 2,546,902 123,090 42,212 2,712,204 L.56%
Accrued innerest G701 1.158 3011 B, 160
Crosa loans and
advances 1o
CUSTOMIETS 2,553,603 124,248 42,513 2,720,364
Less: Provision
for impairment
losses of loans
and advances
[0 CUSTOIMErs
measured ar
amortised cost {24,060} (27.574) (24,594) {76,228)
Mer loans and
advances o
CUSTOMETS 2,529,543 O, G674 17,919 2,644,136
207
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Far the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in millions of Benminbi, noles otherwiee sared)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [(CONTINUED)
16 Loans and advances to customers {conthinued)

ig) Reconciliation of provision for impairment losses

2020
Srage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
{1 2-month {Lifetime (Liferime
ECL) ECL) ECL) Tl
Asar 1 January 2020 (24.060) (27.574) {24,594) (76:228)
Transfer 1o Stage | (2.112) 2,049 63 -
Transfer o Stage 2 988 {1,072} 84 -
Transfer to Stage 3 116 10315 {10,531) -
Charge for the year {9,488} {7.133) {42,5006) {59,127}
Release for the year 3,260 1378 2 3,930
Disposal - - 20,310 20,310
Wreite-off and ceansfer our - - _5&“13 36013
Recovery of loans and
advances written off - - (3,202) {3,202}
Unwinding of discount
on allowance - - TOT T6T
Exchange flucruadon and
others 4 - - 4
Az ar 31 December 2020 {31,192) (21,037} {23,30:4) (75,533}
e
Srage 1 Srage 2 Srage 3
{12-monch {Liferime {Liferime
ECL) ECL) ECL) Toral
As ar 1 January 2019 (23,335) (21.264) {22,610) (67.209)
Transfer 1o Stage | (2,089} 2,038 51 -
Transfer 1o Stage 2 742 (78T} 45 -
Transfer to Stage 3 156 1,233 (2,389) -
Charge for the year (3,599} (RN e {38, 804) {53.396)
Release for the year 4,365 899 i 5375
Dispasal - - 13,826 13,826
Write-off and transfer our - - 26,576 26,576
Recovery of loans and
advances written off - - 12,428) {2.428)
Unwinding of discount
on_allowance - - 828 B1%
As ar 31 December 2019 {24,00608) (27,574} {24,504) {76,228}
Nare:
ik The above recenciliaibon of previves for img ¢ laney iy oy up [for smparrrirnr busey af Lo sl adlvawrs re mamesmers

mntiared @t awarnied rast A @ 31 Diecenaber 2000, v balance of pravésien fir tmpaivarat fn of faw aud sdlince to cucemm
wt fuir paler phrosgh anler comprobeasive bncomme won BAMESH mitien (1) Dlecomber 2019 RMBI3 pediven),
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16 Loans and advances o customers (contlised)

(h} HRescheduled loans and advances to customers
31 December 3] December

2020 2019

Reschedualed loans and advances wo custamers 7659 | 1,588
OF which: Rescheduled loans and advanees 1o

customers everdue more than 90 days 245 B8

17 Finance lease recelvables

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
Minimum finance lease receivables 118,247 99,825
Less: Unearned finance lease income {15.442) {14.662)
Present value of minimum lease receivable 102,805 85,163
Acerued interest 1,128 936
Less: Impairment loses {3,145) {2.376)
Net halance 100,788 83,723

Minimum finance lease receivables analysed by remaining period is listed as follows:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
Less than 1 year (inclusive) 32,149 13619
| year to 2 years {inclusive} 215,745 0418
2 years to 3 years (inclusive) 20,825 17,123
3 years to 4 years (inclusive) 15,752 12,628
4 years to 5 vears {inclusive) 11,420 9,745
More than 5 years 12,556 16,292
Total 118,247 99,825
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MNotes to the Consolidared Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020
{Expressed in millioens of Benminbi, noles otherwiee saned)

V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18 Financial investments

31 December 31 December

Motes 2020 2018
Fimancial assers ar fair value through profir or loss {a) Hm.908 211,406
Drebr instruments ar fair value through other
comprehensive income (b} 222 807 180,005
Equiry instruments ar fair value chrough adher
comprehensive income {c) ®75 623
Fimancial investments measured at amortised cost (d) 1.141.825 1041512
Total 1.670.415 1,433,546

{a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
31 December 31 Dhecember

Mares 2020 20109
Db instruments held for trading {i} 33,040 18,602
Financial assers designated ar fair value
through profit or loss {ii) I i
Ohiber financial assers ar fair value through
profir o losc {iii) 271,867 192,800
Total 304,908 211,406

i} Debt instruments beld for trading
31 December 31 Decembuer

Motes 2020 019

lssued by the following governments or

instirutions:
In Mainland China
= Government L 132
— Banks and other financial instirutions 0.249] 4,975
— Ocher institurions () 19,985 9436
Curside Mainland China
— Banks and other financial instrurions 1,770 2624
— Orcher institutions 1,514 1,435
Taotal {2} 33,040 18602
Listed (3) 4,391 4716

OF which: listed in Hong Kong 2,194 1,703
Unlised 28,649 13,8806
Total 33,040 18,602

Noere:

[y A b s af e ey, diody e s’ by snler dmsnnaiem o Sanabosd Clune madaly repreicsind deolbt ssearitien ol
LA TR T SRR Y TV SR T DT FTETETE T

(20 Ar she red of e vour, weme of the debr inarwresn beld for meding weve plalped for reparbac agrermean. See Ner V280l

%) Liwed permrmenti ok daly imtrmarrani srsled an 5wk mh'l:(r
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18 Fimancial investmenis (continued)

(a) Financial assets ar fair value through profic or loss (continued)
(i) Fimancial assets designated at faiv salwe througl profie or los

31 December 31 December
20020 2014

Fixed interest rate personal mortgage loans 1 4

For fixed interest rate personal mortgage loans, the Group wsed interest rate swaps to manage the
associated interest rate risk. The changes in fair value during the reporting vear, the accumulared
changes and rhe maximum eredie risk exposure atrributable o eredic risk were immaterial.

{iidl Ohher fiwancial asseis a¢ fair valne through profit or foeo
31 December 31 December

2020 019

Fund investmenis 212937 139,764

Equity instruments 2,620 2,019

Ohthers 36,310 31.021

Total 271,867 192,804
211
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

212

Financial investments {conthnucd
{(b) Debt instruments an fair value through ather comprehensive income
(i} Analysed by type and location of coumterparty:
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31 December 31 Decembwer
Maotes 20240 2009
In Mainland China
- Covernment 59,441 40,880
- Bankx and other finandial institutions () 75,493 51,0640
= Oher institations (2) 51,310 3,371
Ourside Mainland China
- Goverpment 349 9%
— Banks and other financial instrutions 12,535 7.574
— Dher institarions 149,786 19,777
Subraral 218,914 176,340
Accrued interest 3893 34665
Total {31(4) 222,807 180,005
Listed () 30,5334 43019
OF which listed in Hong Kong 33.872 29,884
Unlisted 168,380 133,321
Subitotal 218,914 176,340
Accrued interest 3,893 34665
Total 222,807 180,005
Napee

PI) Db ductrumens inued b bk aina wiber flismokel instiusions maindy veproiens ol smvribies iwsed dor By st sebee flrswcntd

dmuriwne i Sfaindavd Chisa

(&} Ddnbr omarsowemn oot Gy sofer iAmimriar msiady epeesear el sowriirs esed by aare-simsd rarerpenies el fwler aneck

eaverporiies (o MHaimhond’ Cliua

(30 A oar 30 Dievemalerr 2020, ihe provivian for iapairamt bues of the aels imrumenn ot free valve deauph sther omprebraire
T a”np-urd dr MBS oeilliowr (3] Dherromler 2070 RSN swvliigw)

(40 Ar ahe rod o e o, pary of the dedy inctrumenn ar fur sl degugh stber compeebrmne oot were pladged for rpurolae

cifRrnati dd i -Epmﬂ. e Mare V' 250k

5 Livted iwevarmvans wnefrale dedy imrmssan mided w8 ek sxodange.
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¥V MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
18 Fimancial investmenis (continued)

(b) Dbt instruments ac fair valoe through other comprehensive income (continued)
(i) Reconciliation of provision for inmpaivment losces on debt fustruments at fair value throsgl

other comprelensive fnconte
2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(12-month {Lifetime (Liferime
ECL) ECL} ECL) Toral
Ad ar 1 January 2020 {708) B (118) {826}
Transfer 1o Stage 3 | - 1} =
Met charge for the year {292) - (15 {307)
Reversal for the year 543 - 98 6l
Exchange fueration
and ethers 36 - = £
As ar 31 December 2020 (4200 - (36} {436}
20049
Stape 1 Stage 2 5!:1{'.:' 3
{12-month {Lifetime {Lifetime
ECL) ECL} ECL) Toeal
Asar 1 January 2009 {384 - - (3R4)
Transfer to Stage 3 2 - (2} -
Met charge for the year {343) - {116) {459}
Beversal for the year 0 - - 20
Exchm:p.' fuctuation
and others {3} - - 3}
As ar 31 December 2009 {708) = (118) (B206)
213
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18 Financial investmenis {conthiued

(e} Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

31 Duwcember 31 December
Maores 2020 2019

Equity instruments at fair value through
ather n:mpmhﬂmi.w: income {i) 875 623
Listed (i) 23 21
OFf which: listed in Hong Kong = -
Unlisted #52 Hio
Total 875 G23

MNarm;

ik The Graup deiiguaied Wy rgeiry imtewenrats war deled for rading o mranered a0 faoe vabar tdeaugh stler comproedemioe iargmr. As ar 31
Deersater 2000, W G ol wm RAREPS milhior (30 Dwersler 2070 RABAX millen) For the pair paded 3T Dacsrber 20040

ol Errewp s revenred divideyals of RS mullivn from ohe abeie equivy uramran (20050 REBTT ool ),

fr Lisedd davesioremis incledde apuity dmowmn aded ow 9 sk eenlagr.

(d) Financial investments measured at amortised cost

31 December 31 Decembar

Mores 2020 2019

Debt securities and asse-backed instruments (i} 921,967 T73.460
Others {ii} 207486 256,049
Subtotal 1,129,453 14050, 10%
Accrued interest 17,510 15,786
Total 1,146,963 1045895
Less: Provision for impairment losses {5,138) [4,383]
Mer balanee 1,141,825 1041512
Listed {iiii} 159,519 139,262
Of which: listed in Hong Kong 21,710 20,905
Unlisted S04, 790 BE0, 104
Subroral 1.124.315 1,023,726
Accrued interest 17.510 15,786
Mer balanee 1,141,825 1,041,512

214

324/429



V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18

Fimancial investmenis (continued)

(d} Financial investments measured at amortised cost (continued)

Debt securities and asser-backed instruments measured at amoriised cost were analysed by
type and location af counterparty as follonws:

i

(i)

{#ii) Listed investmenis fuclude debt instruments traded on a sock exchange.

EDINETOOOO
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31 December 31 December
Mores 2020 2019
In Mainland China
= Government 3R6,220 340,733
- Banks and other financial instinarions {1 333,697 218,028
- Chther institurions (2} 168,370 183,628
Curside Mainland China
— Crovernment 4777 1,881
— Banks and orher financial institarions 23,141 B
— Ohther insritutions 1T 13,654
Subroral 921,967 TT3460
Accrued interest 15621 13,140
Tomal 3} 937,588 TRO,G00
Less: Provision for impairment losses {1.8937) {1.657)
Ner balance 935,651 TRG943
Fair value 944,985 796,401
Matn:

) Dy srewvstivs sumed by vk gwdl sber fivenciad mvautian maiady roproend ol drcuritin o snetdivked imericeents oo

By daadi s avher ! a A,

YR T

{20 Db srarinies isaved By sl Imirnea maialy sepreent dedy rarurinie oal by mare s mreprii and felar dnack mnmpei

i Harwbiad China

il A it oy o af she rar, part aff he dedd arcuritin mvesered o amariied coat e M}ﬁr n?-rdmr Agrrvmaniy, Hmr A-Puua

sl drmitive Pasweriant, Sav Nare V7 2508)

Oher fiancial investments measured ar amortited cost mainly inelude truses and other

riglts to sarnings.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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18 Financial Investments (continued

{d) Financial investments measured at amortised eost (continued)

(i) Recomcilintion of provison for fmpairment losses on ffuancial fnvestneents measured at

EDINETOOOO

000000000000 n0(E25668)

amertised ozt
2020
1 Stage 2 Stape 3
{12-manth {Lifetime { Lifetime
ECL) ECL) ECL) Tol
As ar 1 January 2020 (2.313) {101) (1.769) (4.383)
Transfer o Sage | {300 3 - -
Transfer o Stage 2 179 (174) - -
Transfer to Srage 3 [ 47 (33} =
Charge for the year {1,003) {323 {1.017) (2.343)
Rebease For the year 1.412 54 105 15741
Exchange flucation
and others 17 - = 17
As ar 31 December 2020 (1,233) {(472) (2,734} (5.138)
2019
Stage | Stage 1 Stape 3
(12-month {Lifetime i Lifetitme
ECL) ECL) ECL) Tonal
As ar 1 January 20019 (3.531) - (1.163} (4.694)
Transfer to Stage 2 3 (3} o -
Transfer to Stage 3 H] - {8) -
Charge for the year - (98} (723) (821)
Release for the year 1AF) - 125 1,135
Exchange Auetuation
and others (3 = - {3)
As ar 31 December 2019 {2,513) {101} {1.769) (4,383}
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19 Investmeni in subsidiaries and joint veniures

(a) Investments in subsidiaries
31 December 3] December

2000 2019
Everbright Financial Leasing Co., Lud. 4,680 4,680
CEB International [nvestment Co,, Led. 2,267 2,267
Shaoshan Everbright Rural Bank Co., Lid 103 103
Jiangsu Huai'an Eveebright Rueal Bank Co., Lud. 70 70
China Everbright Bank Company Limired (Evrope) 156 156
Jiangxi Ruijin Everbright Rural Bank Cao., Lid. 105 105
Everbright Wealth Co., Lrd. 5,000 500
Beijing Sunshine Consumer Finance Co., Lod. G0 -
Toral 12,983 12,385
The derails of the subsidiaries are presented s follows:
Regizerad  Invesmens Voering Economic
Cetporaie name Regimered addres apiul propomion proportion Main business nansype
Evertwight Financial Wokan, Hebei 5,90 5% % Lening mansacion Inceeporsed
Leasing Co. Lol com pany
CEB [mtemarional Hong Koag K67 L0 1% lervesiment banking Limized
[nvesmment Co, Led oo pany
Shaoshan Everbright Rord  Shaoshan, Human 3l T 71 Banking business Incoeporated
Bank Co., Lud comnpany
fangm Huai'an Everbright  Huad'an, Jiangsu 1o 0% 7% Banking business Incorporated
Rural Bank Co.. Lid comn pany
China Everbright Bank Luembaourg 156 100 1% Banking betiness Incorpotated
Commpany Limited {Europe} compuny
Jiangxi Ruifin Everbeighe Ruifin, Jiangd 150k % e Danking betiness Inceeporated
Ruedl Bank Co., Ld company
Everbuzghe Weith Co, Lid.  Cimadso, Shandeps 5,000 100% 1% Capinal matkeet batiness Limined
compny
Beijing Sankine Consumer  Deiling 100} B (% Banking basiness Inceeporaed
Finance Co, Lof (Note §) company
fad T August 3020 b furnk ssrabliaded o subsidiary, Bepuy Sendine Conmmer Fonaie Cr, Dol (“Samsliwe Comumer Finamee ", wib
o regietered adpinal & RMBT killse The Sauk ronmibaesd RYBG0G miflen sersmaring for 600 o ol nbe spiey.
217
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
19  Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures (conglnsed)

(b) Investments in jolnt ventures

2020
Asac 1 Janwary 2020 =
Increased investment 262
lovvestenent losees under the equity method {5}
Az ae 31 December 2020 357

20 |'l‘1|-!||:'r[!.'. ;1|:1:|l and 1.'1!I.Ii|,rllltl'|l
Conaruction  Electronic
Premises Aircraft  in progres equipment Orthers Toal
(Mate (i) (Mote (5

Cont
As at | January 2020 12,949 5057 L0 B,667 4,498 30,981
Additions 276 307 405 1,959 458 0245
Transfers aniiouth 3 (170 (301} - - {1700
Drispnals - - - (378} {196 {574)
Puh.-igu CUMENCY COMVEsin
difference - 477} - {1} (1} (4749)
As at 31 December 2020 13,526 81X 1314 8,247 4,789 37,003
Accurnulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2020 {4, 104} (408} - 4,895} (3.073) (12,4500
Charge for the year (4021 (123} - (578) (448} (1651}
Transfer out - 12 - - - 12
Drisprossals - - - I 169 341
Farcign eurrency conversion
difference - 37 - 1 1 34
As at 31 December 2020 {4.506) (562} - (5, 100 (3,351) (13.539)
Mrovision for impaimment
As at | January 2020 {159 - = = - (159}
Charge for the year {4) - - - - )
As at 31 Diecember 2120 (163} - - - - {163}
Mer ook value
As 3t 31 December 2020 8857 T.45 1314 3,147 1,438 23,501
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construerion Eleerponie
Preaises Alceralt  in progress  equipment Others Toral
MNoae i1y (Moee i)

Cost
Asar 1 January 2019 11,737 S7i5 2100 6,195 4,12 10915
Addirions 69 170 1.156 71 459 L85
Transfers inflour) 1,146 - {1.146) - - -
Disposals (# {332) - {3 (133) (257}
Forcign currency conversion
difference — 94 - - - G4
As ar 31 December 2019 12549 5,657 2,210 7 4498 31,581
Accumlared deprociation
Asar 1 January 2019 (3.703) (2400 - 4,785 {L.797) {11,529
Chasge for the pear (404) {200} - (480) 4} (1.483)
Disposals 3 EL] - 374 115 340
Foreign currency conversion
difference - () - - = (]
As ar 31 December 2019 (4, 1044) (408) - {4.895) 130073) i12.480)
Pecvision for impairment
As an 1 Januasy 2019 {159} - - - - {154
As at 31 Dieceniber 2019 {159) - - - - {159
Met book value
As a8 31 Drecember 2019 5,080 5,249 2,20 1772 1425 19,342
Nare

G et 3 Beormber 2000, arfe devds @rre mat et finalined for she promisn wvak o carrpéng ansunt of RUBHD mulivew (31 Brecrober 20189
BALRES anillonl S i -,l'.rh Giremp rp § by thre wosld b e gpnificons ot iw sltatming she Bele desd).

il Avar 31 Dveevmber 2620, Fieriwigle Fussweiad Laning. the Graup b subudiory Saned orveie sinernT aud sinesT rmpless bl s imclmdnd
i “AirrafT” re ohivd pavnies wader aperaniey it arvaagreon, ek o aor Seed molar of REES S millen (31 December 2005 RMSE 200
wmillion). As av the rnd of che vear. part of dhe fluvace lnse recrinables wav pledped for borrosing from banks See Nose ¥ 25fal

The net book values of premises at the end of the reporang pened are analyscd by the remaining terms
of leases as fillows:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
Held in Mainkind China
= Medium term leases (10 g0 50 years) 8,547 8454
= Short term leases {less than 10 vears) 310 132
Toral B.857 A.686
219
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21 Riglll-mf—uw Asseis
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Transportation
Premises and others Teal

Cose

As at 1 January 2020 14,023 s 14089

Addirions 2,524 12 2,536

Charge for the year (937) {14} (9531)

Fnrc[En currency conversion difference {13 = (13)

As ar 31 December 2020 15,397 L 15661
Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2020 {2,388) {17} (2.405)

Charge for the year {2.662) (15) (2.677)

Reduction for che year 544 L) 557

Fureipn currency conversion difference 1 - 1

As at 31 December 2020 (4.501) {23} (4.524)
Met book value

As ar 31 December 2020 11,0846 41 11137

Transportation
Premises and others Toral

Cost

As at | January 2009 11,768 Al 11,820

Additions 2,557 B 2,565

Charge for the year (303) (3 (306)

Foreipn cuttency conversion difference 1 - 1

As at 31 December 2019 14,023 i 14,089
Accumulated depreciation

As at | Januvary 2019 = = i

Charge for the year {2,412) {17} {2420

Reduction for the yvear 4 - 24

As at 31 December 2019 (2,388) {17} [ 2.405)
Met book value

As ar 31 December 2019 114635 49 11684
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
22  Goodwill
31 December 31 December

2020 019
(Goross amount 6,014 6,019
Less: Provision for impairment losses {4,738) {4,738}
Mee balances 1,281 1,281

As approved by the PBOC, the Bank and China Development Bank ("CDB") jointly signed the “Agreement
between China Development Bank and China Everbright Bank for the sransfer of asers, liabilities and
banking premises of China Investment Bank™ (the “Agreement”) on 18 March 1999, According o the
Agreement, CDB eransferred the assers, liabilities, equity and 137 outlers of 29 branches of the farmer
China lnvestment Bank ("CIB") o the Bank. The Agreement became effective on 183 March 1999,
The Bank assessed the fair value of the ransferred assers and liabilites, and recognised the excess of the
purchase cost aver the sum of the fair value of the ner assers ransferred and deferred tax assers as goodwill,

The goodwill is subject o annual impairment resting. The Bank makes provision for impairment if
necessary. The Bank caleulares the recoverable amount of the CGU using cash flow projections based on
financial forecasts approved by management covering a five-year period. The discount rate used in the
Bank's cash flow Forecasr is 12% (2019: 13%). The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating o
the relevant segments.

Based on the result of the impairment testing, no additional impairment losses on goodwill were recognised

for the year.

23 Deferred tax assets and liabilites

(a)  Analysed by nature

31 December 2020 3 December 20H%
Dreferred Deeferred
Temporary tx assetsf Temparary ax assers
difference {liabilirics) difference {liahalicies)
Deferred income tax assets 78,350 19,5387 65,221 16,306
Dicferred income tax liabilitics - - {f) (1}
Total TR0 19,587 65,215 16,305
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
23 Deferred tax assets and liabilities (continued)

ib) Movements of deferred tax

Fair value Net balance
Provision for changes of Accrued of deferred
impairment financial aaff costs tax assers!
bsscs inst ruments and others fliabiliricsh
MNoseli) Moredii)

1 Jamuary 2020 14,664 {243) 1.884 16,305
Recognised in profic or loss 2594 4 243 2HTG

Recognised in other ;
comprehensive income 2] 340 - 4N
31 Dhecember 2020 17,324 137 2,126 19,587
Fair value Mer balance
Provicion for changes of Accrued af deferred
impairnient financial staff costs rax assers!
bosses insruments and others {liabiliricsy

{Moee (i)} (Mote (i)}
1 January 2019 9724 {674) 1744 10,794
Recognised in profit or loss 3042 0 14 SBET
Recognised in other
comprehensive inconie {102} {274) - (376)
31 December 2019 14,664 {243) 1884 16,305
Nara:

ik The Gronp e proviisa for impairment s 58 e dod dliran & cuireimes dnad srher duemi The proviiss for lmpalraaray [y
wtr drtrrmrinsd baied on the exprcind receverable amsuar of the relrvant aurn ar e o of the the o, Brudn, e asmmts dedaenille
Jor imceme bix purpain are acluleird ar 1% of the grau nerving ineun of gualfring aien st der e of the e, tagriter itk wrive-
afff seshich Selfif iprogfic criberiar i ot wwnt b e PR sz rales wod are approved By ol tax aurheritin

fi) Farr s shaoge -ﬂ'imn’ AT ar indyen b den i hraiieed,
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31 December 31 December
Motes 2020 20149
Orher receivables {a) 30003 24,288
Accrued interest 40031 2,988
Intangible assers 2160 1,646
Refundable Deposins 1,698 1,326
Long-rerm deferred expense Ba6G 571
Properry, plant and equipment purchase
prepayment T03 TU45
Reposseased assets 390 478
Land use rights ] 58
Ohhers 3,564 349
Total 45,004 35979
M

ta) Eleber recrivalde saaindy iackide o iw ol proces of darang and selemenr, The amewar of impaireaess aliuanor i et st

]’|¢':|g¢':l FTEEE O

{al Assets pledged as collateral

The Growp's financial asscts as collateral for liabilities include discounted bills, debt securities and
property, plant and equipment, which are mainly used as collateral for repurchase agreements, time
deposits, derivative contracts and bormrowings from banks. The carrying amount of the financal
assets pledged as securities as at 31 December 2020 is RMB72.936 hillion (31 December 201%;

RMERS, 158 billion)
(b} Collateral received

The Group accepted securities as collateral for thoese which are permitted 1o be sold or re-pledged in
connection with reverse repurchase agreemenss with banks and other financial instivutions in 2020,
Asar 31 Decemnber 2020, the Group's eollateral reccived from banks and other financial institutions
has expired {31 December 2019: Nil). As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no collateral thae
was sold or re-pledged, bur was obligated to return (31 December 2019: Nil). These transactions

are conducted under standard rerms in the normal course of business.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 Due to the central bank

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Diue 1o the cenreal bank 238,751 221,480
Accrued interest 2,359 3,358
Total 241,110 224,838
27 Deposits from banks and other financlal institutiens
Analysed by type and location of counterparey
31 December 31 December
2020 2009
Deposits in Mainland China
- Banks 149,906 170,505
= Oheher financial institutions 317.300 269,224
Dreposits owside Mainland China
- Banks 226 1.836
Subsratal 467,522 441,565
Acerued interest 1833 1755
Total 409,345 444,320
28 Macements from banles and other fnanclal instiwdons
Analysed by type and location af counterparty
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Placements in Mainland China
~ Banks 115,334 89,480
— Oither financial institutions 1,004 1,004
Placements outside Mainland China
= Banks 45,072 T4,625
Subtaral 161,410 165,108
Acerued interest 469 1116
Taotal 161,879 166,225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

29 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 31 December

2020 w19
Short position in debr securities 4 [[51]
Toral 4 el

30 Financial awets sold onder repurchase agrecments

(a) Analysed by wype and location of counterparty
31 December 31 December

2020 2019
In Mainkand China
= Banks 7047 13,064
= Other financial insttutions Q30 =
Ouside Mainland China
- Banks H895 2,3}
= Oither financial instneions 298 131
Subroeal 14,170 15,585
Accrued interest 12 18
Total 14,182 25,603

(b) Analysed by collateral
31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Drebe securities 9058 14,771

Bank acceptances 4,212 10,814

Subroral 14,170 25,585

Accrued incerest 12 18

Total 14,182 25,6035
225
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 Deposits from customers

31 December 31 December

2024 2015
Demand deposics
— Corporate customers 850,381 TRIESD
— Individual customers 274,087 217,892
Subroral 1,124,468 1001751
Time deposies
= Corporate customers 1,530,885 1,262,657
— Individual cuszomers 526,723 d66413
Subtotal 2,057,608 1,729,070
Medged deposics 251,504 232,522
Other deposits 3182 21,682
Subroeal deposits from customers 3,437,222 29850215
Accrued interest 43.445 31863
Tatal 3,480,667 3017888

32 Accroed staff costs

31 December 31 December

Mares 2020 208

Salary and welfare payvable {a) 12,626 11,929

Pension payable (b} 1,310 G20
Supplementary retirement {c}

benefits pavable 1,233 1,118

Total 15,169 13,667

Marai
(kL of sabvey el seriiier parvable

Anar $5 December 2020, be proap reobooified snkory sl mralfire pepable aw remanad e comparaaine S,
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
32 Accrued staff costs [continucd)
MNarrr (caurimat)
61 Powsen srbews
Poorswant to:the reterant tasos e reguletians in the FRE the Group bas fnimnd  sdefined coneribusivn sclemar far she smaplayes arvioagrd by focul

grovrmanent bnbar ol wsnied wrury anprasaion. e Graup ook commifurion te phe rearem s sl ot dhe apploabl mate baud e ohe
Avaiing M#knﬁwmm erpuindatiam.

The Creap providn au awssiry plen o the digible ronplerers, The Gireup malo aanuiey 1L dn priperting te it caiplaern gran Bxpe
(- tle prine pevee, iwliclh are expessnd te prafls av e iden she commibutions wrr made.

fed Supplevarmry sereeeenr beaafin (SRR

The Graup pam SRE for obipble emplepen. The amans represewts she prowwd wolar of the toml evimeied dmvanns of fumre beagfine har she
Ceroup o cavmmitied te pary for ebgible complevers a the rod of the separtong your, The G b oflgaeins in repect af st SRE werr acvound, sisy
Wmﬂr-ﬁ#rﬂiﬁﬁ'uﬂﬁm&f-{m{kﬁ:‘n s Amrrisa) fumﬂwmm Taurn
Whitew. Mirnag Comulnng (Shensbont Co Lol

il T dvnils of ohe. Crea s supplrsirary Ferisrmienr dranln are o fallon

Fi Dhcrmber A1 Decrmater

2020 Ml

Preuens raiur af epplementary resivement bewefio fabiliey 153 LIIE

far) Mavemrnn of SRE of thv 'l.':nlj P

2024 K09

As e I faamevy 2020 1.8 &4
Crvend arFrdor ol i Fra
Twtement coans i &
Revrlulitrien pars af the defimed fensfic plen Ferr] e
Fopoerms msde {173 (I5h
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32 Accroed stall costs (continued)

T T

fek

Supplrsenrury retivesment Searfin CSRET (oariessdt

frad

)

Priwatpal werariel movmpian o by Greup aer o Sl

F1 Decrmir FI Dirtroider

ik e b

Thscomai rie 4t A%
Miidivaif it g ies 0% 2550
Avevage expeored furare Gfevome Frd 22 tr

A ar A6 Dievenbeer 2020 sl 37 Dievwirber 2000, theve wws e sigaifieans change in roglever reniemrar beaefln sbdgaians ibay wa
il da nirmges A9 acraaT AT

Semuriety seafpuc

Mpuﬂ@udmrmq&#nmfﬁrm { v sl wher v} it cemutaing, skl
Barse afffecind vl defiand beaefle sbligurion by the arsuns shown belee:

A1 Decrralver 2020

Taetnive Doevveches
Frivcvmray rave (1% msvesanen ) e aAr
el conr oeewal ware (T swaveeararl wiF i

FI Davemlsr 2005

Tavraiia Flerveawes
Lhecewwy nave (1% mevemenrf £31F L
Mrsdiodl cest memd wate (1% mavesarar] 56 [Paly]

Alrfauph the anfrelt dse wed sofie tbe fol eperod durifunen s goosaw dn e fareee ool e goresnor, dppETRLEE @ENRETIL
m&r—&jiqr&-mmwpnwmw?mhnﬂu

}:n\?fu;ﬂlﬂm{“tdf{ld‘nmwﬂiﬂ?hh-ﬁf# ¥ LT is pary rlf &r-g‘i'a.u.d-n.t.u-lp.u-
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33 Taxes pavable
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Income max pavable 5,617 0446
Yalue added rax payable 2,705 24460
Ohihers 450 430
Toral BT 9,322
_f-'i. lease liabilities
31 December 31 December
2020 20149
Within 1 year (inclusive) 2,636 2611
I year to 2 years {inclusive) 2305 2,283
2 years to 3 years (inclusive) 1,893 1,937
3 wears to 5 vears (inclusive) 2.601 2711
More than 5 vears 2916 3,292
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 12,351 12,834
Lease liabilities 10,762 11,069
35 [ebt sccurities issued
31 December 31 December
Motes 2020 M9
Subordinared debes issued {a) B, 700 6,700}
Financial bonds issued b} 5795 55,782
Tier-two capital bonds issued i) 41,430 J0.983
Converiible bonds issued {d} 22,884 27547
Interbank deposits issued (e} 313045 199,057
Certificates of depasit issued ify 31,762 19,249
Medium term notes () 17412 20,428
Subtoal 439,028 368,746
Accrued interest 1,842 3,158
Toral 440,870 371,904
229
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35 Debt securities bsued (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subordinated debis issued
31 December 31 December

Mores 2020 2019

Subardinated fixed rate debrs maruring
in_June 2027 {i} 6,700 6,700
Tatal 6,700 6700

(i Finrd rovve pilprdinatnd debin {MM?DHHM. il g irrem lff.fﬂ\rl_m sewwd dowed aw ?_fu.lr ol Fhe L T ] AT
v dmmun. The Gireap i aw optisn o raderm ohe debis an 8 Juwr 2022 a0 she pomiomdd somssial.

il v 31 Dviember 2020, nhe fair raber of the teel niberdinaed ety funedd app { va RAFOENTT withien (10 Dieormmber 2009
RUTRED0E millim).
Financial bonds issued
31 December 31 December
Mestes 2020 20019
Financial fixed rate bonds mAturing
in February 2020 {8} - 27999
Financial fixed rate bonds matwring
in July 2020 iii) - 21.995
Fimancial fixed rare bonds maruring
in Mavember 2021 i) 4,506 44990
Fimancial fixed rare bonds maruring
in |anuary 2022 fiv) 7949 798
Total 5795 55,782
MNagn:

ik Mnﬂrﬁﬂ-‘ﬂf‘w‘ﬁ !(M.EZ‘EW e wad o frrm gf.h’i'ml;'un wry s w23 .Hl"r-l.g- 2007 The CHAPET FRA A1 00

F‘V“M

il Fraedd vare foneaviad bawdi off R EXE00 bitliew wood o rees af slevr poaw wovr tmaed on 2T fake 2007 The cospon mare i 4_20% per
AR

fitd  Figrd rave fiugwoal bonadi of RUES, 00 Bilfew with o crrm of theer yren were maed by Evevbright Finoncan Lewsung en § Nopeober
2iE The dmupan raie 4. 1% e aunum

i) P rere Fominrial femdy of RAEGE0 Sllion winh o e o phere gote worw iowed by Frevleiply Povamoal Lravimg s TE fawesey
2088, The oaupan rave i 349% por awmu,

feb  Arar AP Bdecember 2000 the fair owlar of the tosal fimvacial doods iowed approximesed re BMBSE00 milion (31 Drvemder 2005
BB, 058 miillinal
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

35 Debi securities issned (continucd)

{e)  Tier-twe capital bonds issued
31 December 31 December

Motes 2020 209
Tier-vwo capital fixed rate bonds mawring
in March 2027 i) 27,990 17988
Tier-two capital fixed rare bonds matring
in August 2027 it} 11,995 11,995
Tier-two capiral fived rare bonds matring
in Seprember 2030 {iii} 1,445 -
Tatal 41,430 39,983
Metn:

il }Mmmd’uﬂmfwﬂﬂ'ﬂﬂhﬁmdﬂrdh-fﬂ.ﬂmhmmhl'”.’.‘ﬁ.r:ﬂ-ﬂf.r. The comporr ratr & F050%
v awmarn, The (ivaup Day aw sprisn re redeess che debir o & Aot 2022 o e womiwal somnn

fir}  Fiwed sare sier-dow o’ Dol of RETELZ00 Sim wiinh & tevow af tew e wovr il on 25 Awgwar 2607 Tie roupan rare i 70N
v awwaw, I derqup -l'mul-llp\.rrunrﬂd‘mﬂsr-ﬁﬁh o M Aagaar 2017 ar pbe awming amsuns,

farih  Foond e ier-tme capdind ol of RABLG0 billaw urith o o of trn prans aoere dused an 06 Seprember 2020 be Everdripht Flosmeial
Lnicing flrn.?n rate i 3% por kahkpbnn.pnumm&v—dr&hmrj Wi‘ﬂ.’p‘}ﬂ [T

AT

firk  As at 1) Pecemaber 2000, she firir nabue of she rosel rier-nve crpisal bawds twmed appreximaied re BAEL2F5 million (31 Decrmfeer
2079 RAFI0PEF wviliral

{d} Convertible bonds issued
31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Fixed rate six years convertible bonds jssued
in March 2017 22,884 27,547
231
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35 Debi securities bsued (continued)

id) Converible bonds issued (continued)
The converrible eorporate bonds issued have been split ine the liability and equity components as

follows:
Liaksiliry Equity
Mote COMponent COMpamnent Toral
Mate V 38
Mominal value of convertible bonds 24,826 5074 30,005
Diiecct transaction costs () {13} {77}
Balance as ar the isuance dare 24,762 3,161 20923
Accumulared amertization as ar
January 20241 2,786 - 1,786
Accumulared conversion amount
a5 ar | January 2020 {1 - {1
Balance a5 2t 1 January 2020 27547 5,161 32,708
Amorisation during the year T3 - 783
Conversion amount during the vear {iv {54440 {EHI8} (B, 444
Balance as ac 31 December 2020 22,884 4,163 17047

ik

i

fiud

fred

et

Pmm:n&f.yptﬂ&;h&uﬂ PR awadariria, o 17 March 2007 sbe Bosk juned A-uberr conperiible basadd aish o rasal maverimal
amonar o RMESG fafffen. The camrernitdy damnli botir & mnqmq"upﬂnﬁdﬂ 7 Marefe 2017 0 M6 Mareld 2023, o beirr
@ el foterest vt &f G200 for the fire peav. G50 for ohe sovomd yror, L O0% for whe third yoar, 1500 fGr s fourck g, 1504
Sor b fifle pear awd 200% for oy sl peav. The roaverrabie band balders sy oo their righn e coment the comavravble damds owes
Hbe Bamits A absires 0t dhe tipulated conpemin prive duriag the yeir ("Conremien Forisd 7 beginning vx mentls afier the diie of duasice
wnrdf the maturary dege. Within 5 radiog dem gfier motwrin e Benk shall redrem the snnsunding comorrabde band ar J05% of rhe
Pmﬁhainﬁﬁ-;wﬁr e ixdh i,

Duriag by Coawersiaa Preisd, i e elinlng prive o the Banky A Shaws 0 656 Sater Aaw or apiadl te D300 g ube pressiiling comvemiad
e dw i dnaar 15 imading dews swd of oy 30 oemenatine irealing ey, sedgert be e appresal by selevoat PRC swusbaninie (i seeded), ohe
Baak e ide right te redirsr all ar pare 8 vhe warandiag reaverrilile Seails ar par milie pha sorwad ineren aw e fimr day da alick
e rrdemmprian iriteria are o T g char oy Bookl ctweenden price v aufpaied e to e pe-right ar mcddividod at cher mading
deri, ehe pre-adwumens prire i clvwdrind at the avenian price and dhe deug price at the mading Loy befarr the adfaviuews, dud rhe
Py prive i wloudesed at the cowversian price wwd thy clming prive at e mading doy afier by adfparmenr. The Band wlo fuir
the right ta releerm alf the muverrilde bonds ar pair ralve plo arcred iwireec dbould e sl sxnvanding wmewet b e then RMEIG
silflian

Bl ww v calenienier savrled i rhe propecrs of e coweerable bt phe bninal somirersien price & RUES 3G pee slare, we fea than
e awordge iradimg prive o obe Saabs A e oo 30 or 20 madiag oy Sofare il smssascrmont oy & ol praspera (e ieok
prier i et dae re e onnight av exeatividensdd wichie ther 30 sr 20 rading den tle pre-d) i priee v celraared o e rebmed

wpsird pricel, e aormape mading prie of e Raeks A dhare a the previvas madiag day, o well o the Savewt awited wet anet valar
F’ﬂ!‘ud’.ﬂbﬂr\rn&p&ﬂjfwmn’rm’ﬂnhmﬂgjxk uhsatrr,

A 30 Dieereaber 2020, @ taral of” R ES S0 wvilisn (37 Pvewsader 2009 RAEEL000) murrmble bowdy e dvrs conversnd bas
ardlinary alvres oy ovsrwbinier courernille number of aberr i RGBT 9T chaver (31 Slteramter 2005 228107 olarel.

Tu 2020, @ asial wf RMEIOD milion favernns an o couvernibe boads b deen paidl by e Rande (20059 RABER) millien),
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Diebi securities issned (continucd)

(e}

U

Interbank deposits issued
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In 2020, 329 inter-bank deposits were issued by the Bank and measured ar amortised eost with a
carrving amount of RMBESOR.G00 million (2019 RMB216,490 million). The carrving amount of
interbank deposits due in 2020 was RMB392.400 millien (2019: RMB285,690 million). As ar 31
December 2020, the fair value of is sustanding interbank deposits issued was RMB310,619 million

(31 December 2019: RMB196,493 million).

Certificates of deposit issued

As ar 31 December 2020, the cerrificites of deposit were isued by the Bank's Hong Kong branch,
Seoul branchm. Sydney branch and Luvembourg Branch measured ar amornised cose. The fair value
of the certificates of depaosit issued approximated o their carrying amounr.

(g} Medium term notes

31 December 31 December
MNotes 2020 a9
Medium term notes with fixed rate
maturing in 8 March 2020 (i - 3472
Medium term notes with floating rate
maturing in 13 June 2020 {iE} - 3,484
Medium term notes with floating race
maturing in 13 June 2021 fiii) 2407 2,342
Medium term notes with floating rate
mataring in 13 June 2021 {iv) 1,958 2.0
Medium term notes with floating rate
maturing in 19 Seprember 2021 Y] 1,958 2,083
Medium term notes with floaring rare
maturing in 24 June 2022 {wi} 3.262 3484
Medium term notes with floating rare
maruring in 11 December 2022 {vii) 3,262 3472
Medium rerm notes with floating race
miataring in 3 Augpust 2023 {viii} 4,565 -
Total 17412 20,428
233
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [(CONTINUED)
35 Debi securities bsued (continued)

(gl Medinm term notes (continued)
Magr:

fif Fiard pate medlive v wote of USIE00 sl soird o reew af oleee paees were s dy e Skl Hong Kong deanch an | Sarck
Zof7. The oupan nrte i 2 50% por duium

fih  Maring vt wvaliune srry mecey af D000 mnilien syl @ wem af teee pears weer iusod by the Rank'i Flang Komg frnch oo 6 fune
2077, The twivial sospon rave i 203N per swpun.

fidad Mwﬂ-um-mfﬁf}ﬁﬂﬂmﬁmnﬁtm-q‘mnw mmib&h}?hhhﬁmdjﬁr
Jﬂm.fkmﬂﬂqnmﬂﬂfuﬁprm

fied  Flearing rave mediune rero wares of USDU00 il wiuh a e of dleer poaes weve inmed by e Rank’s Wang Kong brwwch s 6 fune
JOPE. The rorind compen wate f 3. T8% pev avmsm.

fr}  Hlaiting mite sediuem ierm wate of USI300 millan with o fevoe of three gy were fssind by the Bunk's Hrag Keap beanch on 12
Supteonber 2018 The suirial crapaw rir 00 3.09% per awwam,

frmd Mearisg rave seediem e miies of USERTO0 millan wanh o oerm off e vy s it by e Bawk's Hong Kaog beaucd on 17 funre
2009 The iwinkal coupsn mve i 3 13% pov i

fwrl  Flsring rary medias revm mans f USDR00 williew el o b o theer vear weve Oooad by i Baaks Wewg Kong deanch an 4
Deapmmber 2008, The inivier! conpaw rasr v 1 57% por e

g} me&u-m—mfﬂﬁl?m’-ﬁ-ﬂﬁ-m{%pﬁ mmﬂ&gn&hﬂih&i;ﬁqhnﬁﬂ}?}-&;
2000, The i compen wave & 1 [0% por awiu.

fid A B Dieveombier 2020, phe e owlie o tle medium irve nsie appro o 1o BB T A il Dvermber 2005 RW B0 478

millien!

36 Other labilities
31 December 31 December

Mates 2020 2019
Dieferred income {a} 5,222 6,710
Bank loans il 14,302 17,597
Finance leases payable 6,034 4,876
Provisions {e 4,280 3,751
Payment and collecrion clearance accounts 3304 1,761
Dwormant accounts 421 354
Dividend payables 21 21
Others 10,53 14.478
Tatal 44,574 48548

fat  Diferred imose primarily cospried the deforred crediv cand imoome aud defieredd revewse af creadit cardd poini

(& Asar 3 Devrmdr 2000, abie Girauip b sidkebliary, Errvlenply Fladeaial Ladvag, Ssrrawad lovg-trrnd bt dmnk pvnin a7 1 06 00 peari Erovirighr
Finaacial Lrang sbould repary copisal with et quarrerly. The domwanr of tbe limgoterm baiwk om0 RMBI4202 mulben (5} Decrmbber
2000 RARDTSOT wvilliiat

feb  Asar A Deewber 20000 nhe aronaals fr Drigarian fos snmatsd Sy obe Grsup Saod s e mane o snvimnding Oripries oo and e
produakiliy of bom swenned o RMBIX millen (31 Devrmber 20159 RABISS million),
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
37 Share capital
The Bank's sharcholding structure as ar the end of the reporting vear is a5 follows:

31 December 31 December

2020 049
Ordinary shares listed in Mainland China (A share} 41,353 39,810
Oirdinary shares listed in Hong Kong (H share) 12,6759 12,679
Towal 54,032 52,489

The H shares rank pari passu in all respects with the A shares including the rght w all dividend
distributions declared, paid or made.

38 Other equity instruments

31 December 31 December

Mate W 2020 a9
Preference shares (Notes (a), (b), {c). (e} 64,906 R
Equity of convertible bonds 35 (d) 4,163 5.161
Perpetual bonds (Neres (d) (¢} 39,993 -
Toal 109,062 0067
{a) Preference shares ar the end of the year
Mumber
Drividend of shares Conversion
Issue date rate  lwue price imued  [sue amount  condition
(M BYshare) {million) (RMBE million}
iy
2015-6-1% 4.45% 1t 200 20 Mandatory
conversion
triggering events
Everbright 2
2006-5-8 ERL U] 10k 100, (KK M:Lﬂ.&mr_l‘
CORVErsion
triggering events
3
20197-13 4, 80% Y] 350 35,000 Mandatory
Conversion
triggering events
Subtatal 65,000
Les=
Tsaning costs {94)
Book value G, M

233
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

236

I8

Other equity instruments {cantinued)

(b) Main clanses

i)

fii}

(i)

(i)

o)

Dividerd

Fixed rate for the first 5 years after issuance.
Dividend is reser every 5 years thereafter to the sum of the benchmark rare and the fixed spread.

The fixed spread equals to the spread berween the dividend rare ar the ome of issuance and
the benchmark rate, The fived spread will remain unchanged throughour the term of the
preference shares.

Conditions to distribution of dividends

The Group could pay dividends while the Group still has distriburable after-rax profic afrer
making up previcus years' losses. contributing o the smamrory reserve and making general
reserve, and the Group’s capital adequacy ratio meers regulatory requirements. The Group

may elecr to cancel any dividend, bur such cancellation requires a shareholder’s resalution o
be passed.

Dividend Blocker
If the Group cancels all or part of the dividends to the pn'ﬁ:n'nn' sharcholders, the Group

shall not make any dividend distribution to ordinary sharcholders before the Group pays the
dividends for the current dividend vear to the preference sharcholders in full.

Order of distribution and liquidation method

The preference shareholders are subordinated to the depositors, ordinary. erediters, holders of
subordinated debe, holders of Tier-owe capital bonds, holders of convertible bonds and holders
of perpetual bonds but have a higher priority in shares” distribution than to the ordinary
sharcholders,

Mandatory conversion irigger events

Upon the occurrence of an Additional Tier-one Capital Triggering Event (Common equity tier-
one capital Adequacy Ratio of the Group falling to 5.125% or below), the Group shall have
the right to convert all or part of the preference shares into A shares, in order to restore the
common equity tier-one capital Adequacy Ratio of the Group to above 5.125%:; If preference
shares were converted to A shares, they could not be converted 1o preference shares again.

Upon the aceurrence of a non-viability rriggering event (Earlier of the mwo situarions: (1)
CBIRC has derermined that the Group would become non-viable if there is no conversion or
write-down of capiral; and (2) the relevane authorities have derermined rthar a public sector
injection of capital or equivalent support is necessary, withour which the Group would become
non-viable}, the Group shall have the right to converr all preference shares inte A shares.
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(b) Main clauses (continued)

(vi) Redemption
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Subject ter the prior approval of the CBIRC and the sarisfaction of the relevant requirements, the
Group shall have the righe 1o redeem all or part of the preference shares on any redeemable day
{the payment date for dividends of the preference shares each year) after the fifth year following
the completion date of the issuance of the preference shares, The specific commencernent date of
the redemprion period shall be determined by the Board in line with marker conditions, subject
to authorization at a shareholders” general meeting (the authorisation can be further delegared).
The redemprion period for the preference shares shall commence on such commencement date
af the redemprion period and end on the completion date of the redemprion or conversion of
all the preference shares. Where redemprion is in par, the preference shares shall be redeemed
based on the same proportion and conditions. Preference shares shall be redeemed in cash.

The redemption price shall be the par value plus the dividend declared but unpaid for the

relevant year.

{e) Changes in preference shares ontstanding

1 January 2020 Additions For the vear 31 December 2020
Mumber MNumber MNumber
of shares Carrying of shares Camying of shares  Camrying
{millizn) value {million) value {million) value
Preference Shares (x50 154,906 - - B0 4, 90K

| January 2019

Additions for the vear

31 December 2019

MNumber Mumber Mumber
of shares Carrying of shares Carrying of shares Carrying
{millicn) value {million] value {million) value
Preference Shares 300 20947 350 34,959 630 e, S
237

347/429



CHINA EVERBRIGHT HANE

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

MNotes to the Consolidared Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020

(Expressed in millicns of Benminbi, nnlos otherwiee sared)

V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
38 Oiher equity instroment (contjnued

(d) Main clauses of perpetnal bonds

With the approvals by the relevane regulatory authorities in China, the Bank issued RMB4O billion
of non-dared capital bonds (the "Bonds™) which are written down in the domestic interbank bond
marker om 18 Seprember 2020, and completed rhe issuance on 22 Seprember 2020, The denominarion
of the Bonds is RMB100 each, and the annual coupon rate of the Bonds for the first five years is
4.0601%, which is reser every 5 years.

The duration of the above bonds is the same as the period of continuing eperation of the Bank.
Subject 1o the satsfaction of the redemption conditions and having obrained the prior approval of
the CBIRC, the Bank may redeem the above bonds in whole or in part on cach distibugon payment
date 5 years after the issuance date of the above bonds. Upon the ocourrence of a trigger event
for the write-downs, with the consent of the CBIRC and without the consent of the bondholders,
the Bank has the right to write down all or part of the above bonds issued and existing at that
time in accordance with the total par value. The claims of the holders of the above bonds will be
subardinated 1o the claims of depositors, general creditors and subordinated ereditors; and shall rank
in priorty to the claing of sharcholders and will rank pari passu with the claims under any other
additional tier | capital instruments of the Bank that rank pari passu with the above bonds,

The shove bonds are paid with non-cumulative interest. The Bank shall have the right 1o canced
distributions on the above bonds in whele or in parr and such eancellation shall not constitute a
defaule. The Bank may at is discretion utilise the proceeds from the cancelled distributions ro meet
ather obligations of maruring debrs. Bur the Bank shall nor distribute profics ro ordinary shareholders
until the resumprion of full interest payment,

Capirtal raised from the issuance of the above bonds, after deducrion of mansaction costs, was wholly
used o replenish the Bank's additional tier one capital and ro increase i capital adequacy rario,

(e} Interests attributable to equity instruments’ holders
31 December 31 December

frems 2020 200
Tomal equity areriburable o cquity sharcholders of
the Bank 435,449 384,982

— Equiry areriburable o ordinary sharcholders of

the Bank 348,550 320076
— Equity arwributable to preference sharcholders of

the Bank £, 0N 64,906
— Equity ateributable to Perperual bonds of the Bank 39,993 -
Total equity atiributable to non- controlling interests 1,549 1072
— Equity ateributable to non-controlling interests of

ordinary shares 1,549 L0772
~ Equity ateributable to non-controlling interests of

preference shares - -
= Equity ateributable 1o non-conmolling interests

Perpetual bands - =
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
39 Capital reserve

31 December 31 December
20020 2019

Share premium 58,434 53,533

40 Other comprehensive income

31 December 31 December

2020 019

ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Fair value changes on equity instruments ar fair value

through other comprehensive ineome 16 14
Remeaswrement of a defined benefir plan (281) {303)
Sulbtoral [263) (289)
ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Dbt instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income 1,739 2,959
~ Mer change in fair value 98 1.99%
- Met change in expected eredit los 411 961
Exchange differences on rranslation of financial smements (81} 67
Subtotal 1.658 3,026
Total 1,393 273

Orther comprehensive income attributable o equity holders of the Bank in the consolidated statement of
financial position:

Fairvihee ~ Met change i Fair vakee Exchange

changs an debt ECL on debe change on equity defferences on

instrumenss instruments matruments trambation

2t fair vilee at fair valoe at fuir vaos of financial
theough other  thevugh ceher  derough cther wtemnts  Renseainsement
comprehensie  compeehensive  comprchemive of oieries al 4 defined

intome incomse insree suheidiaries benefin plan Toud
Asar 1 January 2019 1454 54 10 b {113 1,653
Chasgey in ameant for the
pievious veir 4 My 4 i7 {130 182
Ai it | Jamary 2020 1558 1 14 07 {305} L7
Chisges in amoant for the
et {1075 (13 i {148} il {1344
As 2t 31 December 2020 I8 ikl 16 (81} {281} 1343
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

240

41

i2

Surplus reserve and general reserve

(a) Sorplus reserve

The surplus reserve ar the end of the reporting year represented staturory surplus reserve fund. The
Bank is required o allocate 10% of its net profir, after making good prior vear's accumuolared losses,
o starurory surplus reserve fund untl the reserve fund balance reaches 500% of its registered capiral.

(k) General reserve

The Bank is required, in principle, o ser aside a2 general reserve, through appropriation of profic afer
rax, with an amount of not lower than 1.5% of the ending balance of it gross risk-bearing assers.

Appropriation of profits

(a) Ar the Board Mecting held on 26 March 2021, the Board of Directors approved the following profic
appropriations for the year ended 31 December 20200

The accumulated amount of withdrawal has reached 50% of the Bank registered capiral;
According to the relevant terms of the company law, the surplus reserve can no longer be
withdrawn in this profit distnbution;

Appropriated RMB7,492 million to penenal reserve:

The 2021 annuwal dividend of RMB1680 million should be paid to the Third prcfcrcnn'
sharcholders in cash dividend RMBA.80 per share before tax base on the copon dividend yield
of 4.8%; and

Dreclared cash dividends of RMBI1.347 million o all ordinary sharcholders of 34,032 million
shares as ar 31 December 2020, representing RMB2.10 per 10 shares before tax.

(b) At the Annual General Meeting of sharcholders held on 5 June 2020, the sharcholders approved the
following profiv appropriations for the vear ended 31 December 2019:

Appropriated RMBLET4 million (5.12% of the ner profic of the Bank} ro surplus reserve, the
accumulated amount of withdrawal has reached 50% of the Bank's registered capiral;

Appropriated RMB5,3%0 million w general reserve; and

Dreclared cash dividends of RMB 11,233 million o all ordinary sharcholders' shares, representing
RMB2.14 per 10 shares before tax.

(€} At the Board Meeting held on 27 March 2020, the dividend distribution of the Everbright P3 was
approved by the Board of Dhrectors:

Deeclared cash dividends 1o preference sharcholders of RMB76% million before tax, representing
RMBL.20 per share before tax, accruing from 18 July 2019, and are caleulared using the 4.30%
af dividend vield ratio for the Everbrighe P3,
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
42  Appropriation of profits (continued)

{d} At the Board Meeting held on 5 June 2020, the dividend distribution of the Everbright Pl was
approved by the Beard of Directors:

= Declared cash dividends wo preference sharcholders of RMB 1,060 million before tax, representing
RMB5.30 per share before ax, accruing from 25 June 20019, and are caleulared using 5.30%
of dividend yield ratio for the Everbright 1.

(e} At the Board Meeting held on 30 July 2020, the dividend distribution of the Everbrighe P2 was
approved by the Board of Dirccrors:

- Declared cash dividends to preference sharcholders of RMB390 million before tax, representing
RMB3.90 per share before tax, accruing from 13 August 2019, and are caleulased using 3.90%
of dividend yield ratio for the Everbright P2

43 lnvolvement with stroctored enttes

{a] Swructured entitles sponsored by third party instwmions in which the Group holds an
interest:

The types of structured entitics that the Group does not consolidate but in which it holds an
interest include fund investments and aset management plans at fair value through profic or loss,
asset management plans and asset-backed sccuritics at amortised cost. The nature and purpose of
these structured entities are to generate fees from managing assets on belialf of third party investors,
These vehicles are financed through the issue of units o investors,

The fallowing table etz our an analysis of the carrying amounts and maximum exposure of interess
held by the Group in unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by third party institutions as ar
the end of the year:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Carrying  Maximum Carrving  Maximum

aArount exposure arnane exposure
Fimancial assers ag fair value through

profit or loss

= Fund investments 211,085 211,085 159,764 159,764

- Asser management plans 30,282 30,282 18,686 18,686
Fimancial investments measured ar

ameoerised cost

— Asser management plans 205,206 205, 2060 256,569 250,509

— Asser-backed securities 149,205 149,205 119,439 119,439
Total 395,778 595,778 554,454 334,454
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
43 Involvemeni with structured eniities {contlnucd

(b) Structured entities sponsored by the Group which the Group does not consolidate but
holds an interest in:

The types of unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by rthe Group include non-principal
guaranteed wealth management products. The nature and purpose of these structered entinies are
to generate fees from managing assers on behalf of investors. These structured enities are financed
through the issue of units o investors. Interest held by the Group includes investments in units issued
by these strucoured entities and fees charged by providing management services. As ar 31 December
2020, the carrying amounts of the investments in the notes issued by these scructured enrities and
management fee receivables being recognised are not material in the sarement of financial positions.

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of asseis held by the unconsolidated non-principal guaranteed
wealth management products, which are sponsored by the Group is RMBE36,273 million (31
December 2019: RMB778,837 million). The aggregated amount of the non-principal puaranteed
wealth management products sponsored and issued by the Group after 1 January 2020 but matared
before 31 December 2020 was PMB20O million (2019 RMB771 million).

[n 2020, the amount of fee and commission income received from the unconsolidated structured
entities by the Group was RMB2,518 million (20019 RMB634 million).

For the purpose of asser-liability management, wealth management products may cawse shortr-term
financing needs 1o the Group and other banks. The Group is nor contraczually obliged o provide
financing. After internal risk assessment, the Group may enrer into transaetions with these wealth
management products in accordance with marker principles. As ar 31 December 2020, the balance
of above rransactions was Nil (31 December 201%: RMB.106 million, included in *placements with
banks and other financial institutions™). In 2020, the amount of interest receivables from the above
financing transactions was not material for the Group in the starement of profit or loss.

In addition, please refer to Mote W 44 for the interests in the uneonsolidared structured entities of
assef securitization transactions held by the Group as ar 31 December 2020, In 2020, the Group's
income from these soructured encities was immiaterial,

In July 2020, the regulatory authorities made a dedision on extending the transitien period for the
Guiding Opinions on Regulating Asset Management Business of Financial Institutions to the end of
2021 and encouraged orderly disposal of legacy assets in a variety of ways such as undertaking by new
wealth management products, market-based transfer, and ransferring assets back to the statement of
financial position. According e the regulatory requirements, the Group has prometed the disposal of
the legacy wealth management business in a pragmatic, efficient, actively and orderly way in order
to-achieve a smeoth ransitien and stable development of the wealth management business,
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¥V MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
43 Involvement with sirociured entities (continued)

(£} Consalidated structured entities

The consolidated structured entities of the Group are primarily the principal guaranreed wealth
management products and cerrain aser management plans and must plans. Principal puaranteed
wealth management products sponsored and managed by the Group represent products o which
the Group has guaranteed the investor’s principal investment, regardless of their actual performance,
Investments made by these produces and the corresponding liabilities ro the investors of these products
are presented in the respective financial asser and financial lability items based on the nature of the
assets and liabilities. The Group contrals these entities when the Group has power over, is exposed
to, or has rights o, variable returns from its involvement with these entities and has the abiliy e
use its power over these entities to affect the amount of the Group’s returns,

44  Transferred financial assets

The Group enters into mansictions in the normal course of business by which ir transfers recognised
financial assets 1o third parties or 1o soructured entides. In some cases, these mansfers may give rise
full or partial de-recognition of the financial assets concerned in accordance with [FRSs. In other cases
where the transferred assets do not qualify for de-recognition as the Group has retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of these assers, the Group continues to recopnise the transferred assets.

Credit assets backed securitization

The Group enters into credit assets transfers in the normal course of business during which it ransfers
credit assets o structured entities which in turn isue asser-backed securities to investors, The Group may
acquire some asser-backed securities at the subordinated tranche level and accordingly, may retain parts
of the risks and rewards of the transferred eredin assers. The Group would determine whether or not 1o
derecognise the asocated credit assers by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards
of the assees.

With respecr o the eredit assers thar were securitised and qualified for de-recognition, the Group
derecognised the rransferred eredit assees in their entirery. The corresponding toral careying amount of
asser-backed sccurities held by the Growp in the securitsation rransacrions was MNil as ar 31 December
2020 {31 December 2019 RMB13 million).

For those in which the Group has neither transferred nor rerained substancially all che risks and rewards
of the transferred credic assers, and remined contral of the credic assets, the transferred credic assers are
recopnised on the statement of financial position ro the extent of rhe Group's continding invelvement.
As ar 31 December 2020, the Group has no continuing involvement in credit asset-backed securiries (31
December 2019: Mil).
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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4

I'ransferred Anancial ‘assetsicontinued)

Transfer of right 1o earnings

The Group enters ino ransacrions of rransfer of right to earnings of credir assers in the normal eourse
of business by which it rransfers the right  earnings 1o structured enrities which sell share of trust m
IMVeSTors,

With respect o the credic assets thar were mansferred and qualified for de-recognition, the Group
derccognised the mransferred credin assets in their endrery. As at 31 December 2020, the Group held no
share in corresponding rransaction.

As the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assers and it has retained control on them, these financial assets are recognised on the statement
of financial pesition to the extent of the Group’s continuing invelvement, The extent of the Group's
continuing involvement is the extent to which the Group is exposed to changes in the value of the
transferred assets. As ar 31 December 2020, loans with an original carrying amount of RMB1,998 million
{31 December 2019 RMB2,590 million) had been transferred l‘r'r the Group under arrangements in
which the Group retains a continuing invelvement in such asets in the form of subordinated tranches,
which were aceounted for in other assets and other labiliries, As ar 31 December 2020, the carrying
amount of assets that the Group continues to recognise amounted o RMB251 million (31 December
2019 RMB614 million).

354/429

ooOooood



EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

wodsy ey o707

¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

45  Capital management

The Group's capital management includes cpital adequacy ratio management, capital financing
management and economic capital management, of which the primary focus is on capital adequacy ratio
management. The Group caleulares the capiral adequacy ratio in accordance with guidelines. The capital of
the Group is divided into common equity tier-one capiral, addivional rier-one capiral and tier-rwo capiral.

Capital adequacy ratio management is the kev in capital management. The capiral adequacy ratio reflects
the soundness of the Growp's operations and risk management capabilitics. The main objective in capital
adequacy ratio management is to zer an optimal capiral adequacy ratio thar meets the regulatary requirements
by benchmarking againsr the capital adequacy ratio level of leading global banks with reference o the
Croup’s own business environment and conditions,

The Group considers its strapegic development plans, business cxpansion plans and risk variables when
conducting scenario analysis and stress testing and executing other measures to forccast, plan and manage
its capital adequacy ratio. The required information is filed with the CBIRC by the Group and the Bank
semi-annually and quarterly,

With effect from | fanuary 2013, the Group has started computing its capital adequacy ratios in accordance
with “Regulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (provisional)” and other relevant regulations,

The CBIRC requires commercial banks to meet the requirements of capital adequacy ratios by the end
of 2018 in accordance with “Regulation Governing Capiral of Commercial Banks (provisional)”, For
systemically important banks, cach bank is required o maintain the common equity tier-one capital
adequacy ratio, ter-one capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratie of ar least 8.50%, 9.50% and
11.50%, respectively. For non-systemically imporrant banks, the minimum ratios for common equiny tier-
ane capiral adequacy rato, ter-one capiral adequacy ratio and capiral adequacy ratio are 7.50%, 8.50% and
10.50%, respectively. In addidon, those individual banking subsidiaries or branches incorporared ourside
Mainland China are also directy regulared and supervised by their respective local banking supervisors,
There are cermin differences in the capital adequacy requirements of different counries.

The on-balance sheet risk-weighved assets are measured using different risk weighes, which are determined
according to the credit, marker and other risks associared with each asset and counterparry. taking into
account any cligible collateral or guarantecs, Similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposure,
with adjustments made o reflect the more contingent nature of any potential losses, The counterparty
credit ﬁ,sk-wcightud assets for over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives are the summartion of defaule risk-
weighted assets and credit value adjustment (CVA), Market risk-weighted assets are calculated using the
standardised approach. Operational risk-weighted assets are calculated using the basic indicator approach,

The Group's capital adequacy ratio and related information are calculated on the basis of financal
statemnents prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP. During the reporting year, the Group complied
with the capiral requirements imposed by the regulatory authorivies.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
45  Capital management (continued

The Group caleulates the capital adequacy raties in accordance with “Regulation Governing Capital of
Commercial Barks (provisional)” and relevant requirements are as follows:

31 December 31 Drecember

2024 2019
Total common equity tier-one capital 349474 320,793
Share capical 54,0052 52,489
Qualifving portions of capiral reserve, other equiny
instruments and other comprehensive inceme 63,5990 61431
Surplus reserve 26,245 26,245
General reserve 67,702 59417
Rerained earnings 136,581 120,499
Qualifying portions of nen-controlling interests 929 717
Common equity tier-one capila] deductions (3.457) (2,930
Goodwill (1.281) (1,281)
Orther intangible asets other than land use rights (2,164} (1 040)
Met deferred rax assers arising from operating losses thar
depend on futere profits {16} (3]
Met common equity tier-one capital 346,022 317,863
Additional tier-one capital 105,023 65002
Additional tier-one capital instruments 104,899 0, S0
Qualifving portions of non-controlling interests 124 i
Tier-one capital nei 451,045 332865
Tier-two capital H2.485 B2.640
Qualifving portions of tier-two capiral insoruments isswed
and share premium 44,525 40,083
Excess loan loss provisions 36,5046 35,766
Cualifving portions of non-controlling interests 1,394 191
Met capital base 533,530 465,505
Total risk-weighted assets 3,837 489 3,456,054
Common equity tier-one capital adequacy ratio 9,029 9. 20%
Tier-one eapital adequacy ratio 11.75% 11.08%
Capital adequacy ratio 13.90¢k 13.47%
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V' MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
46  Moies to consolidaied cash How statcimenis

(a) MNet increase in cash and cash equivalents
31 December 31 December

2050 019
Cash and cash equivalents as ar 31 December 145,076 1174949
Less: Cash and cash equivalents as ar 1 January 117494 187,680
Met increase/(decrease) in eash and eash equivalents 27577 {70, 181)

(b)) Cash and cash equivalents
31 December 31 December

2020 2019
Cash on hand 4,471 4,353
Deposits with the centeal bank 56,132 57,546
Deposits with banks and other financial instimtions 40,483 6,581
Macements with banks and other financial instin@ons 43,9490 m7
Total 145,076 117 499

47 Related party n:|.|Hnnt|1i11l- and tansactions

(a) BRelated parity relationships
(i) The wltimare parent compary awd its sulvsidiaries

The ultimage parent of the Group is China Investment Corporation set up in China.

Approved by the State Council of the PRC, China Investment Corporation ("CIC") was
established on 29 September 2007 with registered capital of USD200 billion. Central Huijin
lnvestment Led. (*Huijin®) is 3 wholly-owned subsidiary of CIC and exercises its rights and
abligations as an investor on behalf of CIC o ultimately control the Bank through the China
Everbright Group,

Huijin was established 2 2 wholly state-owned investment company on 16 December 2003, [t
was registered in Beifing with registered capital of RMBE2E, 200 million. Apart from holding
equity invistments & autherised by the State Coundl of the PRC. it does not engage in any
ather commercial operations,

The Group's rransactions with CIC, Huijin and its affiliates mainly include depaosic raking,
purchases and sales of debr securites, money marker rransacrions and inver-bank clearing, These
transactions are priced based on marker prices and conducted under normal eommercial terms,

The Group has issued subordinated debes. financial bends, convertible bonds, interbank
deposits and certificates of deposit which are bearer bonds radable in the secondary marker.
Accordingly, the Group has no informarion in respect of the amount of the debrs held by
these banks and other financial instimons as ar the end of the vear. The amount and balance
of related parties and transactions berween the group and the ulrimare parenr company and is
subsidiaries are listed in Mowe ¥ 47(b).

247

357/429



CHINA EVERBRIGHT HANE

248

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 n0(E25668)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed i millicns of Benminbi, noles otherwiee sared)

V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

47  Related party relationships and transactions (contined)

{a) Related parity relationships (continucd)

(i) Affiliated companies

The immediate parent of the Group is China Everbright Group Lid. ("China Everbright
Group™). The uniform social eredin code of China Everbright Group is 91 100000102063897).
The affiliated companies refer 1o China Everbright Group and its affiliated companies. The
ransactions and balances with China Everbright Group and s affiliates are listed in Nore V
47(b).

The affiliared companies thar have related party rransactions with the Group are as follows:

Related party

— China Everbright Limited (Everbright Limited)

— Everbright Securities Co., Lrd. (Everbright Secrities)

— China Everbrighe Group Limited

— China Everbright industry (Group) Co., Lid

— Everbright Financial Holdings Asset Management Co., Lid

— Everbrighe Life Insurance Co., Led

— Ewerbright Xingleng Trust Co., Led

~ Ewerbright Prudential Fund Management Co., Led

~ Everbright Futires Ca., Ld

= Everbright Formune Investment Co., Lid

— Everbright Capital Investment Co., Lid

— Everbright happiness [nternational Leasing Co., Ld

= Everbright Yongming Asset Management Co., Lid

— China Everbrighe international Trust and Investment Corparation
— Everbright Jinou Asser Management Co., Led

— Everbright Securities Financial Holding Co., Lod

— China CYTS Group Corporation

— Cacher Pharmaceurical Co., Lrd

— Ewerbright Technology Co., Lid

— Everbright happiness international commercial factoring Co., Led
— Ewerbright sunshine Asser Management Co., Led

— Hangzhou Jinou Asset Management Co., Lid

— Guokaitai Industrial Development Co., Led

— Zhongging Chuangyi [nvestment Management Co., Led

— Shenzhen (hanhai Everbright Investment Management Co., Ltd
~ Ewerbright Securitics Asset Management Co., Lid

- 'Gua.nghanﬁ Mo. 2 {Tianjin) l.c.lsing Co., Led

= Beijing Everbright Jinhui 360 Investment Management Center
— Ewerbright tesilian (Beijing) Cultre Technology Ca., Lad

— Everbright photonies Investment Management Co., Led

= Guanghang No. 1| {Tianjin} Leasing Co., Lrd

— Shanghai Guiyun Asser Management Co., Lud

— China Everbright pension Health Industry Co., Lid

= Everbright Culrural lnvestment Co.. Ld

— Ewverbright Development [nvestment Cao., Lad

— Everbright Cloud Payment Technology Co., Lid

— Bueijing Everbright Huichen Pension Service Co., Lid
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Onher related partes include key management pesonnel (directors, supervisors, senjor
management personnel of the head office) and their close family members, enterprises controlled,
jointly controlled or exerred significant influcnce by key management personnel or their close
family members, and shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Groug.

The other related parties thar have pelated party transactions with the Group are o follows:

Onther related parties

— Owverseas Chinese Town Helding Company

— China Shipping (Group) Company

— Orient Securities Co., Lid. Henan Zhongyuan Chemical Co., Led
— Jilin TueCheng Construction Engineering Co., Led

— China UnionPay Co,, Lud

- Onient Securities Co., Led

— Konka Group Co., Led

— China Pacific Property Insuranee Co., Led

— China Pagific Life Insurance Co., Lid

— Shenergy Group Co., Lid.

= COSCO Shipping Development Co., Lid

— China Qcean Shipping Group Co., Lid

— Shenneng (Group) Co., Lid

= Bohai Securiies Co., Lid

— Shanghai gas (Group) Co., Lid

~ China Marine Fuel Co., Led

— Shenzhen weipin Zhivuan Information Technology Co., Lid
— Shanghai Zhongbo Enterprise Management Development Co., Led
— Shanghai Insurance Exchange Co., Lid

— Beijing Jingneng clean energy power Co., Led

— Shijiszhuang Hualin Food Co., Lrd

— Zhengrhou Chemical Light Industoy Co., Led

— China Eastern Airdines Group Co., Lid

— Huadian Fuxin Energy Co., Lid

— Fujian Bofang Technology Co., Lad

~ China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd

~ Zhengke Zhiyvan Technology Co., Lid

- Shmghni international port {Group) Co., Lid

= CYTS Holding Co., Led

The amount and balance of transactions between the Group and other related partics are shown
in Notes V' 47(b).
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [(CONTINUED)
47  Related party relationships and transactions (contined)
{(b) Related party transactions
i} The ultinsate pavent company and its sulsidiaries

The Group's material transactions with CIC, Huijin and s affiliates. during the reporting
period are summarised as follows:

2020 2019
Interest income 1,521 1051
Interest expense (34110 {3,348)

The Group's marerial balances wich CIC, Huijin and irs affiliates during the reporting period

are summarised as follows:

31 December 31 December
2002403 Mg

Dreposies with banks and other financial
instirurions 13,008 9,552

Precious metals 51
PMacements with banks and other financial

instimrions 22,333 13,909
Drerivarive financial assets 7.047 3704
Financial assets held under resale agreemenis 15,505 997
Loans and advances to customers 2,599 694
Financial investments 221,493 170418
Financial assets at fair value through

prafit or lass 56,471 36,270
Debr instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income 39,852 27,611
Financial investments measured at

amartised cost 125,170 106,537
Other assers 5,548 419
Deposits from banks and other financial

instirutions 98208 81.621
Placements from banks and odher financial

insrirurions 56,025 TO.62%
Drerivative financial labilines 9,072 3678
Financial assers sold under repurchase agreements H,523 2970
Dreposits from customers 51476 14,5806
Orher liabilities 249 30
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¥V MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
47  Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

(b) BRelated party transactions (continued)
(i) Tramsactions with other PRC state-owned entities

The Group operates in an economic regime currently predominated by entities direatly or
indircctly owned by the PRC pgovernment through s government authorities, agencies,
affiliations and other organisations (“state-owned entiries”). Transactions with other state-owned
entities include bur are not limired to; lending and deposic aking; raking and placing of inger-
bank balances: enrrusced lending and other custody services; insurance and securities agency,
and other intermediary services; sale. purchase, underwriting and redemprion of bonds issued by
orher state-owned entities; purchase, sale and leases of property and orher assets; and rendering
and receiving of urilitics and other services.

These mransactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s banking business on
terms similar to those thar would have been entered inco with non-state-cwned entities. The
Group's pricing strategy and approval processes for major products and services, such as loans,
deposits and commission income, do not depend on whether or not the customers are state-
awned entitics. Having considered the substance of the relationships. the Group is of the
opinion that none of these transactions are material related party transactions that require
separate disclosure,
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [(CONTINUED)
47  Related party relationships and transactions (contined)

(k) Related party transactions (continued)
(i) Affiliated companies and osther relaved parties

The Group's materizl transactions and balances with China Everbright Group and the above
related parties during the reporting year are summarised as follows:

China
Everbright Affiliared
H companies Orthers Toral

Group
(MNote V' 47(a))

Transactions with related parties
for year ended 31 December

20200
Incerest income - 422 1,242 1,664
Interest expense {127) {339) (444) (916}
Balances with related parties as

at 31 Duecember 2020:
Placements with banks and

ather financial instirurions - 3,200 1,000 4,200
Drerivative financial amers - - 21 21
Financial assers held under

resale agrecments - 385 1.8900 2285
Loans and advances o

Customers = 5523 15,356 20,87
Financial investments 105 400613 2,048 43660
Finaneial assers ar fair value

l:hl'uuﬁ'l Pl‘crﬁt or loss - 8,527 1,982 10, 506

Drebe instruments at faie value

through ather comprehensive

income 15 40 213 358
Equity instruments at fair value

through other comprehensive

income - - 98 98
Financial investments ar

amaortised cost - 32,046 655 32701
Oither assers - 5 2,633 2,638
Toral 105 4,7 20 23,858 73,689
Dreposits from banks and other

fimancial institurions - 17,173 9,768 26,942
Deerivative financial liabilities - - 23 23
Dieposits from customers 4,284 9,815 39,412 53,511
Toral 4,284 26,988 44,204 80476

Significant other sheet items
with related parties as at
31 Drecember 20000

Guarantee granted (MNore) 180 = £ 180
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(b) BRelated party transactions (continued)

IR -|.I d

(id) Affiliared companies and ather velated parvies icontinucd)

The Group’s material transactions and balances with China Everbright Group and the above
relared parties during the reporting year are summarised as follows: (continued)
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China
Everbright Affiliated
Group companics Others Total
(MNote V' 47(al)
Transactions with related partics
for the year ended
31 December 2009:
Inrerest income - 533 S01 1,034
Inerest expense (159) {371} (331) {861)
Balances with related parries as
at 31 December 2019
Placements with banks and
ather financial institutions 08 2,002 2510
Derivative fnancial assers - 12 12
Loans and advances o
CUSTOITIEES - 7:25 9,064 165,315
Finandal investment 17% B.11 08 8,388
Financial assets at fair value
II‘IH‘II.IEI'I pr\nﬁt o loss - b v - 7237
Diebe instruments at Fair value
through other comprehensive
income 178 385 - 563
Equity instrumenis ar fair value
through other comprehensive
income - - 08 a8
Financial investments at
amortised cost - 115,480 256 113,736
Other_asicts - 3.261 - 3.261
Tial 178 132,612 11,432 144,222
Dleposits from banks and other
nancial instittions - 3,147 1.528 40675
Dierivarive financial liabilities - - 11 11
Deposits from customers 4,652 15,60 35,638 535,986
Crther liahilivies - 43 167 B0
Toal 44652 19,536 37344 61,532
Sipnificant other sheer items
with related parties as ar 31
Drecember 2009,
Guarantee granted (Note) 180 - = 180

Nate - A at 3 BEeorwler 2000, the Sand bar pusvunser sblipusion relaig i Clung Brevbrphs Groap't sussstading durern sbiipares
J:'R.u.lfﬁ‘ mmilhas (35 Dlecrmader 2019 RABIS0 million) dur t6 ans .-fn.tr white-amwnd mmmera bk
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [(CONTINUED)
47  Related party relationships and transactions (contined)

{(b) Related party transactions (continued)
(i) Remuneration of divectors, supervisors and senior wmanagement

20210 019

RMB'D00O RMB 000

Remuneration 30,687 30,970
Retirement benefies 1,015 1037
— Basic social pension insurance 486 67

The total compensation packages for senior management of the Group for the year ended 31
Drecember 2020 have not been finalised in aceordance with the regulations of the PRC relevant
authorities. The remuneration not yet accrued is not expected 1o have a significant impact on
the Group’s and the Bank's 2020 financial statements,

(v} Loans and advances to directors, supervisors and afficers

Loans and advances to directors, supervisors and officers of the Group disclosed pursuane o
section 78 of Schedule 11 o the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, with reference o
section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
RMB 000 RME 000
Appregate amount of relevant loans outstanding
as ar the year end B.T08 B.H6T
MSaximum apprepate amount of relevane loans
cutstanding during the year 8,738 2,994
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

48 Statement of Anancial position of the Bank

Maote V 31 December 31 December

2020 2019
Asgers
Cash and deposits with the cenrral bank 360,131 J04,184
Dreposits with banks and orher financial
institurions 40,231 18,648
Preciows merals 9,353 10,826
Placements with banks and other financial
institutions 74,769 G466
Drerivative financial asscts 25,262 13,754
Financial assets held under resale agreements 43,587 0, 7
Loans and advances to customers 2939071 2,642,764
Financial investments 1658026 1,425,223
~ Financial asets ar fair value chrough
PI'D!HI! or loss 299768 207634
- Diebt instruments at Fair value through -
ather comprehensive income 216,324 175,565
~ Equity instruments ar fair value through
ather comprehensive income 870 618
- Financial investments measured a
amorised cost 1,141,064 1041 406
Irvestment in subsidiarics ] 12,983 12,383
Property, plant and equipment 15,6498 14,041
Righr-of-use assers 11,0906 11,599
Goodwill 1,281 1,281
Dreferred rax assers 18,444 15446
Other assers 43,593 34,243
Toral assets 5,233,525 4,041,567
255
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [(CONTINUED)
48  Statement of financial position of the Bank (continued)

31 December 3 December

2024 2019
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Duse o the cencral bank 241,059 214,758
Deposits from banks and orher financial institutions 473006 450,716
Macements from banks and other financial insticutions 59,048 108,045
Drerivarive fimancial liabilities 25,604 13,821
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 10,115 24,542
Dreposits from customers 3.478,730 016,555
Accrued seaff costs 14,874 13,494
Taxes payable 7.708 8,729
Lease liabilities 10,723 10,986
Dcbis securities issued 433,749 306,061
Orher liabilitics 18,608 21558
Total liabilities 4,805,224 4,200,265
Equity
Share capital 54,052 51489
Orher equity instrument 104,062 TO06T
of which: Preference shares 4,906 G, 0016
Perpetual honds 32,993 -
Capital reserve 58,434 53.533
Other comprehensive income 1,509 617
su:rplm reserve 26,245 26,245
General reserve 66,015 38,523
Retained earnmings 133,004 117,828
Total equity 448,301 381,302
Total liabilities and cquity 5:233,515 4,641,567
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¥V MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
49 Sepment reporting

The Group mansges its business by business lines and geopraphical areas. Consistent with the way in
which infermatien is reported internally to the Group's mest senior executive managerment for the purposes
af resource allocarion and performance assessment, the Group defines reporting segments based on the
following operating segmenis:

Corporate banking
This segment represenis the provision of a range of finandal produces and services o corporations and
gowernment agencics. These products and services include corporate loans and advances, rade financing

and deposit taking activitics, agency services, cash management serviees, financial consulting and advisory
services, remittance and settlerment services and guarantee services,

Retail banking

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial products and services to retail customers,
These products and services include personal loans, deposit taking activities, bank card business, personal
wealth management services, remittance services and securities agency services,

Financial market business

This segment covers the Group's financial market business. The financial market business enters into inter-
bank money market ransactions, repurchase oransactions and inter-bank investments. [t also trades in debe
securities, derivatives and foreign currency trading for its own accounts. The financial market business
segment-alse covers customer-driven derivatives and foreign currency trading, as well as management of
the Group's overall liquidity position, including the issuance of debis,

Orthers

These represent equity investments and related income.

Measurement of segment assers and liabilities and measurement of segment income, expenses and resulrs
are based on the Group’s accounting policies,

Imrernal charges and ransfer prices are determined with reference o marker rares and have been reflected
in the performance of each segment. Interest income and expense carned from third parties are referred
to as “exrermal mer interest income”. Mer interest income and expense arising from internal charges and
transfer pricing adjustments are referred o as “internal ner interest incomefexpense”.

Segmient income, expenses, assets and liabilivies include items directly arrriburable toa segment as well
as those thar can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Sepment income, expenses, assets and liabiligies
are determined before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation  process. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred to acquire property and
equipment, intangible assets and other long-term assers.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIMNUED)
e .'éirglm'm reporting (continued

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

2020
Financial
Cotporate Retail market
banking banking bassiness Onlsers Toual
Ohperating income
External net interest income 2059 TG 0,869 - 110,697
Intermal ner interest income!

{expense) 29,615 (15.583) {14.032) = -
Met interest income S1.674 42,186 16,837 - 110,697
Met fee and commision income 6,929 16.331 1063 - 24,313
Met trading gains - - 484 - 484
Dividend income - - I 14 15
Net {losses)gains arising from

investment secufitics (36} 7 X1 7 3203
Met gains on derecognition of

Finamcial assers measured ar

amortised cost - - 5491 - 591
Forcign exchange gains/{losses) 268 15 {27} - 310
Oiher net operating income BB L5 51 128 1,082
Ohperating incoime 54,633 38.678 24,205 164 142,705
Operating expeinsis (16,312) (22,115) (1,676} (168) {40,271)
Credit impainment loses (22.497) (33.617) (619 - (36:733)
Ovher impairment losses {205} 1 i3) - (199)
Losses on investments of joint

VERTUrCs - - - (3) {3)
Prafic before tax 20,619 T i (4) 43,497
Cber segment information
= Depreciation and ameisation 2377 2583 204 - .16
= Capital expenditure 2.675 3.921 264 - 5,804

31 December 2020
Financial
Corporate Retail miarkst
banking banking bussiness Oihiers Taeal
Segment assets 2,135.482 140K, 348 1,80, 7K T03 5347242
Segment liabilities 2.755.106 259,093 129579 3003 4013,091
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
49 Segment reporting (continued)
{a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

2019
Financial
Corporate Rerail market
banking hanking business Others Total
Operating incoe
External per inrerest income 25445 33,890 20,583 - 10K1,918
Intemal net interess income/

{expense) 21,510 {17.459) (4.051) - =
Met interest income 46,955 38,431 16,332 - 101,918
Met fee and commision income s, | WD 16,115 954 - 23,169
Net trading pains - - 385 - 585
Dividend income - - - 42 42
Net (lasseshlgaing arising from

Investment securithes (862) G 3638 i 4,878
Mer gains on desecognition of

financial asses measured ar

ameatized cost - - 12 - 22
Foreign exchange gains 297 75 QLT - 1.339
Other ner operating incone 785 56 67 78 I86
Operating income 53,275 34,683 24765 216 132.939
Operating cxpenses {15,703) {20,465) (2.136) {125} (38.429)
Credin impaiemcent loges {20,562) {28.306) {a7) - {48.4963)
Ocher bmpairment losses 340} {15) - (27} (382}
Profit before tax 16,670 5897 12532 o4 45,163
Other segment information
- Depreciation and amortization 2072 360 32 - 4,664
= Capital expenditune 1,284 1,976 (b4 - 4,448

31 December 2019
Financial
Corporate Retail market
banking Banking Fusiness Others Tutal
Sepment assets 1,938,565 1,276,583 1,499,765 bRl 4,715,844
Segment liabilities 2,405,750 TT9244 1157919 4432 4347355
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

260

e .'Sc-g:m'm reporting (continued

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (contineed)

Reconciliation berween sepment assets. liabilities and roml asers and ol liabilisies:

31 December 31 December

Nowe V 2020 2019
Segment assets 57242 4,715,844
Goodwill 22 1.281 1,281
Deferred rax assers 23 19,587 16,3006
Taoral assers 5.368,110 4. 733431
Segment liabilities 4,913,001 4.347.355
Dividend pavables 36 21 21
Deferred rax liabilities - 1
Total liabilities 4,913,112 4,347,377

(b} Geographical information

The Group operates princpally in China with branches located in main provinees, autonomous
regions and municipalities dircetly under the central government. Also, the Group has set up branches
in Hong Kong, Luxembourg, Secul and Sydney, with subsidiaries located in Beifing, Wuhan city of
Hubei Provinee, Shaoshan city of Hunan Provinee, Huai'an dry of Jiangsu Provinee, Rudjin dry of
Jiangxi Province, Qindao ety of Shandong Provinee, Hong Kong and Luxembourg,

Mon-current assers include Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assers, land use rights and
intangible asers. In presenting of geopraphical information, non-current assets are allocared based on
geographical locations of the underlving assers. Operating income is allocared based on the locations
of the branches which gencrate income, Geographical areas, a5 defined for management reporting
purposes, are as follows:

“Yangree River Dielta™ refers 1o the following arcas serviced by the following branches of the
Bank and Huai'an Ewverbright Bank: Shanghai, Manjing, Hangzhouw, Surhou, Mingbo and
Wi

“Pearl River Delta™ refers to the arcas serviced by the following branches of the Bank:
Gumgﬂ‘mu, Shenzhen, Fuzhou, Xiamen and Haikous

“Bohai Rim” refers 1o the areas serviced by the following branches of the Bank, Everbright
Wealth and Sunshine Consumer: Beijing, Tianjin, Shifiazhvang. Jinan, Qingdao and Yaneai:

“Central” refers to the areas serviced by the following subsidiares and branches of the
Bank, Everbright Financial Leasing. Shaoshan Everbright Bank and Ruijin Everbright Bank:
Lhengehou, Taiyuan, Changsha, Wuban, Hefel and Nanchang:

“Western™ refers 1o the arcas serviced by the following branehes of the Bank: Xi'an, Chengdu,

Chongging, Kunming, Nanning, Hohher, Urumchi. Guiyang, Lanzhou, Xining, Yinchuan and
Lhasa;
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
49 Segment reporting (continued)

(b) Geographical information (continucd)

= "Momheastern” refers 1o the areas serviced by the following branches of the Bank: Heilongjiang,
Changchun, Shenyang and Dalian;

- "Owerseas” refers 1o the areas serviced by the following subsidiaries and branches of the Bank:
Hong Kong, Seoul, Luxembourg, Sydney; and

—  “Head Office” refers to the head office of the Bank.

Operating Income
Yomgre Pearl Norh Head
Raver Defra River Dela - Bobui Rim Cenpd  Western e Office Oweriems Towd
2020 17558 18917 pERE M85 17214 42 21384 48 ML
e 13837 18419 e nm 15012 fi638 11908 158 B

Non-current Adeet (Notelil)

Yague P Norh  Head
River Dielta Riwer Delta Bobai Bim Centml — Wertern casem Office  Crerseas Toul
H Decensher
04 3813 1968 340 1LE37 30m 1,393 10395 9 BT
31 Drecemher
e jra M4 £ 9 1563 1843 1,559 Rk ] 3060
M

(i} Tactusling prapery, plawr awd squigmews, ripht-afuer snty, el oo amd Gosd o miphi
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

262

50 Risk Management

The Group's primary risk management objectives are to maximise value for cquity holders while mainraining
risk within scceprable parameters, optimising capital allocation and satisfying the requirements of the
regulatory authorities, the Group’s depositors and other stakeholders for the Group's prudent and siable
development.

The Group has exposure to the fallowing risks from its use of financial instruments: credic risk. marker
risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.

This note presents information about the Grouwp's exposure o each of the above risks and their sources,
and the Group's objectives, policics and procedures for measuring and managing these risks,

The Group's risk management policics were established o identify and analyse the risks o which the
Group is cxpmd. to set appropriate risk limirs, and o design relevant internal control policies and systems
for monitoring risks and adhering to risk limits. Risk management policies and relevant internal control
systems -are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The
Internal Awdit Department of the Group undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of the compliance
of internal control implementation with risk management policies.

(a) Credit risk

Credin risk represents the posential boss that may arise from the failure of a debtor or counterparty
ta mect i contraciial obligation or commirment to the Group. [r arises primarily from credic and
bond investment portfolios and guarantees granted.

Credit busivess

The board of directors is responsible for serring the Group's risk management strategy and the
overall risk rolerance level. The bhoard alto monitors the Group's risk management processs and
regularly assesses the Groups risk position and risk management strategies. The board gives
advice on internal controls relaring o risk mamagement. Senior management is responsible for the
implementation of the development smmacegy, risk strategy and risk: management policies ser by the
board of directors. Senior management is responsible for the improvement of the sk management
system and establishment of risk management policies and rules. Senior management is responsible
for establishment of procedures and standards o identify, measure, evaluare, meniter and conrol
credit risks. And senior management is responsible for the management of all types of risks and
ensure that the business activities of the Bank are consistent with the risk strategy, risk appetite and
risk policies adopted by the board of directors.
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V' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIMUED) i
50 Risk Management (continued)
{a) Credit risk (continued)
Credie business (continucd)

The business lines of the Group are directly responsible for the management of eredit risk. The
Risk Management Department is responsible for the developmene of risk management policies and
procedures, and the monitoring and management of eredic risks. The Internal Audic Depariment
is responsible for auditing the performance of duties of busines lines and the Risk Management
Department, specifically as follows:

- The Corporate Banking Department, Investment Banking Department, Inclusive Finance
Deparment. Credir Card Cenrre and Rerail and Wealth Managemene Depanment and other
business lines carry our corporare and rerail business in accordance with the. risk management
policics and procedures of the Group., The business lines are dircctly responsible for the
management of credit risk, and they are the first line of defence of internal control. The
business lines independently control the customer relationship and the whole process of specific
business in its duration, and they are firstly responsible for the compliance and security of the
business.

~  The main responsible departments for credit risk management are the Risk Management
Department, Credit Approval Department, Risk Monitoring Department, and Special Assets
Management Department. They are the second line of defence of the internal contral in
credit risk management, and they are responsible for the overall supervision of credit dsk
management, The functional departments of credic risk management determine their functional
positioning in accordance with the basie procedures of “Policy and rechnology — Investigation
and approval = During and post-lending monitoring = Collection and Resalution”,

- The Internal Audit Department is the third line of defence of credin risk management, and
undertakes the responsibility of supervision and performance evaluarion.

The Group continuously improves the internal control mechanism and sorengthens the management
of the credit business. The Group has established comprehensive assessment and inquiry mechanisms,
assigning the credit management accountability to the relevant deparrments and individuals,

For corporate businesses, the Group has ostablished industry-specific limits for credit and investment
approval. [t has pur in place dynamic monitoring mechanism, with regular reporting of credic
exposures to the board. The Group's credit risk management covers key operational phases, including
pre-lending evaluations, credit approval. loan payment and post-lending monitoring, Wich respect to
pre<lending evaluations, the Group asescs customer credit ratings and performs integrated analysis on
the risk and return of the loan. In the credit approval phase, the Group has established standardized
system and procedures for credit evaluation and approval in accordance with the principle of separation
of duties for approval and lending as well as the hicrarchical approval principle. All credit applications
are approved by designated eredit officers. In the loan payment phase, an independent responsible
department has been established o manage and control the payment of the loan, ensuring that the
payment confurms with the intended use of the loan approved. During the post-lending moniwring,
the Group continually menitors outstanding loans and other eredit related businesies. Any adverse
events thar may significantly affect a borrower’s repayment ability are reported immediately, and
acrions are aken to mirigare the risks,
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
50 Risle Management (continued)

{a) Credit risk (continued)
Credit business (continued)

For personal credit operation business, the Growp implemented control proceses of “separation
of review and approval, separation of approval and lending, separation of approval and morgage
registration, and separation of loan management and archival keeping” to effectively control the
operational risk. During the pre-loan process, client managers are required 1o asess the income
level, eredit history, and repayment ability of the applicant o srrengrhen the credit evaluarion of the
applicant. During the review and approval process, the client managers forward the application and
their recommendations w the [oan-approval deparmments for further approval, and a srandardized
review and approval pelicies and process in accordance with the principle of “separation of review and
approval” and “hicrarchical approval” have been established for this process. The Grouwp monitors
borrowers” repayment ability, the smms of collateral and any changes o their value during the post-
lending phase. Once a loan becomes overdue, the Group stares the recovery process in accordance
with its standardized loan recovery procedures.

The Group adepts a loan risk dasification approach to manage its loan portfolio risk. Loans are
gcnl:f:"}' classified as normal, special mention, substandard, doubrful and loss according to their
levels of risk. Substandard, doubtful and loss loans are considered to be impaired loans and advances.
The Group measures and manages the quality of the eredit assets of the Growp in accerdance with
the Guidelines of the Risk Clasification of Loans,

The core definitions of the five categories of loans and advances are ser our below:

Mormal: Borrowers can honour the terms of their loans. There is no reason 1o
doubr their ability to repay principal and interest in full on a dmely
s,

Special mention: Baorrowers are currendy able o service their loans and inrerest, although

repayment may be adversely affecred by specific factors.

Subsrandard: Borrowers” ability to service their loans is in question and they cannot
rely entirely on normal business revenues to repay principal and inrerest.
Losses may ensue even when collateral or guarantees are invoked.

Doubaful; Borrowers cannot repay principal and ingerest in full and significant
losses will need to be recognised even when collateral or guarantees are
invoked.

Loss: Principal and interest of loans cannot be recovered or only a small

portion of them can be recovered after aking all possible measures or
resorting to all necessary legal procedures,
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L
V' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIMUED) i
50 Risk Management (continued)
{a) Credit risk (continued)
Creaie busfuess (continued)

The Bank implemented a customer credit rating system based on the PD model. The PD model wuses
the principle of logistic regression 1o predicr the PD for eustomers in the coming year. According 10
the caleulated PD value, the risk rating of the customer is obrained through the relevant mapping
relationship rable, The Group conducts recheck and optimization resting of the mode according re
the customer’s acmual defaulr each year o berrer identify the crediv risk.

The customer credic ratings in the internal model are based on four caregories of A, B. Cand D
which are further classified inro owenry four grades as AAA+. AAA, AAA-, AA+ AAL AA- As AL A-,
BBEB+. BBB, BBB-, BB+, BE, BB-, B+. B, B-. CCC+, CCC, CCC-, CC, C and D. Credic grading
D equates to defaulted customers while the others are assigned to performing customers.

Management periodically reviews various clements of the Group's credie risk management process, in
the context of loan portfolio growth, the changing mix and concentration of assets, and the evalving
risk profile of the credic portfolio. From time to time, in this regard, refinements are made o the
Group’s eredit risk management processes to maost effectively manage the effects of these changes on
the Group's credit risk. These refinements include, among other things, adjustments to portfolio level
contrels, such as revisions to lists of approved borrowens, industry limits and underwriting critena,
Where circumstances related 1o specific loans or a group of loans increase the Bank’s credit risk,
actions are taken, to the extent possible, to strengthen the Group's security position,

Freasury busiress

The Group implemented differentiated risk access standards of investments, and ensured the credic
risk exposure of financial market business to be controlled within a reasonable range to mect
the Group’s risk preference. At the same time, the Group has set credit risk limies for different
counterpartics, taking into consideration factors including industries, single borrowers and rarings.
Credit fsk exposure i losely monitored on a systematie and real-time basis, and eredic limits are
revicwed and revised regularly.
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
50 Risle Management (continued)

{a) Credit risk {continued)
Credit risk measurement

Megiwrement of ECL

The ECL is a weighted average of eredir loses on financial instruments weighted ar the probability
of defaulr. Credirt loss is the differcnce berween all receivable contractual cash flows according 1o the
contract and all cash flows expected 10 be received by the Grouwp discounted o present value at the
original effective interest rare, e, the present value of all cash shorefalls,

According o the changes of credir risk of financial instruments since the initial recognition, the
Croup caloulates the ECL by three stages:

*  Srage 1: The financial instruments without significant increases in credit risk after initial
recognitien are included in Stage 1 to caleulace their impairment allowance at an amount
equivalent to the ECL of the finandial instrument for the next 12 months;

*+  Stage 2: Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credic risk sinee inieial
recognition but have no objective evidence of impairment are included in Staq.;a.' 2, with their
impairment allowance measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the
finansial instruments;

*  Stage 3: Financial assers with objective evidence of impairment at the end of the reporting year
are included in Seage 3, with their impairment allowange measured ar the amount equivalent
te the ECL Ffor the lifetime of the financial instraments.

For the previous aceounting year, the impairment allowance was measured ar the amount equivalent
ta the ECL aver the entire lifetime of the financial insrrument. However, at the end of the reporting
period, if the financial instrument no longer belongs to rhe siouation of there being a significant
increase in credic risk since initial recognition, the Group measures the impairment allowance of the
financial instruments ar the end of the reporting period according to the ECL in the next 12 monrhs.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk Management (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)
Credie risk measurement (continued)

Mesrentent off ECL {continucd)

For purchased or originated eredit-impatred financial asers, the Group only recognises the liferime
eumulative change in ECL afrer initial recognition ar the end of the reporting period i impaicment
allowance. At the end of the each reporting period, the Group recognises the amount of the changes
in ECL as an impairment loss or gain in profit or loss,

The Group shall measure ECL of a finandal instrument in a way dhar reflecrs:

*  An wnbizsed and probabiliy-weighted amount thar is derermined by evaluating 3 range of

possible outcomes;
*  The time value of monecy;

*  Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or offort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,

When measuring ECL, an entity need not necessarnily identify every possible scenario, However, the
Group shall consider the risk or probability that a credit loss occurs by reflecting the possibiliey thae
a credit loss occurs and the possibility that no credit loss occurs, even if the posibility of a credit
loss vecurring is very low,

The Group conducted an assessment of ECL according 1o forward-looking information and used
complex maedels and asumprions in i expected measurement of credic losses. These models and
assumprions relate to the funore macroeconomic conditions and borrower's eredinworthiness (e,
the likelihood of defaulr by oustomers and the corresponding losses). The Group adoprs judgement,
assumptions and estimation techniques in order o measure ECL according wo the requirements of
accounting standards such as:

*  Crireria for judging significant increases in credic risk

* Definition of credit-impaired financial assee

*  Parameters for measuring ECL

*  Forward-looking information

*  Management overlay

. Maodification of contract cash flows
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
50 Risle Management (continued)

{a) Credit risk {continued)
Credit risk meassurement (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

Criteria for judging significant increases in eredin risk

The Group assesses whether or nor the eredit risk of the relevanr financial insrruments has increased
significantly since the initial recognition at the end of each reporing period. While derermining
whether the eredir risk has significantly increased since inirial recogniton or not, the Group rakes into
account the reasomable and substantiated information thar is accessible withour exerting unnecessary
cost or effory, including qualitative and quandtative analysis based on the hismorical dara of the
Croup and external credir risk rating. Based on the single finandial instrument or the combination of
financial instruments with similar characreristics of credin risk, the Group compares the risk of defaulc
of financial instruments at the end of the reporting period with that en the initial recognition dare
in order o figure out the changes of default risk in the expecred lifetime of financial instruments.

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk
when one or more of the following quanticative, qualitative or backstop criteria have been mez

Cluantitative criteria

. At the reporting date, the decrease in customer rating is considered significant, comparing with
the one at initial recognition

Chualitative eriteria

= Significant adverse change in debrors” operation or financial srarus

* B classified into Special Mention category within five-tier loan classificarion
Backstop criteria

*  The debtor’s contracrual paymenes {including principal and interest) are more than 30 days
past due

The Group continued to make judgments based on substantive risk assessment and comprehensively
considered the operations and repayment capacity of borrowers, as well as any changes to the impact of
COVID-12 an these borrowers, and to assess whether the credit risk of relevant finandal instruments
had increased significantly since initial recognition. For borrowers whe applied for temporary deferral
of principal repayment and interest payment, deferred repayment and other eredit suppors measures
in the wake of COVID-19, the Group did not consider these support measures as triggers of a
significant increase in credie risk.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk Management (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Credir risk measurentent (continued)

Mesrentent of ECL {continucd)

Criteria for judging significant increases in eredic risk

The srandard adopred by the Group o determine whether a credit impairment occurs under [FRS 9
is consistent with the internal credin risk managerent objectives of the relevant finandal instrument,
raking inte account quantitative and qualitative eritesia. When the Group assesses whether the eredic
impairment of debtor occurred, the following factors are mainly considered:

*  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the deboor;

. Diehtors are in breach of contrace, such as defaultng on incerest or becoming overdue on
interest or principal payments overdue;

] The creditor of the debtor, for cconomic or contractual reasons relating to the debtor’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the debtor a concession that the creditor would not otherwise
consider;

* It is becoming probable thae the debeor will enter bankrupicy or other financial restructuning

*  The purchase or orgination of a financal aser at a deep discount thar reflects the incurred
credic losses

= The debror leaves any of the principal, advances. interest or investments in corporate bonds of
the Group overdue for more than 90 days.

The credic impairment on a financial asser may be caused by the combined cffect of multiple events
and may not be necessarily due ro a single event.

Parameters of ECL measurement

According to whether there is a significant increase in credir risk and whether there is an impairment
of asscts, the Group measures the impairment loss for different assers with ECL of 12 months or
the entire lifetime respectively. The key measuring parameters of ECL include probability of defaule
(PD). loss given defaule (LGD) and exposure at defaclt (EAD). Based on the current New Basel
Capital Accord used in risk management and the requirements of [FRS 9, the Group takes into
account the quantitative analysis of historical statistics (such as ratings of counterparties, manners of
guarantees and types of collateral, repayments.} and forward-locking information in order to establish
the model of PD, LGD and EAD.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risle Management (continued)
{a) Credit risk {continued)
Credit risk measuresnent (continued)

Megiwrement of ECL (contimued)
Paramerers of ECL measurement {continued)
Relative definitions are listed as follows:

-

PD} refers wo the possibility thar the debror will not be able m fulfil it obligations of repayment
over the next 12 months or throughour the entire remaining lifetime. The Groups PD s
adjusted based on the resuls of the Internal Raring-Based Approach under che New Basel Capiral
Accord, taking ineo account the forward-leoking information and deducting the prudenal
adjustment o reflect the debror’s poine-in-time (PIT) PD under the current macroeconomic
environment.

LGD refers to the Group's expectation of the cxtent of the loss resulting from the default
exposure. Depending on the type of counterparty, the difference of eredit products, and the
type of collateral, the LGD varies. The LGD is the percentage of loss of risk cxposure after the
time of default, based on historical statistics, the loss rate may be different in various economic
COVIFOMMIENES,

EAD is the amount that the Group should be reimbursed at the time of the default in the
next 12 months or throughout the entire remaining lifetime.

Forward-looking information

The assessment of a significant increase in crediv risk and the caleulation of ECL baoth invalve
forward-looking information, Through the analysis of historical data, the Group identifies the key
economic indicators thar affeer the eredic risk and ECL of various business types, such as GDP,
CPl, investment in property, plant and equipment.

The impact of these economic indicators on the PD and the LGD varies according o different types
of business. The Group combined stadstic model and experts’ judgement in this process, according
to the result of model and experts” judgement, the Group predicts these economic indicators on a
quarterly basis and derermines the impact of these cconomic indicators on the PR and the LGD
by conducting regression analysis,
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
Credie risk measurement (continued)

Metsurenent of ECL (continued)

Forward -looking information (continued}

In 2020, the key assumptions the Group has vaken include the GDP growsh rate, the CPI growth
rate, the investment in property, plant and equipment growth rate.

*  The GDP growth rate: the predicred value under the base sconomic scenario during the year
of 2021 is 7.20%, the opimistic and pessimistic scenarios will flucouare up and down 2.29
pet. on the basis of the predicred value in baseline scenario:

*  The CPI growth rawe: the predicted value under the base economic scenario during the year of
2021 is 3.25%, the oprimistic and pessimistic scenarios will fluctuate up and down 1.94 per
on the basis of the predicred valuc in bascline scenario;

*  The investment in property, plant and equipment growth rate: the predicied value under
the base cconomic seenaric during the year of 2021 is 4.00%, the optimistic and pessimistic
scenarios will fluctuate up and doewn 8.58 per on the basis of the predicted value in baseline
SCEnArio;

In addicien ro providing a baseline economic scenario, the Group combines statistic model with
experts’ judgement o determine the weight of the other possible scenarios. The Group measures
the welghted average ECL of 12 months (Stage 1) or life time (Stage 2 and Seage 3). The weighted
wverage eredit loss above is caleulated by muldplying the ECL for each seenario by the weighe
of the corresponding scenario. The Group adjusted the weight of the pessimistic scemarios, wirh
comprehensive eonsideration of the impacy of the COVID-19 epidemic and other factors on the
ceomomic development trend.

The Group conducts sensitiviy amalysis on the main economic indicators: used in forward Jooking
informarion, When the predicted wvalue of the main economic indicarors changes by 1094, dhe

différence berween the hypothetical expecred credit los and the currenr expecred ecredic boss
measturement docs not exceed 5%,

P |
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¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
50 Risle Management (continued)

{a) Credit risk {continued)
Credit visk measuresnent (continued)

Megigrement of ECL (contimued)

Management overlay

The business failure or defaule has not appeared given the deferral of loan payments offered 1o
borrowers, and therefore, the porential risks arising from the COVID-19 epidemic may not yer be
fully caprured by the ECL model. The ECL allowance would reflecr the ECL through management
oveelays by adjusting parameters on a disrupred portfolio basis,

Modificarion of conrracrual cash flows

A medification or re-negotiation of a conmact berween the Group and a counterpary may result
in a change ro the contracmal cash fows withour resulring in the de-recognition of the financial
assers. duch restructuring activities include exvended payment term arrangements, repayment schedule
modifications and changes to the interest scetlement method. The risk of default of such asscts after
madification is assessed at the reporting date and compared with the risk under the original terms at
initial recognition, when the modification is not substantial and so docs not result in de-recognition
of the original asset and the book value of the financial asset is recaleulated and the related gain
or loss is included in current profit or loss, The recaleulated book value of the financial asset is
determined based on the present value of the contractual cash flows following the renegotiation or
madification, as caleulated using the original cffective interest rate of the financial asser.

The Group menitors the subsequent performance of modified assets. The Group may determine
thar the eredit risk has dgnificantly improved after restructuring, so that the assers are moved from

Stage 3 or Stage 2 o Srage | and the impairment allowance i3 measured at an amount equal w the
12-months ECL instead of the liferime ECL.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Riskk Management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
(il Maxivesnn credit ride exposure

The maximum exposure to credit risk i represented by the net carrying amount of each type
of financial assets, including derivarive financial instruments. The maximum exposure 1o eredie
risk in respeer of the starement of financial position items as at the end of the reporting period
is dischosed in Nate V' 53(a).

: 31 December 2020
Suge Swgr 1 Stape 3 bt Toul

Assets
Cash and depredins with the comeal hank 360,287 - B - 05T
Dhepaicy wich banks and ather fzancid

SN 650 = = = 46050
Placements with banks and other financial

ininsgns 5,140 - 150 - 6,550
Financia] assers held under resale agreemens 43,582 - - - 43391
Leans and advanies o cotomes LALLAM 105,109 M40 - 1M
Finance kease recevables 06,564 1970 4 - 106,728
Financia] imvestments 1352307 4876 .45 5,783 1670415
Oithers (Not) 33530 - - 1504 38794
Tetal {314,143 113,835 31513 BIWT 5291560

31 Dhecember 2019
Suagr | Stagr 1 Stage 3 NiA Toul

Assety
Cash and deposits with she comtral bank 364,340 - - - 264340
Deposits with hanks and other faneisd

MK 33 = = . 1Ky
Placements with hanks snd caher finascial

BN 0,000 70 - - BT
Financial assets held under rele agrecments B335 - - - 633
Leans and advances 1o cusomens 1529543 3474 17519 - 1644006
Finance kexe recesvablis R8I0 1A69 15 - 878
Finuncial mvoimens 121530 1375 4,70 2130 1433546
Oithess (Noes)h 29,244 - - 13245 4307
Teal 4,317,536 WL LT T 4667 305

Nare: Cinlors compriir prociois wwetaly (ar fair pitar pervian), devivatiee fnencidl auets and duen from svalh ostgroiens funiens,
semterren revrinable wasd seher reeriealdler peowralead i et s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)

50 Risle Management (continued)

{a) Credit risk (continued)
(7} Creedit rating

The distribution aceording to the credit quality of amounts due from banks and pen-bank
financial instirurions (including deposits with banks and other financial instnitions, placements
with banks and other finaneial instinutions, and financial asers held under resale agreements
for which counterparties are banks and non-bank financial instimations) is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2020 019
Frpiived
Carrying amount (i) F30
Prowision for impairment losses {516) {3665)
Subroral 1560 -
Overdue but not imparred
= prade B o BBB - 70
Subrotal - 270
Neither overdue nor impaired
— grade A o AAA 151,764 73,880
— grade B to BBB 1,123 5,879
— unrated (Note) 5,904 18,434
Subtotal 158,791 98,193
Total 158.5941 98403

Nare:  Sawdy erprvsrar plaremran wint sader foaanial dsmmnes sad debr i deld seder. reeale srormean einh ecber sl

ARATTAN A
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk f\{.l.nagl.'ﬂ'l.l:llnl continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
{#)  Credit rating (continued)

The Group adopts a eredit rating approach in managing the credit msk of the debr securities
portfolio. Debe securities are rared with reference o Bloombery Composite, or the major raring
apencics where the issuers of the securities are located. The carrving amounes of debr securities
investents analysed by the rating agency designations as ar the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

31 Decembier 31 December

2020 2019
Tenpaived
Carrving amount 1,904 1,662
Provision for impairment losses {1.17%) {1.038)
Subrotal 725 G624
Neither pverdue nor fompaived
Blovmberg Compasite
= grade AAA 24,208 1,033
- grade AA- 1o Al 8,296 B0
- grade A- 1o A+ 31,773 15,497
_=grade lower than A- 23,035 30,000
Subtoral 87,312 57341
Other agency ratings
~ grade AAA 955,020 40453
- grade AA- to Ads 105,717 63,240
- gm.dc A= to A4 4,075 Sl
- prade lower than A- 2,508 2119
- unrated 35,660 120,451
Suboral 1.122 986 926,811
Total 1.211.023 GR4.TTE
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [(CONTINUED)
50 Risle Management (continued)
(k) Markert risk

Marker risk is the risk of loss, in respect of the Group’s acrivities, arising from adverse movements
in marker rares including inrerest rates, foreipn exchange rates, commodity prices, stock prices and
ather prices.

The board of direcrors is ultimately responsible for monitoring the Group’s marker risk to ensure
that the Group has cfﬁ:crivt]y identified, measured, monitored and conmrolled all rypes of marker risk.
The Risk Management Committee monitors the marker risk managemene process within the scope
authorised by the board of dirccrors, which include review and approval of marker risk management
strategies, policies and procedures as well as the market risk tolerance level recommended by senior
management. The Group is primarily exposed o market risk in its treasury business. The Financial
Market Department is responsible for the Group's investments and proprictary trading business,
The Assets and Liabiliey Management Department is responsible for monitoring and managing
the interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk on a daily basis under the banking book. The Risk
Management Department is responsible for formulating the marker risk management policies and
procedures, as well as identifying, measuring and monitorng the Group's market risk.

The Group classified the rransactions as the banking book rransactions and rrading book ransactions.
The identification, measurenment, monitoring and controls over the relevant market risks are based on
the nature and characreristies of these books, The rading book rransserions consist of the Group's
investments which are acquired of ineurred primarily for the purpese of selling in the near term, or
for the purpose of short-term profie taking. The banking book transsctions represent non-trading
businesses., Sensitiviry analysis, seenario analysis and foreign currency gap analysis are the main rools
emploved by the Group o measure and monitor the marker risk in i reading book ransacrions.
Sensitivity gap analysis, effective duration analysis and scenario simulation analysis are the main wols
used by rthe Group o measure and monitor the marker risk of its non-trading businesses,

Sensitivity analysis is a technique which assesses the sensitivity of the Group's overall risk profile and
its risk profile with reference to the interest rate risks for different maturides.

Scemario analysis is 2 multi-factor analysis method which assesses the impact of multiple factors
interacting simultaneously, raking into consideration the probabilities of various scenarios.

Foreign currency gap analysis is a technique which estimates the impact of forcign exchange rate
movements on the Group's current profit or loss. The foreign currency gap mainly arises from the
currency mismatch in the Group’s onfoff-balance sheet items.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk Management (continued)
(b} Marker risk (continued)

Semsitiviry gap analysis is a rechnique which estimates the impact of interest rare movements on
the Group's cusrent profic or loss. Ir is used 1o work our the gap berween future cash inflows and
ourtflows by caregorising cach of the Group's interest-bearing assets and inrerest-raking liabilities into
difterent periods based on repricing dates.

Scenario simulation amalysis 15 an important technique for assessing interest rare risk. o simulares
and calculares the changes in net interest income (NI} and economic value (EVE) indicarors in
the following year through multiple conventional scenarios and siress scenarios, including interest
rate standard shocks, yield curve shifts and shape changes. historical extreme interest rate changes,
customers’ execution of embedded options for deposits and loans, ete.The Bank regularly re-examines
important customer behavior models such as loan prepayment and deposits from carly withdrawals
wied in scenano amulation analysis,

Effective duration analysis is a technique which estimares the impact of interest rate movements
by piving 3 weight to each period’s exposure according to its sensitivity, caleulating the weighted
exposure, and summarising all periods” weighted exposures to estimate the non-linear impast of a
change in interest rates on the Group's economic value.

Tuterest rave risk

The Group is primarily exposed 1o interest rate rigk arising from gap risk, basis risk and mrading interest
rae risk. The Assers and Liability Management Department and Risk Management Department are
responsible for identifying, measuring and monitoring. In rerms of measuring and monitoring risks,
the Group regularly evaluares the interest mate sensitvity repricing gap of cach period and the impact
of interest rate changes on the Group's ner interest income and economic value. The main purpose
of interest rate risk management is o reduce the porential negative impact of interest rare ehanges
on net interest income and economic value,

Ceap risk

Gap risk, which is also known as “mamrity mismarch risk”, is the most common form of interest
rate risk. It is caused by the differenices in timing berween the maruriries {related o fixed inrerest
rate instruments) or repricing {related o floatdng interest rare instrumenes) of assers, liabilities and
off-balance sheer items. The mismatch of the repricing timing causes the Group’s income or its
inherent economic value to vary with the movement in interest rates,

Basis ik

Basis risk, is caused by interest raes on different pricing basis on the on-and off- balance sheet
businiess of bank books., The risk could be different because the basis risk changes no matter the
term is the same or similar,

Trading interest vate risk

Trading interest rate risk mainly anises from the trewury’s investment porefolios. Interest rate risk
is monitored wsing the offective duration analysis method. The Group employs basis point value
methads to measre its intercst rate sensitiviry, which is expressed a5 changes in the fair value of s
investment portfolios given a 1 basis poine {(0.01%) movement in the interest rares.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risle Management (continued)

(k) Market risk (continued)
Tutevest rate risk (continued)

(i} The following rables indicate the effective interest rates for the respective periods. and the
expected next repricing dates {or marurity dates whichever are earlier) for the asses and
liabiliries of the Graup as ar the end of the year:

31 December 2020
Berween
three  Bemween
Edfixtive Neg-  lemdhon  moos  opeye
et intesise three and and  Mote than
rane () Towl  beaisz  monds  oneyar  fveyean  five o
Assets
Cah and depaits with the
cemral buank 144 307 16319 H3368 - - -
Diepraits with hasky and pcher _
firancial inscrution: 1413% 450054 59 45301 (] = -
Phicements wish hanks and
other fmancid imtitioa: 1.81% 9,290 £ 55,560 11,305 2137 -
Financial aswts beld under
resale agreements 190% 43551 3 43,589 - - -
Louns and advances s
Customens bR T L4 R R M4 2T SN 67,246 N2
Finance lease receivables Sk 00TIE 1381 2L3T75 31,532 19,7041 800
Financial invesments 400%  1ET0AIS B0 M52 0993 68D 30T
Others - IBMe B - - - 355
Total aueis 450%  SIERII0 MTI8E RM0XIM  maTTU3 TIOAES 410,796
Lubiic
D ta the central bank 3% ML 1358 i 18448 = 5
Drpxﬁs from hanks and
other fimancial institation: LI dE93ds 184 D668 I70AR = =
PMacements from banks and
ather fnancta institions 10 1603T 75 4] 453 B951 - -
Financial aswets sald under
repurchase agpeements 190 1482 [ [ 1 3308 iy -
Depesits fromn cumtamers 130  ZAR0GET 0315 2008963 61,854 859,601 u
Delst sexmtities ised % g .S P . 5.1 TH 45,085
Chbers S 1 129 10214 34625 L] -
Total lizblitics 230%  4SNL112  MGAES  DSEITI0  LJUAATR  BALOW 46700
Asetliability gap 1M 4WME NO3IA S4B (4SE0AT) (91B05)  Bed0er
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Riskk Management (continued)

(b) Marker risk (continued)
Iuterest vate risde (continued)

(i} The following tables indicate the effective interest rates for the respective periods, and the
expected next repricing dates (or maturity dates whichever are carlier) for the asers and
liabilities of the Group as ar the end of the vear (comtinued):

31 December 2019
Berween
e Berwern:
Effective Mon- Lew thas paceth ane vear
inters inzerent thrie wd and Mo thun
niee %) Teal bewing  momhs  oneyer  five s five pen

Assets
Cash and deposin with the

cenial hask 14604 364,340 15487 3RS - - -
Deporics with hanks and other

finacial inmications LFi% 31,358 fi .35 1993 = -
Placements with hanks and

ceher finascial insticotions 1375 60,270 3 41,793 16,775 489 -
Financial amees held under

resale agrecments 150% 835 K BAIT = = =
Leoans and advances m

cumamers S5 LA4 136 HAm 101500 53155 EAET EAL
Finance kease receieablies 3T 83,723 951 6,524 b, i 1764
Financial imvestments 426w 1433546 b7 851 234,363 W2 WA 30T
(hiess - 119,223 116,004 - - - B ]
Testal assets 4760 4733451 ) I e L TRLIE  RAOMR MOTH
Liahilities
Dhoe 1othe centrad bamk 3% 114,838 3358 7K 142480 - -
Dicpanits from hanks and

aeher financial institutions LN 44300 2013 330,180 102,27 = =
Placements from hanks and

ceher financial institutions [ 166,225 111 9873 bh372 - -
Financtal amets sobd ender

fepurc e dgreements LI% 15,603 14 20421 5,163 - -
Dhcpaits finn. ctomsers 1IR% 3007888 3570 LBRTIRE MSIS 0 4TOTOR 12
Dbt securities ioued 3550 371,904 3,158 142,221 174052 578 46,683
Ohthess - 46,599 ThA14 12,755 4193 UM T
Total liahikities 15N 434730 11,755 J4R7633 LALLM 4ToMS 46,01
Asset-liabilisy gap Lk 06,054 08 466 L3h6RT (4506460 265N R

= The affective fmnvest ware repraemss il rane of imrnr osss'agpemie 19 i dverage daterardeaning aneniabiline.
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MNotes to the Consolidared Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2020
{Expressed in millions of Benminbi, nnles otherwie sared)

¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
50 Risle Management (continued)

(k) Market risk (continued)
Tutevest rate risk (continued)

(i Musevest nave senifrivity analyis

The Group uses sensitivity analysis o measure the impact of changes in interest rate on the
Groups net profic or los and equity. As ar 31 December 2020, asuming other variables
remain unchanged, an increase in the estimared interest rate of one hundred basis poines will
cawse the Group's ner profic o increase by RMB9G million (31 December 2019 decrease by
RMEB96Y million). and equity 1o decrease by RMB5.603 million (31 December 20019 decrease
by RMB5,039 million); a decrease in the estimared interest rate of ane hundred basis points
will cause the Group's net profit to increase by RMB125 million (31 December 20092 increase
by RMBL1LO17 million). and equity to increase by RMB6,189 million (31 December 2004:
increase by RMBS,316 million).

The sensitivity analysis above is based on a static interest rate risk profile of the Group’s asscts
and liahilities, This amalysis measures only the impact of changes in interest rates within one
year, showing how annualised net profit or loss and equity would have been affecied by the
repricing of the Group's assets and liabilities within the one-year period, The sensitivity analysis
is based on the following asumptions:

~  Interest rate movements at the end of the reporting period apply 1o all derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments of the Group:

—  An interest rate movement of one hundred basis poines is based on the asemption of
ingerest rate movement over the mext 12 months:

~  There is a parallel shift in the yvield curve with the changes in interest rates:
= There are no other changes 1o the porfolio of asser and liabiling
= Onher vaniables {including exchange rates) remain unchanged: and

—  The analysis does not take into account the effect of risk management measwres taken by
MANage ment.

Duge to the adoption of the aforementioned assumptions, the actual changes in the Group’s net
profit or loss and equity caused by an increase or decrease in interest rates might vary from
the estimated results of this sensitivity analysis.
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The Growp's foreign currency risk mainly arises from the forcign currency portfolio within the
treasury’s proprictary investments, and other foreign currency exposures. The Group manages foreign
eurrency risk by spot and forward foreign exchanpe transactions, swap teansactions and matching it
foreign currency denominared assets with corresponding liabiliries in the same currencies.

The Group’s currency exposures as at the end of the year are as follows:

31 Deconsher 2000
US Daollars Others Total
(RME (RMB {RMB
RMB Equivalenth Equivalent) Equivalent)
Assers
Cashy and deposins with the central bank 350,913 7130 1244 360,287
Dhepaosins with banks and other financial
institurions 24,342 15,547 &, 171 4,05
Macements with banks and other financial
institutions 24,164 37239 7882 i, 2K}
Financial assets held under resale agreements 43,587 | 4 43,502
Loans and advancs 1o customers LT83,150 10 459 57826 2042435
Financial lease receivables 99,987 a01 - 104,788
Financial investments 1,571,628 Th, 004 2583 1670415
(Mhers 128376 5527 1341 135, 2dd
Total assets 5,026,352 243708 98050 5. 368,110
Dhue to che central bank 241,010 - - 241,110
Dreposits from banks and other financial
institutions 467, HH 1,162 275 4,345
Macements from hanks and other fnancial
institutions 73,335 69,520 19,224 161,874
Finan<ial assets sold under repurchase
agreemments 7.977 2603 3602 14,182
Drepasits from customers 3,299,893 144,010 36,764 F.A80,667
Drebe securities issued 391,608 43,604 5508 4l B
(hhers G325 2009 3735 105,055
Total liabilities 4,581,216 262,708 649,183 4,913,112
Net position 445,136 {19,000 8861 454,508
Ofi-halance shear credic commitments 1,420,403 42432 13,711 1.476,540
Drerivarive financial instruments {Nore) 7129 19,193 (255080 4§13
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk management (continued)

(k) Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency visk (continued)
The Group's currency exposures as at the end of the year are as follows [comtinued):

31 Degember 2019

115 Diallars Orhers Toral
{RMB (RMB (RMB
RMEB Equivalent) Equivalent) Equizalenth
Assets
Cash and depesits with the central hank 333623 1258 457 364,340
Deposics with banks and other financial
imsEETr oS 8821 15,06 740 31,358
Placements with banks and other Fnancil
imseimurions 330m 13340 3839 60,270
Financial assers held under resale agreements f, 7018 17 - 6,835
Loans and advances 1o customers 2438590 1219 55317 2644, 1306
Finance base roceivables B2.800 923 - 83,723
Finamcial investments 1345906 T34 8,209 1433 540
Others 43,151 10053 1014 109,223
Total assers 4417.693 239357 7,381 4.733431
Liabilivies
Due g0 the central bank 124,838 - - 124,838
Drepasits from banks and orher Bnancil
msEEmurions 442,306 1448 526 444,320
PFlacements from banks and other financial
instimuions 55,186 02685 18354 166,225
Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements 23,074 250 - 25603
Dieposits from customers 235,940 146,468 31480 FANT 556
Dbt securities issued 332059 35,4802 3,943 371,904
Others 85,763 7047 1544 i, 540
Total lisbilities 4N, 266 286,954 35,151 4347 377
Net position 413427 {47.602) 20,28 386,054
Off-bakance sheer credit comminments 1,120,466 53.313 13,317 1,287 A%
Derivarive financial instrements (Mote) {28,453) 31603 (7. 2%4) 5,856

MNare Dymimitive Jimsmsia fmatraoonrmin rIJ'Im' e d madva s dmau At .lf'dwrlﬂ'\rn
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk management (continuied

(b) Marker risk (continued)

Foreign eurvency risk (continued)

The Group conducts a substantial portion of it business in RMB, with certain transactions
denominated in USD, HKD and. 1o a much lesser extent, other currencies. As ar the financial
reporting dare, the exchange rate changes of the currencies to which the Group had significant
exposure are a5 follows:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
Exchange rates against RMB for the HE dollar 08428 08949
Exchange rates against RMB for the US dollar G.5347 GAGRT

The Group uses sensiivicy analysis to measure the potential effect of changes in the Group’s exchange
rates on the Group's net profic or loss and equity. As ar 31 December 2020, assuming other variables
remain unchanged, an appreciatien of one hundred basis points in the U3 dollar against the RMB
would increase both the Group's net profit and equity by RMB4 million (31 December 2019
increase by RMBT million); a depreciation of one hundred basis poines in the US dollar againse
the RMB would decrease both the Group’s net profit and equity by RMB4 million (31 December
201%: decrease by RMBT million},

The sensitivity analysis mentioned above is based on a static foreign exchange exposure profile of
assets and liabilities and certain simplified asumptions:

~  The foreign exchange sensitivity is the gain and loss recognised as a resule of one hundred basis
points’ fluctuation in the foreign currency exchange rates (central parity) against RMB:

- At the end of the reporting year. the fluctuation of exchange rates by one hundred basis points
is based on the asumption of exchange rate movement over the next 12 months;

- Due o the immarerial proportion of the Group’s toal assets and liabilities denominared in
aurrencies other than US dollars and HK dollars, other foreipn currencies are converted into

LS dollars in the above sensivity analysis;

—  The foreign exchange exposures calculated include spor and forward foreign exchange exposures
and swaps:

- Ohher variables {including interest rates) remain unchanged; and

= The analysis does not take into account the effece of sk Management measures taken by
management,

Dhue to the assumprions adopted, actual changes in the Group's net profit or loss and equity resulting
from the increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates might vary from the estimated results of this
sensitiviy: analysis,
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

284

50 Risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk (continued)

(<}

Price risle

Price risk mainly comes from equity investments held by the Group and the tading precious metal
investments. The Group's risk of commodity or shares price from investment is not significan.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a commercial bank is unable to obrain funds on a timely basic or
obtain funds at 3 reasonable cost te meer repayment obligations or swstain its asser business. [n
accordance with liquidity policies, the Group monitrs the furure cash flows and mainmins liquid
assets of high qualicy.

The Asser and Lishiliy Management Commirree {*ALMC”) is responsible for managing the Group's
overall liquidity risk. The ALMC, chaired by the President of the Bank: is responsible for the
formulation of the liquidity policies in aceordance with regulatory requirements and - prodencial

princples. Such policies include:

—  Maintaining liquidity ar a stable and sufficient level; establishing integrated liquidity risk
management system; ensuring the meeting of liquidity requirements on a timely basis and the
payments to various businesses, whether under a normal operating environment or a state of
stress; and

~  Making timely and reasonable adjustments to capital structure and seale in response to market
changes and business developments; achieving the integration of the security, liquidity, and
effectiveness of the Bank's funds,

The Asser and Liability Mansgement Department is responsible for executing liquidity risk
management policies. It is also responsible for identifying, measuring. monitoring and managing
medium and long-term working capital on a reguelar basts, and for formulating liquidity management
stragegies. The Asser and Liability Management Department is responsible for monitering working
capiral on a daily basis and ensuring the Hquidity. Significant dishursement ar portfolio changes must
be reporred to the ALMC on a timely basis.

The Group mainly applics liquidity gap analysis to measure liquidity risk. The Group will continue
o focus on limit monitoring and dynamic control, and apply different scemario stress ests o assess
the impacts from liquidity risks and develop effecrive contingency plans to respond to various possible
liquidity risks.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Riske management (continued)

(¢) Liquidity risk {continued)

The following rables provide an analysis of assers and liabilities of the Group into relevant maruriry
groupings based on the remaining periods o repayment ar the end of the year:

31 December 20120
Baween  fewen  Betwren
ane month three. e year
Onerdael  Repable  Wikin  anddhree mondiesd  md five  More thin
Indefinite on demand  one mousth  momibs o pen yesi five yuan Toul

Assens
Cah and deparies with

the cencral bank 953 60,744 - - - = - MamT
Dheposits with banks

ind caher finaneial

inatiuricns - 40,161 1100 40198 700 - - 46059
Placements with banks

and caher finaacial

instiutions 150 - 45,042 0473 11,551 rh b = 9,10
Finameial ssmeq held

under resak

agreemenis - = 43,502 - - - - 459
Loz and advinees to ;

Customen 133 4N IRTE 1ESN G7Ls IOl TEeE T 1%
Finmce lesse reozivables 197 £ 3381 4918 18,663 61713 10838 [0
Financial invesiments 11183 114,456 45,807 o441 N0 TITTIZ. 4NN LETOALS
(chers 6121 7.6 1748 4458 11652 B.1R0 4,381 135,044
Total awsets J15 TR 03 WM ANALE LRI LITOBO AMEN0
Lishdli
Dhee oo the cemiral

bank - - 13,195 T 120,203 - B | A 1]
Drepusits from banks

and other financial

instizutions - 154,114 TIL330 73528 172,073 - - 4345
Facements from hasks

and cther finascial

instiutions - [3 44,194 ATALS 70234 - - T60ATS
Finamcial sty sid

undet repurchase

igTeement - - T3 3093 3508 9 - 14,182
Dheprodits from

custeny S [ I L R LT T B M 3dmseT
Diebe sevatisien faaed - - 5,450 H1580 70957 M £33 Mo
Oehens = 47537 41 5735 20,338 19.252 #1065 105,059
Total liabdlities = LSmAH 421 BE5830  LIME  9M9P M 4913112
Net pasicion 32591 (33T (380 WIeTNE  H0LEX)  AIAL LIS dae
Notsoaa] amount of

derivative financial

instruments - - 606 25113 BAOG0E  TATAE 43970 10mT
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk management (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following ables provide an amalysis of assers and liabilities of the Group inte relevant marurity
groupings based on the remaining periods to repayment at the end of the year (continued):

3] Diecember 2110
Berwsen  Berween  Berween
ofc manth three  one yer

Orverduel  Repuyable Within  ad theee momhsand  and fve  More than
Indefinit:  cmn derund oo month mofts  ofe yeur veart  five yeard Toul

Assets
Cash and deposin witk

the ceenral bank 11,750 61550 - x = - - 304,340
Dhepasics with hanks

and other fisancid

e - e 19 nr 1,993 - - 3,358
Placemens with hunks

and other fizmancial

initutioas M - Mol 530 16441 4u7 - 00,270
Financaal asser beld

ander resile

agperments - - 6835 - - - - R3S
Loans and advances 1o

UM 3B 19,336 162,556 133522 535,142 63,1 638316 244,136
Finance lease seceiables 4 § 107 3446 13,833 49,940 14,103 B3T3
Financial imvestments PALL 159627 A3 36,918 B5m Bl 18 JALETL 143354
et B3A10 JBATE Loks 1765 55498 335 3,132 1,223
Total assers HEAM  GREAH W77 183,408 AR L9480 LOIASIY 4735431
Lisbili
Dhae 1o e cenomad

bank - - e L1 - A7h - - 114,838
D pouits from hasks

and oither firancial

ingilutions - 179,98 ThaH #7280 3608 - - 444,520
Flacements from hanks

and other fmanciad

ity tioas - 3 A4y 43,909 31 - - 166,225
Fimancial awiert sold

ander repwichae

agpeeimienly - - 15710 4715 5,168 - - 15603
Dhepenits. feom

cURamer - LT IANART JERES9 545,265 470,708 12 3017REE
Dbt secutities isued - - 17.83 B3 175,856 45,304 40,083 3004
Others - 41,076 M5 3194 [ 41 20,388 4947 96,599
Tiotal liahilithes = LALAT AT G148l LIB335 337,904 FLM1 4340377
Net pesition 8454 (BRLAS3)  [MROBT)  (RITY) (MAN)  TELITE 964870 8654
Nogionat amoust of

detivative financial

el - - 4566 TR L3NS 673, 7ik} 5040 1775126
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Riske management (continued)

(¢) Liquidity risk {continued)

The following rables provide an analysis of the contracrual undiseounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities at the end of the year:

31 Dicember 2020
Perween  Bewern  Berwern
Contractual ane mitith thiee

BE
TE

Camying enducoumied  Repayable Wikinos:  and diee  monch aad Mare than
o cah flow o0 demand moath  meathe  one yer jean e yean

Won-derivative

financial [isbilities
Dhee o the cenral

hank M0 145941 = 15,216 B s R R = =
Deposing from banks

and eaher finascial

instizutions 469345 473815 154,380 TO407 Ti038 175084 = =
Phscements Erom ek

1z other finazcil

instieutions 1ELATY 154,280 i 44,25 47E7 L - =
Financial amers sold

undsr repurchase

agmements 14,182 14,205 - 731 s A58 41 -
Degosits from

tustomens JARLEET AN 1305048 WAME AT SRR BUREES 3
Db sevarities med 440,370 dan431 - 838 53,850 AT 1483 LR
Cheher financial

lighilities S1.060 33,073 13315 568 1774 10,27 14134 7555
Total non-detivative

fnancial [ubdives  £39%113.  404TH  LATTESS 36440 BTEBRY  1IITIES. 9A19H [k
Derivative finandal

abili
Derivative financial

instruments settled

on e hasis (513} - ! i3 (13) (323 (68)
Dsivaive finascial

instruments secthed

o ginat buis

- Cath inflowr 1076507 301,261 213,958 314,313 B 41T

- Cath coxflow {1078, 300} - (3009600 (213583 (514421 (5759 HLITSH
Total derivative

Fenaniad Fubedities 37 - 3 355 (37 {63) 3
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk management (continued)

(e} Ligquidity risk (continued)

The following rables provide an amalysis of the contractual undiscounted eash flows of financial
liahilities ar the end of the year (continued):

31 Dhecember 2019
Beween  Beween  Between
Coneracned one moeth three  ooc yesr
Canying undiwousted  Repaple Wichinone  andtheer mestheand  and five  Moge than

amount  cah flow  ca demand meith montd oo e yean o five pean

WNon-derivative

fimamcial lishilities
Dhae 1 the cenonl

Bank YL LBEN - T34 - 1855 - -
Diepeniny feom hanks

ard other Rmancial

inincion HHam He s 179959 7316 BTAME 105,000 : =
Placensents from Banks

ard wther francial

ntinesions 166,22 167904 & 0558 49007 68,133 - -
Financial amers soid

ander fepuschase

gremenis 15,608 L5887 = 1578 474 510 - a
Depanits from

cuibaimsrs 017488 LOAOAGT  LISOBT  ITLME  MoSI  BSSITT SLBdD 17
Dbt securities issued 371,90 H53% - 17555 .56 182,147 50,086 53512
Chher fimancial

fiahilities ThE19 70580 .59 3137 1h 19,361 11,857 b8
Total non-defsie

financial abilies 433757 440843 1L5LII MY RIS 156793 56d.783 5,597
Dherivative fnancial

lishilizics
Dierivative financial

instruments ethad

o net batis L - 17 108 158 L] -
Derivative financid

ingnments seted

o8 gron bati

- Cash inflow 1.388,726 - MRTD O MM TG 1365 -

- Cash oaiffow [1.387.817) - (A3 (WT99 (W3 {13,678} =
Tioal derivative

financeal fabilities e - 1LH3 {123 (BT} (25} -

This analysis of the Anancial instruments by contractual undiscounted @sh flows might diverge
from actual results,
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Riske management (continuied

(e} Liquidity risk {conrinued)

The following mbles provide an amalysis of off-balance sheer assers of the Group into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining periods o repayment at the end of the year:

31 December 2020

Berween
Within one year and More than
one year ive years five years Total
Loan and credit card commitmenis 348,503 1,159 2,334 351,906
Guarantees, acceptances and other
credit eommitments 1,074,877 48.265 1,408 1,124,550
Total 1,423,380 49,424 3,742 1. 476,546
31 December 2019
Berween
Within ore vear and More than
ane year ive vears five vears Total
Loan and credit card commitments 312,090 5474 6,179 323.743
Guarantees, acceptances and other
eredit commiTments 912,051 51,355 347 963,753
Total 1,224,141 56,829 6,526 1,287 496
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50 Risk management (continued)

(d)

Operational risk

Operational risk refers to the risk of losses associared with intemnal processes deficiencies, persannel
misrales and information system failures, or impacts from other external events.

The Group esrablishes a framewark of an operational risk management sysvem o idenrify, assess,
control. manage and repore operational risk. The framework covers all business functions ranging
from corporate banking, revail banking, rrading, corporate finance, setclement, intermediary business,
asser management and all supporting funcrions, including human resource management, financial

management, fegal affairs, anti-money laundering and administration management. The key clements
of the framework are listed as follows:

~— A multi-level operational risk management framework with segregation of dutics between front
and back offices under the leadership of senior management:

- A series of operational risk management policies covering all businesses on the basis of core
aperational ritk management policy:

— A set of standard operational procedures eovering all products and services, which is practical,
traceable and can be re-performed, investigated and remedied:

= A series of operarional risk management toals, including Risk Contral Self-Assessment (RCSA),
Key Risk Index (KRI), Loss Event Collecrion and [T system maonitoring

—  An operatonal risk management culture. the core values of the culmure is thar effecrive risk
management could create value. It is supported with a team of operational risk management

professiomals across all branches, businesses and funcrions

—  An evaluation system on the operatonal risk management as well as an inquiry and disciplinary
system on the non-compliance issues; and

—  An independent risk assessment framework based on the inrernal audic and the compliance
FEVICwW.
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¥V MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
51 Falr value

{a) Methods and assumptions for measurement of fair value

The Group adops the following methods and assumprions when evaluating fair values:

(il Debr securities and equity investments

The Fair values of debr securities and equiry investments thar are traded in an active marker
are based on their quored marker prices in an active marker at the end of the reporting period.
The fair values of unlisted equity investmenes are estimared wsing comparable firm approach,
after adjusement for the specific circumsrances of the isswers.

(i) Receivables and other non-devivative financial assets

Fair values are estimared as the present values of the future cash flows, discounted ar che marker
interest rates at the end of the year.

{iiil Dhebt securities fesned awd other now-derivative financial lialilities

Fair values of debt securiries issued are: based on their quored marker prices ar the end of the
reporting period, or the present value of estimaved future cash flows. The fair values of ather
nen-derivative financial liabilities are valued at the present value of estimated futere cash flows,
The discount rates are based on the market interest rates at the end of the year.

(i) Derivative ffnancial instroments

The fair values of foreign currency forward and swap contracts are determined by the difference
berween the present values of the forward prices and the contractual prices at the end of the
reporting period, or are based on quoted marker prices. The fair values of interest race swaps
are estimated as the present value of otimated future cash flows, The yield curve is based on
the optimised price between the broker's quoted price and Thomson Reuters' quoted price,

(b} Fair value measurement
(¢} Financial assets
The Group's financial assets mainly consist of cash and deposits with the central bank,
deposits with banks and other finandal insticutions, placements with banks and other financial

institutions. derivative financial assets, financial assets held under resale agreements, precious
metals, loans and advances o customers, finance lease receivables and financial investments,

Cash and deposits with the central bank, deposits with banks and other financial instinurions,
placements with banks and other financial instinutions and financial assers held under resale
aprecments are mostly priced ar marker ingerest rares and due within one year. Accordingly,
the carrying amounts approximate the fair values.

Most of loans and advances to customers, finance lease receivables and financial investments
measured ar amortised cost, except for debr seourities investments, are mostly priced ar floaring
interest rares close ta the PBOC rares. Accordingly. the carrying amounts approximare the fair
values.

Financial assets ar fair value through profic or loss, debr instruments ar fair value through other
comprehensive income, equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

and part af precious metals are stated ar fair value. The carrying amount and fair value of debe
securities investments measured at amortised cost are disclosed in Note V18,

291
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

51 Fair value (continued)
(k)  Fair value measurement (continued)
(i) Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities mainly include deposits from banks

and other financial

institutions, placements from banks and other finaneial instirutions, finaneial assers sold under

repurchase apreements, deposits from customers, due 1o the cenrral bank.

financial liabilities ar

fair value through profit or loss, derivarive financial liabilitics and debr securivies issued. Excepr
the debr securities issued. the carrying amounes of other finandal Babiliies approximare their

fair values.

The rables below summarise the carrying amounts and fair values of “debr securitics investments
measured ar amorrised cost”, and “debr securities issued” nor presented ar fair value ar che end

of yearn:
Carrving value Fair value
31 December 31 December 30 December 31 December
200240 2019 2020 g
Fimancial assets
Debr securities investments
measured ar amortised cost 935,651 T4 943 44,985 Toh,461
Fimancial liabilities
Db securities ismsed 440,87 371,904 440,017 371,869

Db securities investments measured ar amortised cost are based on marker prices or broker!
dealer price quotations. Where this informartion is not available, the Bank wall pcrﬁ\.n'n valuation
by referring to prices from valuation service providers or on the basis of discounted cash
flows models. Valuation parameters include marker ingerest rares, cxpected funsre defaule rares,
prepayment rates and marker liquidity. The fair values of RMB bonds are mainly determined
based on the valeation results provided by China Central Deposivory Trust & Clearing Co.,

Lxd.

The fair values of debi sccuritics issued are caleulated based en quoted marker prices. For those
bonds where quﬂ:ltc& market prices are not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based

an a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.
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V' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COMTIMUED)
51 Falr value (continued)

(€} Fair value hierarchy

The following able presenes the carrying value of financial instruments measured ar fair value in
the statement of financial position across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy. The level in
the fair value hicrarchy within which the fair value measurement is categerised is determined on the
basis of the lowest level inpur thar is significant 1o the fair value measurement in its entirery. The
definitions of three levels are as follows:

Lewel 1t Quored prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assers or liabilities.,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 thar are observable for assets
or lishilicies, either directly {i.e. prices) or indirecdy {i.e. derived from prices). This
level includes bonds and a majority of OTC derivative contracts, [nput parameters like
ChinaBond interbank yield curves or LIBOR yield curves are sourced from ChinaBond,
Bloomberg, Thomsom Reuters and Shanghai Clearing House.

Lewvel 3: Inputs for assets or labilities that are not based on observable market data {unobservable
inputsh, This level incledes complicated unlisted equity and derivative contracts with one
ar more than one significant unobservable component,

This hierarchy requires the wse of observable open marker dara wherever possible, The Group tries
irs best to consider relevant and observable muarker prices in vialuations.

If there is a reliable marker quore for financial instrumenes, the fair value of financial instruments
is based on quored marker prices. If a reliable quored market price is not available, the fair value
of the financial instruments is ostimared using valuation rechniques. YValuarion rechniques applied
include reference to the fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted
cash flow amalysis and oprien pricing models. The inpurs used in valuation echnigques include risk-
free and benchmark interese rates, credic spreads and f::-r:ign exchange rates. Where discounted cash
flow analysis is used, estimated cash flows are based on management’s best estimates and the discount
rate used is with reference to anorher instrument thar is substandally the same.
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V¥V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
51 Fair value {contnuedi

(e} Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets aned Babilivies measnved at faiv value
31 December 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Toral
Assets
Devivative fimancral asers
= Currency derivarives - 19,441 - 19,441
~ Interest rare derivatives - 5.819 2 3,821
= Credit derivarives - 2 - <
Loan and adwinees 1o cnstomers - 98211 - 98,211
Fiencial aser ar frir walue throglh
profir ar fou
— Debt instruments held for rading 4,391 28,649 —- 33,040
— Financial assers designared at
fair value through profic or loss - - 1 1
— Ohther financial assets ar fair value
through profit or los 213,781 47,723 10,3063 71867
Delsr instruments ar fair walwe througl
ather comprebensive fncome 51011 171,696 - 222,807
Equity imitruments ar fair wilve
through other comprebensive income 23 - 852 875
Precious mietals 35 - - 35
Total 2649.341 371,541 11,218 652,100
Liahilitics
Financial ligbilities ar fair value
through prafic or oo 4 - - 4
Derivative financial fiakilivie
~ Currency derivatives - 19,355 = 19,355
= Inrerest rave derivatives = 6,338 2 6,340
= Crodin derivatives - 83 - 83
Total 4 25776 i 25,782
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51

Falr value (continued)

(<)

Fair value hierarchy icontineed)

Assers and labilitiec weasured at fafe valve (continued)

31 December 2019
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Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Toral
Assets
Derivatrve financial ames
= Currency derivatives - 16,104 - 1O, 10
~ Inrerest rate derivatives - 3653 2 3,653
= Credic derivatives - 4t - 46
Loans and advances m cusomen - 90,578 - 90,578
Finaneial assets ar finie valiee throwgh
profic or lois
— Db instruments held for mading 4,710 13,886 - 18,602
— Fimancial assers designared ar fair
value through profic or loss - - 4 4
— Other financial assers ar fair value
through profic or loss 164,806 23,904 40350 192,800
Drebr instruments ar fair valwe through
etfer comprehensive incere 43,527 136,474 - 180LEH35
Egnity inserwments ar fair wilne
through other comprebensive income 21 - 602 623
Precions el 43 - - 43
Tatal 213113 278,709 4,638 £906,4060
Liabilitics
Fingncial fabiliries av fair walue
through profit or foss BiHk - - ({i1]
Devivasive financial liabilities
- Currency derivatives - 10,140 - 10y, L)
= Interest rate derivarives - 3,678 2 3,680
= Credic derivatives - 72 1 73
Taotal 100 13,890 3 13,993

Duning the year, there were no sign'iﬁ.cant transfers within the fair value hierarchy of the Group.
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

51 Fair value {contnuedi
(e} Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets aned LBabilities nmeasuved at fair value (continued)
The movements during the year ended 31 December 2020 in the balance of Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:
Finaneiall  instruments
asiets  ar fair value
Derivative at fiir valoe  through ogher Derivative
financial through comprehensve Toul fimancial Total
ety profit of loss income s abikities Babifities
I Jamussy 2020 A 434 602 4438 (3 el
Total gins of lossese
- In peefic or boss I 5 - B4 (1} {1}
Purchases - 6,306 250 [ - -
Settlements {1} {131} - (132} 2 2
31 December 2020 1 10,364 552 11,218 L] 2
Total gains of lasses for the year
inchded in pmﬁt of Jass Ex
assets and liahilicies beld at
the end of the tepecting year 1 (5] - ] {n {n
The movements l:iuring the year ended 31 December 2019 in the balance of Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:
igy
Firancial insan?umu
amsers  ar fair value
Durvative  at fair value  through ether Dierivative
financial through  compechendve Toul financia Tonal
assets Pmﬁt or Jnss income s [Eabslities Babilines
I January 2019 7 GRET] 352 3500 {8} k1]
Total geins ¢ lomes
= In profit or los 5} 723 - (730 i
Purchases - 1906 250 1136 - -
Sertlements - {288) - [258) 1 I
31 December 2019 1 4014 bz 4638 3 13}
Total gains of losses for the year
included in peofic ar Joss for
assets and lishilicies beld ar
the eod of the repoting year {3) (715 N (730} 4 4
296
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

51

Falr value (continued)

(<)

Fair value hierarchy icontinuecd)

Financial ascets and Galilivies not wemsred av fair value

The rables below summarise the three levels fair values of “debr securities investments measured ar
amortised cost” and “debr seeurities isued” not presented ar faie value on the statement of financial
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position:
31 December 2020
Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Toral
Financial assets
Debar securities investments
measured ar amartised cost 161,862 783,123 - Q44,985
Financial liabilities
[hebor securities isswed 23,558 414,459 - A40,017
31 Drecember 2019
Level § Lewvel 2 Level 3 Tortal
Financial assets
Dbt securnities investments
measured at amortised cost 142,394 654,067 - 796,461
Financial liabilities
Debor securities jsswed 31,658 340,211 - 371,869

(d} Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable inpurs

Financial instruments valued with significant unobservable inpurs are primarily unlisted equity and
derivative contracts. These financial instruments are valued using cash flow discount model and
market method, The models incorporate various non-observable assumptions such as discount rate

and market rate volatilities.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrving amounts of financial instruments valued with significane

unobservable inputs were immaterial, and the cffects of changes in significant unohservable
assumptions o reasonably possible alrernative assumptions were also immaterial,

407/429
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V NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2938

52

Entrusted lending business

The Group provides entrusted lending business services to government agencies, corporations and
individuals. All entrusted loans are funded by entrusted funds from these entities and individuals, The
Group does nor ke any credic risk in relarion v these transacrions. The Group acts as an agene to hold
and mamnage these assers and liabilities ar the direction of the entrustors and receives fee income: for the
services provided. The entrusted assers are not the assers of the Group and are nor recognised in the
statement of financial position.

31 Dwecember 31 December

2020 2019
Entrusted loans 125,827 139,790
Entrusted funds 125,827 139,790

Commitments and contingent liabilities
{a) Credit commiiments

The Group’s credit commitments take the form of approved loans with signed contracrs, credin card
commirments, bank acceprances, leners of credit and financial guarantees,

The contracrual amounts of loans and credic card commimments represent the amounts should the
contracts be fully drawn upon. The Group provides finandal guarantees and leers of credic o
guarantee the performance of customers to third paries. Acceprances comprise undermakings by the
Group o pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Group expects most acceprances to be
sertled simultancously with the reimbursement from the customers.

31 Dvcember 31 Dvecember

2020 2009
Loan commitments
~ Original contractual maturity within one year 16,758 19,855
= Original contractual maturity more than one year
limclusive) 7934 13,732
Credit card commitments 337,299 200,156
Subtotal 351,99 323,743
Acceprances TO9.458 04, 165
Letrers of guaranree 130,425 128,740
Lerters of credic 224,482 225653
Cuarantees 185 185
Total 1,476,546 1,287 496

The Group may be exposed o credic risk in all the credir businesses above. Group management
periodically assesses the estimated credic risk and makes provision for any expected credic losses. As
the facilities may expire withour being drawn upon, the total of the contracrual amounes shown
above is not representative of expected future cash ourflows,

408/429

oOoOooodn



53

EDINETOOOO
O00000000O00Ooo(E25668)
oOoOooodn

=
3
E
¥V MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) -i
Commitments and contingent liabilities (consinued
(b} Credirt risk-weighted amount of credit commitments

(<)

(d)

31 December 31 December
2050 2019

Credic risk-weighted amount of eredit commitments 382,659 JR0,959

The eredic rsk-weighted amount of credit commitments represents the amount caleulated with
reference to the Regulation Governing Capieal of Commercial Banks (Providonal). The risk weighes
are determined in accordance with the credit status of the counterparties, the maturity profile and
other factors. The risk weights ranged from 0% 1o 1009 for eredit commitments.

Capital commitments

As at the end of the year, the Group's authorised capital commirments are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
Conteacred bur nor paid
— Purchase of property and equipment 1,962 1,100
Approved bur ner contracred for
— Purchase of property and equipment 4,445 2,817
Total 0,407 3917

Underwriting and redemption commitments
The Group has no unexpired commitments for underwriting bonds as ar 31 December 2020,

As an underwriting agent of the PRC government bonds, the Group has the respansibility for buying
back those bonds i previously sold should the holders decide o make an carly redemprion of the
bonds held. The redemption price for a bond ar any time before is marurity dare is based on the
coupon value plus any inrerest unpaid and acaued up to the redemption dace. Accrued inrerest
payable to the bond holders is caloulated in accordance with the relevant MOF and PBOC rules.
The redemption price may be different from the fair value of similar financial instruments traded
at the redemption dare.

As at the end of the year, the underwritten, sold and immature national bonds” redemption
commitments at nominal value are as follows;

31 December 31 December

2020 01y
Redemprion commitments 5918 6,626
299
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED
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Commitmenis and contingent liabilities dcontinued)

(e} Oustanding litigations and disputes

As ar 31 Drecember 2020, the Group was the defendant in eermain pending ligation and dispuves
with gross claims of RMBI.262 million (31 December 2019 RMB1.384 million). Provisions have
been made for the estimared losses from. such litigations based upon the opinions of the Group's
internal and external legal counsels (Nowe V' 36} The Group considers thar the provisions made are
reasonable and adequare.

Subsequent Events
The Group has no significant subsequent event.

Comparative fgures

In accordance with the presenting partern of the fimancial statements, the Group has reclassified some
comparative figures,
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
18.52 17.32 17.48 16.75 16.06
15.06 15.75 16.01 1486 14.79
16.33 16.60 16.71 15.81 15.44
16.78 17.28 16.38 15.60 15.81
100
2020 2020 2020 2020 10 2020 11 2020 12
15.35 15.48 15.55 15.81 15.97 15.95
14.99 15.12 15.44 15.51 15.60 15.78
15.24 15.29 15.50 15.67 15.80 15.87
100
17.07 2021 21

100
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2020 12 31
30,179.68

761.27

.50(a)

56.22%

.16
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2020 12 31
6,521.00
257.82
12.15% 0.53%

56.98%

1.72%

.51
©
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of China Everbright Bank Company Limited
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Everbright Bank Company Limited (the “Bank”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financia statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRSS") issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’) issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsihilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsihilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
Sstatements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of loans and advances to customers

The Group uses a number of models and assumptions
in the measurement of expected credit losses, for
example:

Significant increase in credit risk - The selection
of criteria for identifying significant increase in
credit risk is highly dependent on judgement
and may have a significant impact on the
expected credit losses for loans with longer
remaining periods to maturity;

Models and parameters - Inherently complex
models are used to measure expected credit
losses. Modelled parameters have numerous
inputs and the parameter estimation involves
many judgements and assumptions;

Forward-looking information -  Expert
judgement is used to create macroeconomic
forecasts and to consider the impact on expected
credit losses under multiple economic scenarios
given different weights;

Individual impairment assessment - Identifying
credit impaired loans requires consideration of a
range of factors, and individual impairment
assessments are dependent upon estimates of
future cash flows.

Since loan impairment assessment involves many
judgements and assumptions, and in view of the
significance of the amount (as at 31 December 2020,
gross loans and advances to customers amounted to
RMB3,017.968 hillion, representing 56.22% of total
assets, and impairment allowance for loans and
advances to customers amounted to RMB76.127
billion), impairment of loans and advances is
considered a key audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note |11 1, Note
V 16 and Note V50 (@) to the consolidated financia
statements.

We evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the
design and implementation of key controls related to
the credit approval process, post approval credit
management, loan rating system, collatera
monitoring and loan impairment assessment,
including relevant data quality and information
systems.

We adopted a risk-based sampling approach in our
loan review procedures. We assessed the debtors
repayment capacity and evaluated the Group's loan
grading, taking into consideration post-lending
investigation reports, debtors financial information,
collateral valuation reports and other available
information.

With the support of our internal credit risk modelling
experts, we evaluated and tested the important
parameters of the expected credit loss model,
management's major judgements and related
assumptions, mainly focusing on the following
aspects:

1. Expected credit loss model:

In response to the macroeconomic changes,
the COVID-19 pandemic implications and
the supporting policies from government
authorities, assessed the reasonableness of
the expected credit loss model methodology
and related parameters, including probability
of default, loss given default, risk exposure,
and any significant increasein credit risk.

Assessed the forward-looking information
management used to determine expected
credit losses, including the forecasts of
macroeconomic  variables and the
assumptions and the weight of multiple
macroeconomic scenarios; and

Evaluated the models and the related
assumptions used in individual impairment
assessment and analysed the amount, timing
and likelihood of management's estimated
future cash flows, especially cash flows from
collateral.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of loans and advances to customers (continued)

2. Design and operating effectiveness of key
controls:

Evaluated and tested the data and processes
used to determine expected credit losses,
including loan business data, internal credit
rating data, impairment system computational
logic, aswell asinputs, outputs and interfaces
among relevant systems; and

Evaluated and tested key controls over the
expected credit loss models, including
approval  of model changes, ongoing
monitoring model  performance, model
validation and parameter calibration.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of internal controls related to disclosures
of credit risk and the impairment allowance.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of financial instruments

The Group has applied vauation techniques to
determine the fair value of financial instruments that
are not quoted in active markets. These valuation
techniques usually involve subjective judgement and
assumptions. With different valuation techniques and
assumptions applied, the valuation results can vary
significantly.

As a 31 December 2020, financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at fair value amounted
to RMB652.100 billion and RMB25.782 hillion
respectively, representing 12.15% and 0.53% of total
assets and total liabilities, respectively. Financial
instruments which required either direct (i.e. prices)
or indirect (i.e. derived from prices) inputs, hence
categorised within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy,
represented 56.98% of total financial assets measured
a fair value; and financial instruments which
required significant unobservable inputs, hence
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
represented 1.72% of total financial assets measured
at fair value. Due to the significance of financial
instruments measured at fair value, and the
uncertainty in valuation, thisis considered a key audit
matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note Il 2 and
Note V 51(c) to the consolidated financia statements.

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls related to the valuation
of financia instruments, including relevant data
quality and IT systems involved.

We evauated the valuation techniques, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group through comparison
with the valuation techniques commonly used in the
markets, validation of observable inputs using
external market data, and comparison with valuation
outcomes obtained from various pricing Sources.

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group’'s controls related to
disclosures of fair value. We also assessed whether
relevant fair value and sensitivity disclosures in the
financial statements adequately presented the risk of
the Group.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Consolidation assessment of, and disclosures about, structured entities

The Group has established various structured entities,
such as bank wealth management products, funds,
trust plans, in conducting asset management business
and investments. The Group determines whether or
not to consolidate these structured entities based on
the assessment of whether the Group has control over
them through taking into consideration the power
arising from rights, variable returns, and the link
between power and returns.

The assessment of the Group’'s control over
structured entities involves significant judgement and
estimation such as the purpose and design of
structured entities, its ability to direct relevant
activities, interests it holds directly or indirectly, the
performance fee obtained, profit and the exposure to
loss from providing credit enhancement or liquidity
support, etc. The comprehensive analysis of these
factors and the conclusion of whether the Group has
control involve significant management judgement
and estimation. Due to the significance of the
unconsolidated structured entities and the complexity
of judgement exercised by management, this is
considered a key audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 11l 6 and
Note V 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

We assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls relating to the Group
's assessment of whether it controls a structured
entity.

We assessed the Group’s analysis and conclusions on
whether or not it controls structured entities by
reviewing relevant term sheets to analyse whether the
Group has the obligation to absorb any loss of
structured entities, as well as the Group’s analysis on
its power over structured entities, the magnitude and
variability of variable returns from its involvement
with structured entities. We also assessed whether the
Group had provided liquidity support or credit
enhancement to structured entities, as well as fairness
of transactions between the Group and structured
entities.

Furthermore, we assessed and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of the Group’s controls over
its unconsolidated structured entities.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE BANK’S 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's

report thereon.

oOoOooodn

Our opinion on the consolidated financia statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materialy inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for ng the Group
’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no redistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financia statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’ s report is Choi Kam Cheong, Geoffrey.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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